
 

 

 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

561.586.1600 

  
AGENDA 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 06, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

ROLL CALL: 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: led by Commissioner Sarah Malega 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy 

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering: 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

A. Presentation of the Bus Shelter Improvement Program by Clinton Forbes, Executive 
Director of Palm Tran Public Transportation 

B. Update by the Education Task Force 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

A. Work Session - November 7, 2022 

B. Regular Meeting - November 15, 2022 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion of proposed Request for Proposal (RFP) regarding the Housing Crisis 

NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Presentation of conceptual design for the pool by CPZ Architects, Inc. 

B. Ordinance 2022-20 – First Reading – Amending Chapter 23 “Land Development 
Regulations,” Article 3 “Zoning Districts,” Division 7 “Public Districts,” Section 23.3-26 
“P- Public,” and Section 23.3-27 “PROS – Public Recreation and Open Space” for 
consistency with the use tables in Section 23.3-6 and clarifying the approval process 
for uses in the public districts; and Division 8 “Conservation District,” Section 23.3-28 
“C- Conservation,” for consistency with the use tables in Section 23.3-6, correcting a 
scrivener’s error and modifying the approval process to require conditional use 
approval for new uses; and Division 1 “Generally,” Section 23.3-6 “Use Tables,” to 
remove the P, PROS, and C zoning districts from all use categories in the use tables 
in this section except from the “Temporary Uses” category 



C. Ordinance No. 2022-24 – First Reading – Providing for the City’s Consent to the 
Inclusion of the City of Lake Worth Beach Into the Palm Beach County’s Fire/Rescue 
Municipal Service Taxing Unit for Fire-Rescue, Fire Protection, Advanced Life 
Support, Fire Code Enforcement and Other Necessary and Incidental Services and 
Providing for Effectiveness and Duration of Consent and Acknowledging Ad Valorem 
Millage Rate Limitation. 

D. Ordinance No. 2022-25 – First Reading – Amending Chapter 9 “Buildings and 
Structural Regulations” of the City’s Code of Ordinance to provide for a Required 
Thirty-Year Recertification for Buildings and Other Building Code Issues 

E. Ordinance No. 2022-26 – First Reading – Amending Subsection (g) "Maintenance 
Requirements" of Section 2-75.11 "Foreclosed, Vacant and Unimproved Property 
Registration Program" of Article VII "Abatement of Nuisances" of Chapter 2 
"Administration" 

F. Resolution No. 88-2022 – Acknowledging City Commission’s Continued Commitment 
to Enforcement of Laws to Protect Public Safety while Respecting First Amendment 
Rights 

G. Ordinance No. 2022-27 – First Reading – Amending Chapter 14 "Business Tax 
Receipts and Business Regulations", Section 14-5 "Application for Local Business Tax 
Receipt of the City's Code of Ordinances to Provide for a Local Contact for All Rental 
Properties and to Repeal Article III " Adult Moving Picture Show or Theater, Indoor or 
Drive-In" and Repeal Article VI "Vehicles for Hire” 

H. Professional Services Agreement with NexAir LLC 

I. Amendment One to the Bohemian Economic Incentive Agreement 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT: 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS: 
 

Regular Meeting - January 3 @ 6 PM 
Pre-agenda Work Session - January 11 @ 9 AM 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The City Commission has adopted Rules of Decorum for Citizen Participation (See Resolution No. 81-
2022). The Rules of Decorum are posted within the City Hall Chambers, City Hall Conference Room, posted 
online at:  https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/government/virtual-meetings/, and available through the City Clerk’s 
office. Compliance with the Rules of Decorum is expected and appreciated. 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with respect to any 
matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, 
for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which 
record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. (F.S. 286.0105) 



 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

CITY COMMISSION WORK SESSION – HOUSING CRISIS 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 07, 2022 - 5:00 PM 

 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 5:03 PM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (0:39) Present were Mayor Betty Resch; Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy and 

Commissioners Sarah Malega, Kimberly Stokes, and Reinaldo Diaz.  Also present were City 

Manager Carmen Davis, City Attorney Elizabeth Lenihan and City Clerk Melissa Ann Coyne. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (1:00) led by Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy. 

 

UPDATES / FUTURE ACTION / DIRECTION: (1:24) 

 

A. Discussion of Request for Proposal (RFP) regarding the Housing Crisis  

 

Action: Consensus for the Scope of Services to include the following: 

1.  Open to academics/universities as well as consultants (ensure inclusive language) 

2.  Add qualitative data collection showing effects of quantitative data on community, 

including on education, public safety, social services and any other ripple/secondary effects 

3.  Add “creativity” section allowing response and points available for the vendor to include 

things the City may be interested in but not thought of 

4.  Required deliverables (report, presentation to Commission and community engagement) 

5.  Option to assist in implementation of report/plan 

6.  Estimated budget of $50k 

7.  Include quantitative data for number of affordable/workforce housing in community 

currently, in pipeline, rental versus owned, and end date for restrictions in place 

8.  Data to be used for planning, budgeting, regulations, and grant applications; responses may 

include planning suggestion to fill other/related needs within areas where there is a hole 

that may be working against housing affordability (such as food desert). 

 

Action: Consensus for the city to proceed with foreclosure of non-homestead, vacant/abandoned 

properties subject to code enforcement liens. (54:27) 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (1:08:29) 

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:11 PM. 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: December 6, 2022 

 

Item time stamps correspond to the recording of the meeting on YouTube. 

 



 

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 2022 – 6:00 PM 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 6:04 PM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (0:15) Present were Mayor Betty Resch, Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy, 

Commissioners Sarah Malega, Kimberly Stokes and Reinaldo Diaz. Also present were City 

Manager Carmen Davis, City Attorney Glen Torcivia and City Clerk Melissa Ann Coyne. 

 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: (0:32) was led by Commissioner Reinaldo 

Diaz. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (1:32) was led by Mayor Betty Resch. 

 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS/REORDERING: 

There were no changes to the agenda. 

PRESENTATIONS: (2:14) (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

 

A. Proclamation declaring November 2022 as Lung Cancer Awareness Month (2:24) 

 

B. Proclamation declaring November 12-20, 2022 as National Hunger & Homelessness Week 

(5:32) 

C.  Proclamation declaring November 14-18, 2022 as American Education Week (7:37) 

D. Proclamation declaring November 20, 2022 as Transgender Day of Remembrance (13:18) 

E.  Proclamation declaring November 26, 2022 as Small Business Day (14:43) 

 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: (17:13) 

 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: (36:34) 

 

City Manager Davis provided the following report: 

 

 gave a preliminary update on the impacts of Hurricane Nicole on the city: three trees were 

downed (one each at Bryant Park, Sunset Ridge and the Northwest Ballfields) and at the 

pier, the canopy, 25 panels, portions of the railing and electrical components underneath 

would have to be replaced at a cost of $60,000 with the work being done internally 

 expressed appreciation to the teams within the city who worked around the clock 

addressing the storm-related issues 



Pg. 2, Regular Meeting, November 15, 2022 

 

 thanked the commission for having allowed her to attend the Symposium for the National 

Forum of Black Administrators in Athens, Georgia 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT 

AGENDA: (44:57) 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: (1:11:30) 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

following minutes: 

 

A. Regular Meeting - October 18, 2022 

B. Pre-agenda Work Session - October 26, 2022 

C. Regular Meeting - November 1, 2022 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: (1:23:18) (public comment allowed during Public Participation of 

Non-Agendaed items) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Vice Mayor McVoy to approve the 

Consent Agenda: 

 

A.  Lease Renewal with FDOT for the Sidewalk Café Permits 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: (1:23:26) 

 

A. Resolution No. 87-2022 – FY23 Refuse Fund Budget Amendment  

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 87-2022 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

TO ADOPT A BUDGET AMENDMENT TO INCREASE $127,000 OF 

EXPENDITURES FOR THE HIRING OF TWO ADDITIONAL EMPLOYEES WITHIN 

THE REFUSE FUND BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2023 BEGINNING 

OCTOBER 1, 2022 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2023; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve 

Resolution No. 87-2022 – FY23 Refuse Fund Budget Amendment. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 



Pg. 3, Regular Meeting, November 15, 2022 

 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT: (1:35:46) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia provided the following report: 

 

 wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. 

 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS: 

 

Utility Meeting - November 29 @ 6 PM 

Work Session – December 5 @ 5 PM 

Regular Meeting - December 6 @ 6 PM 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (1:38:08) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to adjourn the 

meeting at 7:43 PM. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes approved December 6, 2022.  

 

Item time stamps correspond to the video recordings of the meetings on YouTube.  

 



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: December 6, 2022 DEPARTMENT: City Manager 

TITLE: 

Discussion of proposed Request for Proposal (RFP) regarding the Housing Crisis 

 
SUMMARY: 

The City of Lake Worth Beach will discuss the proposed request for proposals from qualified consultants 
to provide a housing emergency study.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City Commission recognizes the existing housing crisis and declared a Housing Crisis State of 
Emergency at its August 16, 2022 meeting.  A housing study is needed in order to decide on potential 
next steps to address the issue. 

 
DIRECTION: 

TBD 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 



 

1 
 
 

       
 
 
 

     
 
 

 
    REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

 
 

Housing Emergency Study and  
Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 

 
 

   RFP NO. 23-200 
 
 
 

  



 

2 
 
 

 
 

Financial Services 
7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 
561.586.1770 

 

RFP#23-200 
         

Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 
 

The City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, is requesting proposals from qualified consultants for the 
preparation of a housing emergency study and rent control ordinance analysis.  A complete scope of 
work is attached as Exhibit “A” and incorporated into this Request for Proposals (“RFP”). 
 
Time is of the essence and any proposal received after 4:00 P.M., January 31, 2023, whether by mail or 
otherwise may be rejected by the City. Proposals shall be placed in a sealed envelope, marked with the 
RFP number, title, and date and hour proposals are scheduled to be received. All persons or entities 
responding to the RFP (hereafter “Respondents”) are responsible for insuring that their proposal is 
delivered to the City’s Financial Services office address by the deadline indicated. The City reserves the 
right in its sole discretion to reject any or all proposals and/or to waive all nonmaterial irregularities on 
any and all proposals. All costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by any 
Respondent in preparing and/or responding to the RFP are the sole responsibility of the Respondent 
including without limitation any and all costs and fees related to a protest. 
 
Interested persons or entities may obtain a copy of the RFP by contacting the Financial Services office 
at purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov or from lakeworthbeachfl.bidsandtenders.net.  All 
Respondents shall have a Bidding System Vendor account and be registered as a Plan Taker for this 
RFP opportunity, which will enable the Respondents to download the Bid Call Document, to receive 
Addenda email notifications and download all documents without the watermark “preview” on them. 
To ensure receipt of the latest information and updates via email regarding this RFP, or if a Respondent 
has obtained this RFP Document from a third party, the onus is on the Respondent to create a Bidding 
System Vendor account and be register as a Plan Taker for the RFP opportunity.   
 
All proposals must be mailed to: 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 
Financial Services/Procurement Division 

7 North Dixie Highway, 2nd Floor 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

 
 
ENVELOPE MUST BE IDENTIFIED AS RFP #23-200. 
PUBLISHED:  ___________________ Palm Beach Post and City’s website 

 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


 

3 
 
 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 

1. PROJECT OBJECTIVE 

The City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, is requesting proposals from qualified consultants, including 
but not limited to, firms, universities and other academic institutions, etc.,  to provide a housing 
emergency study and rent control ordinance analysis. A complete scope of work is attached as 
Exhibit “A” and incorporated into this Request for Proposals (“RFP”). 
 
2. SUBMITTAL OF PROPOSALS 

Interested Respondents are invited to submit a complete proposal for consideration. The proposal 
must address the items requested, clearly and concisely. 
  
Time is of the essence and any proposal received after 4:00 P.M., January 31, 2023, whether by 
mail or otherwise may be rejected by the City. .  The City offices have limited access to the 
public at this time. Courier deliveries SHALL NOT require signature for the receipt. 
Respondents may deliver proposals directly to City Hall during regular business hours 8 
a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday through Friday. If proposals are delivered in person, visitors shall 
ring the bell at the City Hall front entrance and wait for assistance or by contacting 
Procurement Division at (561) 586 – 1770 in advance.  The City will in no way be responsible 
for delays caused by any occurrence. Proposals shall not be submitted and will not be 
accepted by telephone, telegram, facsimile or e-mail. The time of receipt shall be determined 
by the time clock located in Financial Services. Proposals shall be placed in a sealed envelope, 
marked with the RFP number, title, and date and hour proposals are scheduled to be received. 
Respondents are responsible for ensuring that their proposals are delivered to Financial 
Services address by the deadline indicated.  
 
The City reserves the right in its sole discretion to reject any or all proposals and/or to waive all 
nonmaterial irregularities on any and all proposals. All costs and expenses, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees, incurred by any Respondent in preparing and responding to this RFP are the sole 
responsibility of the Respondent including without limitation any and all costs and fees related to 
a protest. The documents included or incorporated in this RFP constitute the complete set of 
instructions, scope, specification requirements and forms (unless supplemented by City issued 
addendum). It is the responsibility of the Respondent to ensure that all pages are included. 
Therefore, all Respondents are advised to closely examine this RFP. All proposals must be typed 
or written in ink, and must be signed in ink by an officer having authority to bind the Respondent. 
Signatures are required where indicated; failure to do so may be cause for rejection of a proposal.  

 
3. CHANGES AND INTERPRETATIONS 

Changes to this RFP will be made by written addendum. A written addendum is the only official 
method whereby interpretation, clarification or additional information can be given. 
 
All questions regarding this RFP should be submitted in the bidding system at 
lakeworthbeachfl.bidsandtenders.net or in writing via e-mail to 
purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov and must be received by the date set forth below for 
questions from potential Respondents. Most questions will be answered via addenda; however, 
if a question is not answered, the Respondent should assume all relevant information is contained 
within this RFP or previous issued addendum (if any). The City will attempt to not issue an 
addendum within three (3) business days of the due date of proposals; however, the City reserves 



 

4 
 
 

the right to extend the due date of proposals and issue any addenda at any time prior to the 
revised due date for proposals. 
 
4. PROPERTY OF THE CITY 

All materials submitted in response to this RFP become the property of the City. The City has the 
right to use any or all ideas presented in any response to this RFP, whether amended or not, and 
selection or rejection of a proposal does not affect this right. No variances to this provision shall 
be accepted. 
 
5. RFP TIMETABLE 

The anticipated schedule for this RFP and contract approval is as follows:  
 

 Questions from Potential Respondents Due January 12, 2023 - 4:00 PM 

 Proposal Due Date and Time  January 31, 2023 - 3:00 PM 

 Proposal Evaluation  March, 2023  

 Contract Negotiations/Approval  March/April, 2023 
  
The City reserves the right to amend the anticipated schedule as it deems necessary.   
 
6. VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE, SMALL BUSINESS AND LOCAL BUSINESS 
PREFERENCE   
 
Section 2-117 of the City’s Code of Ordinance shall govern the application of a Veteran Business 
Enterprise, Small Business and/or Local Business preference for this RFP.  Documentation to 
support a Respondent as a Veteran Business Enterprise, Small Business and/or Local Business 
must be submitted with a bid in response to the RFP.  Documentation submitted after the proposal 
deadline will be rejected.  
 
The order and application of preferences is as follows:  For all preferences set forth in this RFP, 
only one preference may be identified in a response to this solicitation. In an event of a tie, for the 
purpose of determining the best value in the award of an RFP where more than one Respondent 
identifies a preference, the Veteran Business Enterprise preference shall take precedence over 
the Local Business preference, and the Local Business preference shall take precedence over 
the Small Business preference. 
 
7. CONE OF SILENCE 

In accordance with the Palm Beach County Lobbyist Registration Ordinance and the City’s 
procurement code, the City’s procurement cone of silence will be in effect as of the deadline to 
submit a proposal in response to this RFP. A complete copy of the City’s procurement code is 
available on-line at municode.com under the City’s code of ordinances (sections 2-111 – 2-117).  
All Respondents are highly encouraged to review the same. In summary, the cone of silence 
prohibits communication between certain City officials, employees and agents and any entity or 
person seeking to be awarded a contract (including their lobbyists and potential 
subcontractors). The cone of silence terminates at the time of award, rejection of all proposals or 
some other action by the City to end the selection process. 
 
8. ETHICS REQUIREMENT 



 

5 
 
 

This RFP is subject to the State of Florida Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees and 
the Palm Beach County Code of Ethics.  Accordingly, there are prohibitions and limitations on the 
employment of City officials and employees and contractual relationships providing a benefit to 
the same. Respondents are highly encouraged to review both the Florida Code of Ethics and the 
Palm Beach County Code of Ethics in order to ensure compliance with the same.   
 
Further, any Respondent coming before the City Commission for an award of a contract 
and who has made an election campaign contribution in an amount that is more than one 
hundred dollars ($100.00) to any elected official of the City Commission, who is a current 
sitting member of the Commission, must disclose such election campaign contribution, 
verbally and in writing, in their responsive proposal to this RFP. Therefore, all 
Respondents shall complete the City’s Campaign Contribution Statement attached to this 
RFP as Exhibit “B”. Failure to complete will result in rejection of the Respondent’s 
proposal. 
  
9. DISCLOSURE AND DISCLAIMER 

The information contained herein is provided solely for the convenience of the Respondents. It is 
the responsibility of each Respondent to assure itself that information contained herein is accurate 
and complete. Neither the City nor its agents provide any assurances as to the accuracy of any 
information in this RFP. Any reliance on the contents of this RFP, or on any communications with 
City representatives or agents, shall be at each Respondent’s own risk. Respondents should rely 
exclusively on their own investigations, interpretations and analyses in connection with this 
matter. This RFP is being provided by the City without any warranty or representation, express or 
implied, as to its content, accuracy or completeness and no Respondent or other party shall have 
recourse to the City if any information herein contained shall be inaccurate or incomplete. No 
warranty or representation is made by the City that any proposal conforming to these 
requirements will be selected for consideration, negotiation or approval. 
 
In its sole discretion, the City may withdraw this RFP either before or after receiving proposals, 
may accept or reject proposals, and may accept proposals which deviate from the non-material 
provisions of this RFP. Through its own investigation and in its sole discretion, the City may 
determine the qualifications, experience and acceptability of any Respondent submitting a 
proposal in response to this RFP. Following submission of a proposal, each Respondent agrees 
to promptly deliver such further details, information and assurances, including, but not limited to, 
financial and disclosure data, relating to the proposal and/or the Respondent, including the 
Respondent’ affiliates, officers, directors, shareholders, partners and employees, as requested 
by the City.  Any action taken by the City in response to proposals submitted in response to this 
RFP or in making any award or failure or refusal to make any award, or in any withdrawal or 
cancellation of this RFP, either before or after issuance of the notice of intent to make an award, 
shall be without any expense, liability or obligation on the part of the City, or their advisors.  
 
Any recipient of this RFP who responds hereto fully acknowledges all the provisions of this 
Discloser and Disclaimer and agrees to be bound by the terms hereof. Any proposal submitted 
pursuant to this RFP is at the sole risk and responsibility of the party submitting such proposal.  
 
10. CONTRACT AGREEMENT / COMPENSATION 

The terms and conditions of the resulting contract will be negotiated with successful Respondent.   
If the City and the successful Respondent cannot agree on the terms and conditions of the 
resulting contract, the City reserves the right to terminate negotiations with the successful 
Respondent and move to the next ranked Respondent to commence negotiations.  Negotiations 



 

6 
 
 

may continue in this process until the City is able to enter into a contract with a Respondent that 
best meets the needs of the City.   
 
While the City anticipates awarding one contract, the City reserves the right to award to more than 
one Respondent if it is in the best interests of the City. 
 
Awarded contracts which will cross fiscal-years are subject to the City’s annual budget and 
appropriation process. If an awarded contract is not funded in whole or in part in a fiscal year, the 
City will have the right to terminate the contract without cause. The City need not include a lack 
of appropriations provision in the resulting contract to avail itself of such right. 
 
11. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Prior to execution of the resulting contract derived from this RFP, the selected Respondent shall 
obtain and maintain in force at all times during the term of the resulting contract insurance 
coverage as required herein.  All insurance policies shall be issued by companies authorized to 
do business under the laws of the State of Florida. The Certificates shall clearly indicate that the 
selected Respondent has obtained insurance of the type, amount, and classification as required 
for strict compliance with this provision and that no material change or cancellation of the 
insurance shall be effective without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the City.  Compliance 
with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve the selected Respondent of its liability and 
obligations under the resulting contract. 
 

A. The selected Respondent shall maintain, during the term of the contract, standard 
Professional Liability Insurance in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.00 per 
occurrence. 

 
B. The selected Respondent  shall maintain, during the life of the contract, commercial 

general liability, including public and contractual liability insurance in the amount of 
$1,000,000.00 per occurrence ($2,000,000.00 aggregate) to protect the Respondent 
from claims for damages for bodily and personal injury, including wrongful death, as 
well as from claims of property damages which may arise from any operations and 
completed operations under the resulting contract, whether such operations be by the 
Respondent or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by or contracting with the 
Respondent. 

 
C. The selected Respondent shall carry Workers’ Compensation Insurance and 

Employer’s Liability Insurance for all employees as required by Florida Statutes.   
 

D. The selected Respondent shall maintain comprehensive automobile liability insurance 
in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and 
property damages liability to protect from claims for damages for bodily and personal 
injury, including death, as well as from claims for property damage, which may arise 
from the ownership, use, or maintenance of owned and non-owned automobiles, 
including rented automobiles whether such operations be by the Respondent or by 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Respondent. 

 
All insurance, other than Professional Liability and Workers’ Compensation, to be maintained by 
the selected Respondent shall specifically include the CITY as an “Additional Insured” on a 
primary, non-contributing basis. 
 



 

7 
 
 

If the Respondent is a state agency or subdivision as defined in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, 
the Respondent shall furnish the City with written verification of liability protection in accordance 
with Section 768.28, Florida Statutes.     
 
12. EVALUATION AND AWARD 

The City may assemble an Evaluation Committee to evaluate the proposals or may have the 
proposals evaluated by a designated City official, employee or agent. If an Evaluation Committee 
is utilized, it will convene for a meeting to evaluate and rank the most advantageous proposals 
and make a recommendation for contract award to the City Commission with or without 
discussions. The Purchasing Division will advertise the Evaluation Committee meeting in the 
appropriate media as directed by law.  The City Commission is not bound by the recommendation 
of the Evaluation Committee and the City Commission may deviate from the recommendation in 
determining the best overall responsive proposal which is most advantageous and in the best 
interest of the City consistent with the evaluation criteria in this RFP. The selected Respondent 
will be notified in writing with an intent to award letter.  Recommended awards will be made 
available for review by interested parties by Financial Services. 
 
Each proposal will be evaluated individually and in the context of all other proposals. There is no 
obligation on the part of the City to award the proposal to the lowest priced Respondent, and the 
City reserves the right to award the contract to the Respondent submitting the best overall 
responsive proposal to a responsible Respondent which is most advantageous and in the best 
interest of the City consistent with the evaluation criteria. The City shall be the sole judge of the 
proposals that is in its best interests. 
 
To be considered responsive, Respondent’s response to this RFP shall substantially conform in 
all material respects to the requirements and criteria set forth in the RFP. This includes such 
aspects as following RFP instructions for proper submittal, completing all necessary forms 
included with the solicitation, providing information required by the solicitation, and complying with 
all terms, conditions, qualifications and specification requirements as enumerated in the 
solicitation. Except where specifically authorized in this solicitation, a proposal that deprives the 
City of the assurance that the contract will be entered into in accordance with its terms will be 
considered non-responsive.   
 
To be considered responsible, Respondent shall have the capability in all respects to fully perform 
the requirements identified in this RFP documents. Respondent shall have the experience, 
capacity, facilities, equipment, credit, sufficient qualified personnel, and record of timely and 
acceptable past performance that will assure good faith performance for a city project or 
purchase. The term responsibility is not limited in its meaning to financial resources and ability. 
The City reserves the right to make the determination if Respondent is responsible by taking into 
consideration the Respondent’s past performance on any contract involving similar work and/or 
services; the Respondent’s skill and business judgment; the Respondent’s experience and 
facilities for carrying out its responsibilities, its ability to thoroughly research and analyze the 
necessary data for the services required, to present the data and analysis and to make policy 
recommendations, and the ability to timely complete the services; and, any other relevant 
information which the City may obtain relating to the Respondent’s, its proposed personnel’s and 
subcontractor’s ability to perform the solicited work and/or services.   
 
At its sole option, for larger or more complex studies or projects, the City may select the top three 
to five Respondents and require presentations from each Respondent before making the final 
selection. This requirement is at the sole discretion of the City.  



 

8 
 
 

 
While the City allows Respondents to specify any desired variances to the RFP terms, conditions, 
and specifications, the number and extent of variances specified will be considered in determining 
the Respondent who is most advantageous to the City.  
 
Evaluation Criteria and Scoring: 

The evaluation of the proposals will be conducted in accordance with the following provisions. 
Scoring is based on a 100-point scale. The following guidelines will be used for the evaluations 
(with associated weighting). To be considered “Qualified”, a Respondent must receive a 
minimum aggregate average of 70 points. 
 

EVALUATION CRITERIA 
 

Points Awarded 
 

Responsiveness to RFP 
1. Comprehensiveness of proposal, Respondent clearly 

explained all services to be provided  
2. Completeness of proposal, Respondent included all required 

documentation 

0 – 10 points 

Cost Effectiveness 
1. Hourly rate of personnel for services 
2. Overall cost is reasonable for services provided and in line 

with the current market prices. Points are assigned based 
on the comparison to the rates provided by other 
respondents 

3. Not to exceed price for services has been provided and 
includes all requested services  

0 - 25 points 

Successful Experience and Qualification of Respondent and 
Staff 

1. Experience with similar sized municipalities /public entities 
2. Staff qualifications and subject knowledge 
3. Evidence of experience and skill (heavy emphasis on 

housing related research, presentation of data and analysis, 
and policy recommendations) 

4. Evidence of availability to deliver in the timeline 
5. Successful past projects with the City  

0 - 30 points 

Similar Projects and References 
1. Prior experience with two (2) similar projects in past 5 years  
2. References from at least (3) entities for similar projects or 

work   

0 – 25 points 

Veteran Business Enterprise, Small Business and Local 
Business Preference  
      1. Respondent has provided supporting documentation claiming 
veteran business enterprise, small business or local business 
preference.   
  

0 - 5 points 

Default, Termination, Litigation, Debarment, etc. 
1. Instances of a default under a similar project or contract; 
2. Instances of litigation related to a similar project or contract; 
3. Instances of on any debarment by a local, state or federal 

governmental entity 

0 – 5 points 



 

9 
 
 

 (Note: Respondents that do not address this item in their 
proposal will score 0 points) 

TOTAL 100 Points 

  
In the event of a tie in the scoring, the City will provide a preference to the Respondent with a 
drug-free workplace policy. 
 
13.   PROPOSAL FORMAT 

Each Respondent shall submit one (1) original, one (1) copy, and one (1) electronic copy of 
their proposal, in a clear, concise format, on 8 1/2" x 11" paper, in English. Electronic copy shall 
be provided on USB drive maximum size of 10 Mb.  
 
Each proposal (and all copies) shall contain all the information required herein to be considered 
for award. Omission of required data may be cause for disqualification. Any other information 
thought to be relevant, but not applicable to the enumerated sections, should be provided as an 
appendix to the proposal. If publications are supplied by a Respondent to respond to a 
requirement, the response should include reference to the document number and page number.  
Proposals not providing this reference will be considered to have no reference materials included 
in the additional documents. 
 
Proposals must be properly signed by the owner/principal having the authority to bind the  
Respondent in a resulting contract. Signatures are required where indicated; failure to do so 
may be cause for rejection of proposal.   
 
Only one proposal may be submitted by each Respondent.  
 
Proposals which do not contain or address key points or sufficiently document the requested 
information may be deemed non-responsive and rejected. 
 
All proposals shall be submitted in the format identified below. Failure to submit the required 
documentation in the format identified may cause the proposal to be rejected.  
 
Table of Contents 

Outline in sequential order the sections of the proposal. The sections should match with the 
evaluation criteria. 
 
Respondent Information Page  

Exhibit “C” hereto. 
 
Letter of Transmittal   (not to exceed two pages) 

This letter will summarize in a brief and concise manner the following: 

 General summary of Respondent’s business operation; how long in business; general 
approach to tasks and projects; and, why the Respondent should be selected. 

 Respondent's understanding of the scope of services. 

 The letter must name all persons or entities interested in the proposal as principals. 
Identify all of the persons authorized to make representations for the Respondent, 
including the titles, addresses, and telephone numbers of such persons.   



 

10 
 
 

 An authorized agent of the Respondent must sign the Letter of Transmittal and must 
indicate the agent's title or authority. 

 The individual, university, or firm, etc. identified on the Letter of Transmittal will be 
considered the primary respondent.    

 If more than one respondent is named on the Letter of Transmittal, a legal document 
showing the partnership, joint venture, corporation, etc. shall be submitted showing 
the legality of such.  Submittal for Joint Venture to include executed Joint Venture 
agreement and if state law requires that the Joint Venture be registered, filed, funded, 
or licensed prior to submission of the proposal, then same shall be completed prior to 
submittal.  Respondents shall make their own independent evaluation of the 
requirements of the state law.  The City will not consider submittals that identify a joint 
partnership to be formed.   

 
Proof of Licenses (unlimited) 

Respondents shall provide proof of required licenses for the Respondent and its staff and the 
scope of services to be performed. This shall include: 
 

 Proof of all applicable licenses for goods and/or services to be rendered (including 
registration with State of Florida Division of Corporations if applicable);  

 Statement or proof of required insurance; and, 

 Proof of Respondent’s Business Tax Receipt (as applicable) 

 Other Proof of Specific Qualifications as outlined in Scope of Services  
 
Cost Effectiveness (unlimited) 

Respondents shall provide the completed Pricing Form, Exhibit “A1”. The prices provided shall 
include all of the services described in the solicitation documents (except as otherwise noted). 
Respondent shall provide any additional relevant pricing information to meet all the requirements 
as defined in the solicitation document. Additional services will not be taken into consideration for 
evaluation purposes but City reserves the right to negotiate and include those services as an 
amendment to the Agreement with the successful respondent.   
 
Successful Experience and Qualification of Respondent and Staff (limited to two pages 
plus resumes) 

Respondents shall provide a two-page summary regarding their ability to deliver the requested 
services in the required timeframes and the technical approach to the study (including an outline 
of tasks). Respondents shall specifically include experience and qualifications related to their 
housing related research, presentations of data and analysis, and making policy 
recommendations.  Information regarding dedicated staff and current workload should be 
provided. 
 
Resumes of key personnel should also be included. Resumes should not exceed two-pages per 
person. Resumes should include a description of: 
 

 Training, education and degrees. 

 Related experience and for whom. 

 Professional certifications, licenses and affiliations. 
 
 



 

11 
 
 

Similar Projects and References (unlimited)  

Respondents shall provide a minimum of two (2) similar projects on the form provided and include 
whether the project was completed on time. 
 
Respondents shall provide a minimum of three (3) references on the forms provided 
demonstrating their experience and/or skill with similar projects. Prior experience and skill with 
other Florida municipalities is desirable. Respondents are responsible for verifying correct phone 
numbers and contact information provided. Failure to provide accurate information may result in 
the reference not being obtained or considered.   
 
Default, Termination, Litigation, Debarment, etc. (unlimited) 

Respondents should provide a summary of any default, termination, litigation, debarment against 
or which named the Respondent in the past five (5) years which is related to the goods and/or 
services sought in this RFP or that Respondent otherwise provides in the regular course of 
business. The summary shall state the nature of the default, termination, litigation, debarment or 
a brief description of the outcome or projected outcome, and the monetary amount involved. If 
none, state as such. 

 
Appendix   

Other Relevant and Supporting Documentation (optional). 
 
14.   REPRESENTATIONS BY SUBMITTAL OF PROPOSALS 

By submitting a proposal, the Respondent warrants, represents and declares that: 
 A. Person(s) designated as principal(s) of the Respondent is named and that no other 
person(s) other than the person(s) mentioned has (have) any interest in the proposal or in the 
resulting contract.  
 B. The proposal is made without connection, coordination or cooperation with any 
other persons, company, firm or party submitting another proposal, and that the proposal 
submitted is, in all respects, fair and in good faith without collusion or fraud. 
 C. The Respondent understands and agrees to all elements of the proposal unless 
otherwise indicated or negotiated, and that the proposal may become part of any contract entered 
into between the City and the Respondent.  
 D.  By signing and submitting a proposal, Respondent certifies that Respondent and 
any parent corporations, affiliates, subsidiaries, members, shareholders, partners, officers, 
directors or executives thereof are not presently debarred, proposed for debarment or declared 
ineligible to bid or participate in any federal, state or local government agency projects. 

E. Pursuant to 287.133, Florida Statutes, a person or affiliate who has been placed 
on the convicted firm list maintained by the State of Florida may not submit a proposal to the City 
of Lake Worth Beach for 36 months following the date of being placed on the convicted firm list.  
Respondent certifies that submittal of its proposal does not violate this statute.  
 F. Respondent recognizes and agrees that the City will not be responsible or liable in 
any way for any losses that the Respondent may suffer from the disclosure or submittal of 
proposal information to third parties.  
 G.  Respondent has carefully and to his/her full satisfaction examined the RFP, the 
attached Scope of Services and all required forms, and Respondent has received and read all 
addenda issued and has included their provisions in their proposal. 
 
15.   PROTESTS 



 

12 
 
 

Any actual Respondent who is aggrieved in connection with this RFP may protest such 
procurement. The protest must be filed with the City in accordance with the City’s procurement 
code. A complete copy of the City’s procurement code is available on- line at municode.com under 
the City’s code of ordinances (sections 2-111 – 2-117). The protest procedures are set forth at 
section 2-115. There are strict deadlines for filing a protest. Failure to abide by the deadlines will 
result in a waiver of the protest.  
 
16. EXHIBITS 

This RFP consists of the following exhibits (which are incorporated herein by reference): 
A. Exhibit “A”  Scope of Services 

Exhibit “A1” Pricing Form (MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH PROPOSAL TO BE 
CONSIDERED RESPONSIVE) 

B. Exhibit “B” City’s Campaign Contribution Statement (submit with proposal) 
C. Exhibit “C” Respondent Information Form (submit with proposal) 
D. Exhibit “D” Similar Projects (submit with proposal) 
E. Exhibit “E” References (submit with proposal) 
F. Exhibit “F” Drug Free Workplace Form (submit with proposal) 
G. Exhibit “G” Scrutinized Companies Certification 
H. Exhibit “H”  Veteran Business Enterprise, Small Business and/or Local   

   Business Preference Form 

17. COMPLIANCE 

All proposals received in accordance with this RFP shall be subject to applicable Florida Statutes 
governing public records including without limitation Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. If any 
Respondent believes its proposal contains exempt or confidential information, the Respondent 
must identify the same at the time of submission of its proposal. Failure to do so may result in the 
waiver of such exemption or confidentiality.   
 
18. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES.   

Pursuant to section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a person or affiliate who has been placed on the 
convicted vendor list maintained by the State of Florida may not submit a bid to the City for 36 
months following the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. 
 
19. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES 

A. Contractor certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized Companies 
that Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to section 287.135, 
Florida Statutes, the City may immediately terminate the resulting Agreement at its sole option if 
the Contractor or any of its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if 
the Contractor or any of its subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott 
Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of Israel during the term of this Agreement. 
B.  The Contractor agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts 
entered into for the performance of work under the Agreement. 
C. The Contractor agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied 
upon by the City for the term of the Agreement, including any and all renewals. 
D. The Contractor agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards to 
any certification herein, the Contractor shall immediately notify the City of the same. 
E. As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize 
the above-stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 
 



 

13 
 
 

20.  E-VERIFY  

Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, the awarded Respondent shall: 
A. Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all 
newly hired employees and require all contractors (providing services or receiving funding under 
this Agreement) to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status 
of all the contractors’ newly hired employees; 
B. Secure an affidavit from all contractors (providing services or receiving funding under the 
resulting Agreement) stating that the contractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract 
with an “unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes; 
C. Maintain copies of all contractor affidavits for the duration of the Agreement and provide 
the same to the City upon request; 
D. Comply fully, and ensure all contractor s comply fully, with Section 448.095, Florida 
Statutes;  
E. Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens; 
employment prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of the Agreement; and, 
F. Be aware that if the City terminates the Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida 
Statues, the Respondent may not be awarded a contract for at least 1 year after the date on which 
the Agreement is terminated and will be liable for any additional costs incurred by the City as a 
result of the termination of the Agreement. 
 

END OF RFP 
RFP EXHIBITS FOLLOW  



 

14 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

RFP# 23-200 / Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 
 

SCOPE OF WORK/SERVICES 
 
The City Commission is requesting proposals for the preparation of a housing emergency study 

and a rent control ordinance analysis (collectively, the “Study”) as set forth below.   

A housing crisis consisting of greatly increased house purchase prices and sharply increased 

monthly rents has been observed and formally recognized in the City of Lake Worth Beach. The 

City Commission (“the Commission”) of Lake Worth Beach (“the City”) recognizes that both sale 

prices and rental rates are set by the market and as such are generally beyond legislative control. 

Nevertheless, the Commission is alarmed at the steepness of the increases, and further alarmed 

that the rental and sales price increases are much steeper than local wage or income increases. 

These disproportionate increases in housing costs relative to income increases can be expected 

to lead to both increased housing insecurity and a substantial shift in the income distribution of 

city residents.  

Lake Worth Beach has been known within the South Florida metropolis as an unusual community: 

a relaxed, creative, diverse beach town that has been welcoming to a diversity of cultures and 

incomes: artists, musicians, diverse ethnicities, and the LGBTQ+ community, including LGBTQ+ 

youth. That diversity, the city’s history, and the income range present over the last several 

decades have likely all contributed to Lake Worth Beach’s reputation for authenticity, for 

“realness.” Many also believe that this city character or “flavor” is a key economic engine for the 

city, drawing in exceptionally creative businesses and residents, as well as attracting visitors from 

other parts of Palm Beach County and beyond.  

It is therefore the Commission’s desire to use all available means to protect the ability of people 

and families of income ranges historically present within Lake Worth Beach to find reasonable, 

healthy and positive housing here. While the need for a range of incomes is certainly 

acknowledged, it is explicitly not the desire of the Commission to create a bedroom community 

only available to those with substantial incomes.  

The above focusses on a long-term vision for Lake Worth Beach. On a more immediate time 

scale, verbal testimony as well as interactions with Legal Aid of Palm Beach County suggest that 

there is an ongoing crisis among many renters in our city, with renters of a wide range of incomes 

being suddenly presented with rental increases of $200 and $300 per month, even $600 and $700 

or more. 

Other factors influencing or perceived to be influencing the higher costs of providing housing are 

the proliferation of short-term rentals, rising property insurance costs, property taxes, escalating 

cost of new construction and renovation, location of housing and its age, lack of housing options, 

scarcity of housing and in migration of new Florida residents.    The root causes of the crisis are 

many but having a qualitative and quantitative understanding of their impacts is necessary in 

order to attempt to solve the problem.  



 

15 
 
 

The legislative steps that the City has recently taken (for example Ordinances 2022-12, -13, and 

-14) will help with the construction of new and alternate forms of housing, and are likely to increase 

the availability of housing affordable at various levels. That said, the Commission wishes to 

additionally pursue any other avenues that might provide more immediate relief from these types 

of rent increases. 

This RFP is intended to gather the necessary data to form a defensible, quantitative picture of our 

community and its housing needs. We see an accurately and quantitatively constructed picture 

as the necessary foundation for the Commission to take informed action. Ideally, the data, 

analysis, and resulting picture additionally would be strong enough to provide a legal basis for 

asserting the presence of a “housing emergency so grave as to constitute a serious menace to 

the general public.” While the Commission recognizes that the relevant state statute from which 

this is drawn raises a very high and possibly unattainable legal bar, the Commission nevertheless 

feels that framing the study in this context is an approach that is likely to yield a strong and 

complete picture of our current situation. Therefore, the City Commission seeks, as part of the 

study and pursuant to Section 166.043, Florida Statutes, to secure the necessary data specific to 

the City of Lake Worth Beach (e.g., vacancy rates, rising rents, shortage of housing, increase in 

cost of living, inflation, etc.) and the opinion of a qualified professional to firmly establish, at a 

minimum, the following: (a) whether there exists within the City of Lake Worth Beach a “housing 

emergency so grave as to constitute a serious menace to the general public” (including an 

explanation of how the statistics and other data gathered establishes a “grave housing 

emergency”); (b) what impacts/effects the housing emergency is having on the general public’s 

health, safety and welfare (i.e., “serious menace to the general public”)  (e.g., distress, extortion, 

increase of rents without legal process, evictions, homelessness,  overcrowding, etc.); and (c) 

whether and how a rent control ordinance is “necessary and proper to eliminate such grave 

housing emergency” and the details/requirements of such an ordinance.  For additional 

information on the Section 166.043, Florida Statutes, criteria analysis, the following Fifth District 

Court of Appeal Opinion may be found at the following link:  

file:///G:/Clients/Lake%20Worth/Research/Rent%20Control%20Ordinance/Opinion%20-

%205th%20DCA.pdf.  For additional information, the following documents are available from the 

City Clerk upon request:  Orange County Attorney’s Memorandum regarding the legal history of 

rent control ordinances and the legal analysis of the same under the current statute, Orange 

County Rent Control Ordinance, and the Complaint challenging the Orange County Ordinance 

(without attachments).   

The services may also include, as needed, advice and expert testimony of the successful 

Respondent in preparation for or as otherwise needed for the City’s defense of potential litigation 

based upon challenges to a rent control ordinance.  Such testimony may include, but not be limited 

to, the factual basis to support the professional opinion that a rent control ordinance was 

warranted. 

Goals. Overall, the Commission’s goals for this study are to: 

1) Characterize the extent, scope and nature of housing crisis specifically in our city; 

2) Characterize the secondary problems caused by the housing crisis; 

3) Characterize the possible factors contributing to the crisis; 

file:///G:/Clients/Lake%20Worth/Research/Rent%20Control%20Ordinance/Opinion%20-%205th%20DCA.pdf
file:///G:/Clients/Lake%20Worth/Research/Rent%20Control%20Ordinance/Opinion%20-%205th%20DCA.pdf


 

16 
 
 

4) Provide appropriate data and opinions on Section 166.043, Florida Statutes’ criteria (set 

forth in (a)-(c) above); 

5) Suggest a range of possible solutions, along with timelines for providing relief; and 

6) Gather and analyze sufficient data for the City to apply for external resources.  

Collectively, it is hoped that a study meeting these goals will provide a strong, accurate and 

complete picture of the housing crisis present in Lake Worth Beach, and its effects. The 

Commission envisions a study that produces a complementary mix of qualitative and quantitative 

data. We envision qualitative descriptions or accounts that capture a representative variety of the 

housing problems encountered in our community, accompanied by quantitative measures that 

estimate how widespread these problems are, as well as the parts of the community affected. 

Some example quantitative measures might include: 

- Income distribution 

- Income distribution in comparison to Palm Beach County 

- Family size distribution 

- Age distribution 

- Distribution of Lake Worth Beach housing options 

- Quantification and impact of short-term rentals, time trends in same 

- Housing sales, including types of buyers, price increases 

- Average and median rents compared to average and median incomes 

- Average and median cost burdens of both rentals and home ownership 

- Percentage of households spending more than 30% of gross income on housing broken 

out into percentiles of 5% 

- Rental stress 

- Jump in price during sale (with resultant effects on rent) 

- Owner-occupied purchases vs. small investor purchases vs. corporate investor purchases 

- Overall housing condition and quality  

- Impacts of increasing property insurance and property taxes Impediments to production 

of new housing stock 

- Impediments to renovation and expansion of existing housing stock 

The Commission welcomes additional or alternative suggestions for how best to successfully 

understand and characterize the crisis. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

17 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A1” 
 

RFP# 23-200 Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 
 

PRICING FORM  
Failure to fully complete and sign this Pricing Form may result in rejection of the Proposal. 

 
HOURLY RATES 

 

Position Hourly Rates 

 
 

$ 

 
 

$ 

 
 

$ 

 
 

$ 

 
 

$ 

 

HOURLY RATE SPECIFIC TO EXPERT WITNESS SERVICES 

 

Position Hourly Rates 

 
 

$ 

 
 

$ 

 

NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNTS 

 

Tasks 

 

Not to Exceed Amount 

Completion of all Services as defined in 

solicitation document  

(not to include expert witness services) 

$ 

 

 

 

Name of Respondent: ______________________________________________________________ 

 

Address: _____________________________________________ ST_____ Zip______________ 

 

Phone: (_____) ___________________   Email: __________________________________________ 

 

Print Name: _____________________________________ Title: _____________________________ 

 

SIGNATURE:  ___________________________________ Date: ____________________________ 

 



 

18 
 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 

 
RFP# 23-200 Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 

 
CITY CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION STATEMENT 

 
This RFP is subject to Section 2-101 of the City of Lake Worth Beach Code of Ordinances 
regarding campaign contributions which provides:    
 
Sec. 2-101. - Additional and supplemental disclosures requirements. 
(a) Any elected official of the City of Lake Worth Beach, who is a current sitting member of 

the city commission and has accepted an election campaign contribution in an amount 
that is more than one hundred dollars ($100.00) from an individual or business entity 
having an interest in a matter before the city commission in which the city commission 
will take action, must publicly disclose, both verbally and in writing, such contribution 
prior to any discussion or vote on the matter. The written disclosure must be submitted 
to the city clerk. 

(b) Any applicant coming before the city commission for an award of a contract with the city 
and who has made an election campaign contribution in an amount that is more than 
one hundred dollars ($100.00) to any elected official of the city commission, who is a 
current sitting member of the commission, must disclose such election campaign 
contribution, verbally and in writing, during the application or bidding process 
and before the award of the contract.  

 
Respondent to complete: Check which statement applies, fill in the requested information, if 
applicable, and sign below. 
 
[     ]  Neither the undersigned business nor any of its owners or officers contributed more than 
$100.00 to the campaign of a sitting City Commission member.  [If you checked this statement, 
you are done and may sign below.] 
 
 [     ]  The undersigned business or one or more of its owners or officers contributed more than 
$100.00 to the campaign of a sitting City Commission member.  All such contributions are listed 
below and on the attached sheet of paper (if more room is needed).  [If you checked this 
statement, please fill in the information requested below and sign below.] 
 

1. _________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to the campaign 
of City Commission member ___________________________________. 

2. _________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to the campaign 
of City Commission member ___________________________________. 

3. _________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to the campaign 
of City Commission member ___________________________________. 

4. _________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to the campaign 
of City Commission member ___________________________________. 

 
Signature: 
I hereby certify that the above statements are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and I 
understand that a false or inaccurate statement may result in the rejection of this 
bid/proposal/submittal or the immediate termination of any resulting agreement with the City of 
Lake Worth Beach. 



 

19 
 
 

 
By: _____________________________________ 
 
Print Name: ______________________________ 
 
Print Title: _______________________________ 
 
Print Name of Business: _______________________________________________  
 
Commissioner/Mayor to complete:  Check which statement applies, fill in the requested 
information, if applicable, and sign below. 
 
[     ]  Neither the above referenced business nor any of its owners or officers contributed more 
than $100.00 to my campaign.  [If you checked this statement, you are done and may sign below.] 
 
 [     ]  The above referenced business or one or more of its owners or officers contributed more 
than $100.00 to my campaign. All such contributions are listed below and on the attached sheet 
of paper (if more room is needed). [If you checked this statement, please fill in the information 
requested below and sign below.] 
 
_________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to my campaign. 
_________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to my campaign. 
_________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to my campaign. 
_________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to my campaign. 
 
Signature: 
I hereby certify that the above statements are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and I 
understand that a false or inaccurate statement may result in the rejection of this 
bid/proposal/submittal or the immediate termination of any resulting agreement with the City of 
Lake Worth Beach. 
 
By: _____________________________________ 
 
Print Name: ______________________________ 
 
For City Clerk’s Use Only.  
 
THIS SECTION SHALL BE COMPLETED ONLY IF THERE IS A CAMPAIGN 
CONTRIBUTION LISTED ABOVE BY THE VENDOR OR COMMISSION MEMBER. 
 
Applicable campaign contributions were disclosed in writing above, and prior to the award of the 
contract, the following statements were verbally made at the City Commission Meeting on the 
____ day of ____________________, 202___. 
 

Check all that apply. 
 

_____ Commissioner/Mayor ________________________ verbally disclosed the 
campaign contribution(s) set forth above. 

_____ Vendor, _____________________________, verbally disclosed the campaign 
contribution(s) set forth above. 

 



 

20 
 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 

RFP# 23-200 Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 
 

RESPONDENT INFORMATION PAGE 
 
 

Company Name: _________________________________________________________ 
 
Authorized 
Signature:    _________________________________________________________ 
                           Signature                                                    
 
   _________________________________________________________ 
                          Print Name                                                    
  
Title:  _________________________________________________________ 
 
Physical 
Address:   _________________________________________________________ 
    Street 
    
   _________________________________________________________ 
   City                                                 State                                Zip Code  
           
Telephone:  _________________________  Fax: ________________________ 
 
Email Address:    _______________________________________________________ 
 
Website (if applicable):___________________________________________________ 
 
Federal Identification Number:_____________________________________________ 
This is a requirement of every Respondent.  
 
 
State of Incorporation: _____________________________________________________ 
  



 

21 
 
 

EXHIBIT “D” 
 

RFP# 23-200 Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 
 

SIMILAR PROJECTS 

 

List two (2) similar projects successfully completed in the past five (5) years by the individual, 
university, firm, or project manager, etc. assigned to the project. 
 
Completed Project  #1: 
Agency/company:   
Current contact person at agency/company:     
Telephone: ______________ Fax: _________________ E-mail: _____________________ 
Address of agency/company:     
Name of project:   
Description:   
  
  
  
Project value: ___________  Start date: _____________  Completion date:   
  (month/year)    (month/year) 
Name(s) of assigned personnel: 
Project manager:   
Others:   
 
Completed Project #2: 
 
Agency/company:   
Current contact person at agency/company:     
Telephone: _______________   Fax: _________________ E-mail: _____________________ 
Address of agency/company:     
Name of project:   
Description:   
  
  
  
Project value: ___________  Start date: _____________  Completion date:   
  (month/year)    (month/year) 
Name(s) of assigned personnel: 
Project manager:   
Others:   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

22 
 
 

EXHIBIT “E” 
 

RFP# 23-200 Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 
 

REFERENCES 
 
List below, or on an attached sheet, list references per RFP requirements for providing towing 
services.  Provide the name, addresses and telephone numbers of organizations, governmental 
or private, for whom you now are, or have within the past five (5) years provided services.  This 
form may be copied.    
 
REFERENCE #1  
 
Name of Client: ________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address:  _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone: (______)__________________________  Fax: (______)_________________________ 
 
Contact Person: _____________________________________  Title: _____________________ 
 
Description of services: __________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
REFERENCE #2  
 
Name of Client: ________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address:  _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone: (______)__________________________  Fax: (______)_________________________ 
 
Contact Person: _____________________________________  Title: _____________________ 
 
Description of services: __________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 



 

23 
 
 

REFERENCE #3   
 
Name of Client: ________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address:  _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone: (______)__________________________  Fax: (______)_________________________ 
 
Contact Person: _____________________________________  Title: _____________________ 
 
Description of services: __________________________________________________________ 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
  



 

24 
 
 

EXHIBIT “F” 
 

RFP# 23-200 Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 
 

CONFIRMATION OF DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 
 

In accordance with Section 287.087, Florida Statutes, whenever two or more proposals are equal 
with respect to price, quality, and service which are received by any political subdivision for the 
procurement of commodities or contractual services, a proposal received from a business that 
certifies that it has implemented a drug-free workplace program shall be given preference in the 
award process. In order to have a drug-free workplace program, a business shall: 
(1)  Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and 
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition. 
 
(2)   Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business's policy 
of maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee 
assistance programs, and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse 
violations. 
(3)  Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are 
under proposal a copy of the statement specified in subsection (1). 
(4)  In the statement specified in subsection (1), notify the employees that, as a condition of 
working on the commodities or contractual services that are under proposal, the employee will 
abide by the terms of the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of 
guilty or nolo contendere to, any violation of chapter 893 or of any controlled substance law of the 
United States or any state, for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than 5 days after 
such conviction. 
(5)  Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or 
rehabilitation program if such is available in the employee's community by, any employee who is 
so convicted. 
(6)  Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation 
of this section. 
As the person authorized to sign this statement on behalf of _______________________, I  
certify that _______________________________ complies fully with the above requirements. 
 
 
________________________________________________ ________________ 
Authorized Representative’s Signature    Date 
 
________________________________________  _____________________________ 
Print Name       Position 
 

 
 
 

  



 

25 
 
 

EXHIBIT “G” 
RFP# 23-200 Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 

 
SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES CERTIFICATION FORM 

By execution below, I, _______________________, on behalf of ______________________________ (hereinafter, 
the “Contractor”), hereby swear or affirm to the following certifications:   

The following certifications apply to all procurements: 

1. The Contractor has reviewed section 215.4725, Florida Statutes, section 215.473, Florida Statutes and 
section 287.135, Florida Statutes, and understands the same.  

2. The Contractor is not on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List nor is the Contractor engaged in 
a boycott of Israel. 

3. If awarded a contract, the Contractor agrees to require these certifications for applicable subcontracts 
entered into for the performance of work/services under this procurement. 

4. If awarded a contract, the Contractor agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied 
upon by the City for the entire term of the contract, including any and all renewals.  

If the contract awarded hereunder is for one million dollars or more, the following additional certifications apply: 

1. The Contractor is not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List.  

2. The Contractor is not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List.  

3. The Contractor is not engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria. 

4. If awarded a contract, the Contractor agrees to require these certifications for applicable subcontracts 
entered into for the performance of work/services under this procurement. 

5. If awarded a contract, the Contractor agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied 
upon by the City for the entire term of the contract, including any and all renewals.  

CONTRACTOR: 

By:  __________________________________________________________       

Name: ________________________________________________________ 

Title: _______________________________ Date:  _____________________ 

STATE OF _________________)  

COUNTY OF __________________)  

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of •physical presence or •online notarization on 

this ____ day of ______________ 2022, by ________________________, as the ________________________ [title] of 

__________________________________ [vendor’s name], a ______________________________ [corporate description], who is 

personally known to me or who has produced_________________________ as identification, and who did take an oath that he or 

she is duly authorized to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR to the same.   

      ____________________________________ 
Notary Seal:      Notary Public Signature             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

26 
 
 

EXHIBIT “H” 
 

 RFP# 23-200 Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 
 

VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE, SMALL BUSINESS AND 
LOCAL BUSINESS PREFERENCE FORM 

 
 
Section 2-117 of the City’s Code of Ordinances shall govern the application of a Veteran Business 
Enterprise, Small Business and/or Local Business preference for this RFP.   
 
The undersigned Respondent, hereby claims the following preference:  
 
 

 Veteran Business Enterprise  
 

 Small Business 
 

 Local Business 
 
 
Documentation to support a Respondent as a Veteran Business Enterprise, Small Business 
and/or Local Business must be submitted with a bid in response to the RFP and attached to this 
form.  Documentation submitted after the bid deadline will be rejected.  

 
 
 
 
Signature:  
 
I hereby certify that the above statements are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and I 
understand that a false or inaccurate statement may result in the rejection of this 
bid/proposal/submittal or the immediate termination of any resulting agreement with the City of 
Lake Worth Beach.  
 
 
By: _____________________________________ 
 
Print Name: ______________________________ 
 
Print Title: _______________________________ 
 
Print Name of Business: _______________________________________________  
 

 
 
 



 

1 
 
 

       
 
 
 

     
 
 

 
    REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

 
 

Housing Emergency Study and  
Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 

 
 

   RFP NO. 23-200 
 
 
 

  



 

2 
 
 

 
 

Financial Services 
7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 
561.586.16541770 

 

RFP #23-200 
         

Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 
 

The City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, is requesting proposals from qualified consultants for the 
preparation of a housing emergency study and rent control ordinance analysis.  A complete scope of 
work is attached as Exhibit “A” and incorporated into this Request for Proposals (“RFP”). 
 
Time is of the essence and any proposal received after 4:00 P.M., October 27, 2022January 31, 2023, 
whether by mail or otherwise may be rejected by the City. Proposals shall be placed in a sealed envelope, 
marked with the RFP number, title, and date and hour proposals are scheduled to be received. All 
persons or entities responding to the RFP (hereafter “Respondents”) are responsible for insuring that 
their proposal is delivered to the City’s Financial Services office address by the deadline indicated. The 
City reserves the right in its sole discretion to reject any or all proposals and/or to waive all nonmaterial 
irregularities on any and all proposals. All costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, 
incurred by any Respondent in preparing and/or responding to the RFP are the sole responsibility of the 
Respondent including without limitation any and all costs and fees related to a protest. 
 
Interested persons or entities may obtain a copy of the RFP by contacting the Financial Services office 
at purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov or from lakeworthbeachfl.bidsandtenders.net.  All 
Respondents shall have a Bidding System Vendor account and be registered as a Plan Taker for this 
RFP opportunity, which will enable the Respondents to download the Bid Call Document, to receive 
Addenda email notifications and download all documents without the watermark “preview” on them. 
To ensure receipt of the latest information and updates via email regarding this RFP, or if a Respondent 
has obtained this RFP Document from a third party, the onus is on the Respondent to create a Bidding 
System Vendor account and be register as a Plan Taker for the RFP opportunity.   
 
All proposals must be mailed to: 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 
Financial Services/Procurement Division 

7 North Dixie Highway, 2nd Floor 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

 
 
ENVELOPE MUST BE IDENTIFIED AS RFP #23-200. 
PUBLISHED:  ___________________ Palm Beach Post and City’s website 

 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


 

3 
 
 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 

1. PROJECT OBJECTIVE 

The City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, is requesting proposals from qualified consultants, including 
but not limited to, firms, universities and other academic institutions, etc.,  to provide a housing 
emergency study and rent control ordinance analysis. A complete scope of work is attached as 
Exhibit “A” and incorporated into this Request for Proposals (“RFP”). 
 
2. SUBMITTAL OF PROPOSALS 

Interested Respondents are invited to submit a complete proposal for consideration. The proposal 
must address the items requested, clearly and concisely. 
  
Time is of the essence and any proposal received after 4:00 P.M., January 31, 2023, whether by 
mail or otherwise may be rejected by the City. .  The October 27, 2022, whether by mail or 
otherwise may be rejected by the City.City offices have limited access to the public at this 
time. Courier deliveries SHALL NOT require signature for the receipt. Respondents may 
deliver proposals directly to City Hall during regular business hours 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. 
Monday through Friday. If proposals are delivered in person, visitors shall ring the bell at 
the City Hall front entrance and wait for assistance or by contacting Procurement Division 
at (561) 586 – 1770 in advance.  The City will in no way be responsible for delays caused by any 
occurrence. Proposals shall not be submitted and will not be accepted by telephone, 
telegram, facsimile or e-mail. The time of receipt shall be determined by the time clock located 
in Financial Services. Proposals shall be placed in a sealed envelope, marked with the RFP 
number, title, and date and hour proposals are scheduled to be received. Respondents are 
responsible for ensuring that their proposals are delivered to Financial Services address 
by the deadline indicated.  
 
The City reserves the right in its sole discretion to reject any or all proposals and/or to waive all 
nonmaterial irregularities on any and all proposals. All costs and expenses, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees, incurred by any Respondent in preparing and responding to this RFP are the sole 
responsibility of the Respondent firm including without limitation any and all costs and fees related 
to a protest. The documents included or incorporated in this RFP constitute the complete set of 
instructions, scope, specification requirements and forms (unless supplemented by City issued 
addendum). It is the responsibility of the Respondent to ensure that all pages are included. 
Therefore, all Respondents are advised to closely examine this RFP. All proposals must be typed 
or written in ink, and must be signed in ink by an officer having authority to bind the Respondent. 
Signatures are required where indicated; failure to do so may be cause for rejection of a proposal.  

 
3. CHANGES AND INTERPRETATIONS 

Changes to this RFP will be made by written addendum. A written addendum is the only official 
method whereby interpretation, clarification or additional information can be given. 
 
All questions regarding this RFP should be submitted in the bidding system at 
lakeworthbeachfl.bidsandtenders.net or in writing via e-mail to 
purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov and must be received by the date set forth below for 
questions from potential Respondents. Most questions will be answered via addenda; however, 
if a question is not answered, the Respondent should assume all relevant information is contained 
within this RFP or previous issued addendum (if any). The City will attempt to not issue an 
addendum within three (3) business days of the due date of proposals; however, the City reserves 



 

4 
 
 

the right to extend the due date of proposals and issue any addenda at any time prior to the 
revised due date for proposals. 
 
4. PROPERTY OF THE CITY 

All materials submitted in response to this RFP become the property of the City. The City has the 
right to use any or all ideas presented in any response to this RFP, whether amended or not, and 
selection or rejection of a proposal does not affect this right. No variances to this provision shall 
be accepted. 
 
5. RFP TIMETABLE 

The anticipated schedule for this RFP and contract approval is as follows:  
 

 Questions from Potential Respondents Due OctoberJanuary 12, 20222023 - 
4:00 PM 

 Proposal Due Date and Time  October 27, 2022January 31, 2023 
- 3:00 PM 

 Proposal Evaluation  October 31, 2022March, 2023  

 Contract Negotiations/Approval  November 1, 2022March/April, 
2023 

  
The City reserves the right to amend the anticipated schedule as it deems necessary.   
 
6. VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE, SMALL BUSINESS AND LOCAL BUSINESS 
PREFERENCE   
 
Section 2-117 of the City’s Code of Ordinance shall govern the application of a Veteran Business 
Enterprise, Small Business and/or Local Business preference for this RFP.  Documentation to 
support a Respondent as a Veteran Business Enterprise, Small Business and/or Local Business 
must be submitted with a bid in response to the RFP.  Documentation submitted after the proposal 
deadline will be rejected.  
 
The order and application of preferences is as follows:  For all preferences set forth in this RFP, 
only one preference may be identified in a response to this solicitation. In an event of a tie, for the 
purpose of determining the best value in the award of an RFP where more than one Respondent 
identifies a preference, the Veteran Business Enterprise preference shall take precedence over 
the Local Business preference, and the Local Business preference shall take precedence over 
the Small Business preference. 
 
7. CONE OF SILENCE 

In accordance with the Palm Beach County Lobbyist Registration Ordinance and the City’s 
procurement code, the City’s procurement cone of silence will be in effect as of the deadline to 
submit a proposal in response to this RFP. A complete copy of the City’s procurement code is 
available on-line at municode.com under the City’s code of ordinances (sections 2-111 – 2-117).  
All Respondents are highly encouraged to review the same. In summary, the cone of silence 
prohibits communication between certain City officials, employees and agents and any entity or 
person seeking to be awarded a contract (including their lobbyists and potential 
subcontractors). The cone of silence terminates at the time of award, rejection of all proposals or 
some other action by the City to end the selection process. 
 



 

5 
 
 

8. ETHICS REQUIREMENT 

This RFP is subject to the State of Florida Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees and 
the Palm Beach County Code of Ethics.  Accordingly, there are prohibitions and limitations on the 
employment of City officials and employees and contractual relationships providing a benefit to 
the same. Respondents are highly encouraged to review both the Florida Code of Ethics and the 
Palm Beach County Code of Ethics in order to ensure compliance with the same.   
 
Further, any Respondent coming before the City Commission for an award of a contract 
and who has made an election campaign contribution in an amount that is more than one 
hundred dollars ($100.00) to any elected official of the City Commission, who is a current 
sitting member of the Commission, must disclose such election campaign contribution, 
verbally and in writing, in their responsive proposal to this RFP. Therefore, all 
Respondents shall complete the City’s Campaign Contribution Statement attached to this 
RFP as Exhibit “B”. Failure to complete will result in rejection of the Respondent’s 
proposal. 
  
9. DISCLOSURE AND DISCLAIMER 

The information contained herein is provided solely for the convenience of the Respondents. It is 
the responsibility of each Respondent to assure itself that information contained herein is accurate 
and complete. Neither the City nor its agents provide any assurances as to the accuracy of any 
information in this RFP. Any reliance on the contents of this RFP, or on any communications with 
City representatives or agents, shall be at each Respondent’s own risk. Respondents should rely 
exclusively on their own investigations, interpretations and analyses in connection with this 
matter. This RFP is being provided by the City without any warranty or representation, express or 
implied, as to its content, accuracy or completeness and no Respondent or other party shall have 
recourse to the City if any information herein contained shall be inaccurate or incomplete. No 
warranty or representation is made by the City that any proposal conforming to these 
requirements will be selected for consideration, negotiation or approval. 
 
In its sole discretion, the City may withdraw this RFP either before or after receiving proposals, 
may accept or reject proposals, and may accept proposals which deviate from the non-material 
provisions of this RFP. Through its own investigation and in its sole discretion, the City may 
determine the qualifications, experience and acceptability of any Respondent submitting a 
proposal in response to this RFP. Following submission of a proposal, each Respondent agrees 
to promptly deliver such further details, information and assurances, including, but not limited to, 
financial and disclosure data, relating to the proposal and/or the Respondent, including the 
Respondent’ affiliates, officers, directors, shareholders, partners and employees, as requested 
by the City.  Any action taken by the City in response to proposals submitted in response to this 
RFP or in making any award or failure or refusal to make any award, or in any withdrawal or 
cancellation of this RFP, either before or after issuance of the notice of intent to make an award, 
shall be without any expense, liability or obligation on the part of the City, or their advisors.  
 
Any recipient of this RFP who responds hereto fully acknowledges all the provisions of this 
Discloser and Disclaimer and agrees to be bound by the terms hereof. Any proposal submitted 
pursuant to this RFP is at the sole risk and responsibility of the party submitting such proposal.  
 
10. CONTRACT AGREEMENT / COMPENSATION 

The terms and conditions of the resulting contract will be negotiated with successful Respondent.   



 

6 
 
 

If the City and the successful Respondent cannot agree on the terms and conditions of the 
resulting contract, the City reserves the right to terminate negotiations with the successful 
Respondent and move to the next ranked Respondent to commence negotiations.  Negotiations 
may continue in this process until the City is able to enter into a contract with a Respondent that 
best meets the needs of the City.   
 
While the City anticipates awarding one contract, the City reserves the right to award to more than 
one Respondent if it is in the best interests of the City. 
 
Awarded contracts which will cross fiscal-years are subject to the City’s annual budget and 
appropriation process. If an awarded contract is not funded in whole or in part in a fiscal year, the 
City will have the right to terminate the contract without cause. The City need not include a lack 
of appropriations provision in the resulting contract to avail itself of such right. 
 
11. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Prior to execution of the resulting contract derived from this RFP, the selected Respondent shall 
obtain and maintain in force at all times during the term of the resulting contract insurance 
coverage as required herein.  All insurance policies shall be issued by companies authorized to 
do business under the laws of the State of Florida. The Certificates shall clearly indicate that the 
selected Respondent has obtained insurance of the type, amount, and classification as required 
for strict compliance with this provision and that no material change or cancellation of the 
insurance shall be effective without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the City.  Compliance 
with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve the selected Respondent of its liability and 
obligations under the resulting contract. 
 

A. The selected Respondent shall maintain, during the term of the contract, standard 
Professional Liability Insurance in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.00 per 
occurrence. 

 
B. The selected Respondent  shall maintain, during the life of the contract, commercial 

general liability, including public and contractual liability insurance in the amount of 
$1,000,000.00 per occurrence ($2,000,000.00 aggregate) to protect the Respondent 
from claims for damages for bodily and personal injury, including wrongful death, as 
well as from claims of property damages which may arise from any operations and 
completed operations under the resulting contract, whether such operations be by the 
Respondent or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by or contracting with the 
Respondent. 

 
C. The selected Respondent shall carry Workers’ Compensation Insurance and 

Employer’s Liability Insurance for all employees as required by Florida Statutes.   
 

D. The selected Respondent shall maintain comprehensive automobile liability insurance 
in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and 
property damages liability to protect from claims for damages for bodily and personal 
injury, including death, as well as from claims for property damage, which may arise 
from the ownership, use, or maintenance of owned and non-owned automobiles, 
including rented automobiles whether such operations be by the Respondent or by 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Respondent. 

 



 

7 
 
 

All insurance, other than Professional Liability and Workers’ Compensation, to be maintained by 
the selected Respondent shall specifically include the CITY as an “Additional Insured” on a 
primary, non-contributing basis. 
 
If the Respondent is a state agency or subdivision as defined in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, 
the Respondent shall furnish the City with written verification of liability protection in accordance 
with Section 768.28, Florida Statutes.     
 
12. EVALUATION AND AWARD 

The City may assemble an Evaluation Committee to evaluate the proposals or may have the 
proposals evaluated by a designated City official, employee or agent. If an Evaluation Committee 
is utilized, it will convene for a meeting to evaluate and rank the most advantageous proposals 
and make a recommendation for contract award to the City Commission with or without 
discussions. The Purchasing Division will advertise the Evaluation Committee meeting in the 
appropriate media as directed by law.  The City Commission is not bound by the recommendation 
of the Evaluation Committee and the City Commission may deviate from the recommendation in 
determining the best overall responsive proposal which is most advantageous and in the best 
interest of the City consistent with the evaluation criteria in this RFP. The selected Respondent 
will be notified in writing with an intent to award letter.  Recommended awards will be made 
available for review by interested parties by Financial Services. 
 
Each proposal will be evaluated individually and in the context of all other proposals. There is no 
obligation on the part of the City to award the proposal to the lowest priced Respondent, and the 
City reserves the right to award the contract to the Respondent submitting the best overall 
responsive proposal to a responsible Respondent which is most advantageous and in the best 
interest of the City consistent with the evaluation criteria. The City shall be the sole judge of the 
proposals that is in its best interests. 
 
To be considered responsive, Respondent’s response to this RFP shall substantially conform in 
all material respects to the requirements and criteria set forth in the RFP. This includes such 
aspects as following RFP instructions for proper submittal, completing all necessary forms 
included with the solicitation, providing information required by the solicitation, and complying with 
all terms, conditions, qualifications and specification requirements as enumerated in the 
solicitation. Except where specifically authorized in this solicitation, a proposal that deprives the 
City of the assurance that the contract will be entered into in accordance with its terms will be 
considered non-responsive.   
 
To be considered responsible, Respondent shall have the capability in all respects to fully perform 
the requirements identified in this RFP documents. Respondent shall have the experience, 
capacity, facilities, equipment, credit, sufficient qualified personnel, and record of timely and 
acceptable past performance that will assure good faith performance for a city project or 
purchase. The term responsibility is not limited in its meaning to financial resources and ability. 
The City reserves the right to make the determination if Respondent is responsible by taking into 
consideration the Respondent’s past performance on any contract involving similar work and/or 
services; the Respondent’s skill and business judgment; the Respondent’s experience and 
facilities for carrying out its responsibilities, timely completion and responding to complaintsits 
ability to thoroughly research and analyze the necessary data for the services required, to present 
the data and analysis and to make policy recommendations, and the ability to timely complete the 
services; and, any other relevant information which the City may obtain relating to the 
Respondent’s, its proposed personnel’s and subcontractor’s ability to perform the solicited work 



 

8 
 
 

and/or services.   
 
At its sole option, for larger or more complex studies or projects, the City may select the top three 
to five Respondents and require presentations from each Respondent before making the final 
selection. This requirement is at the sole discretion of the City.  
 
While the City allows Respondents to specify any desired variances to the RFP terms, conditions, 
and specifications, the number and extent of variances specified will be considered in determining 
the Respondent who is most advantageous to the City.  
 
Evaluation Criteria and Scoring: 

The evaluation of the proposals will be conducted in accordance with the following provisions. 
Scoring is based on a 100-point scale. The following guidelines will be used for the evaluations 
(with associated weighting). To be considered “Qualified”, a Respondent must receive a 
minimum aggregate average of 70 points. 
 

EVALUATION CRITERIA 
 

Points Awarded 
 

Responsiveness to RFP 
1. Comprehensiveness of proposal, Respondent clearly 

explained all services to be provided  
2. Completeness of proposal, Respondent included all required 

documentation 

0 – 10 points 

Cost Effectiveness 
1. Hourly rate of personnel for services 
2. Overall cost is reasonable for services provided and in line 

with the current market prices. Points are assigned based 
on the comparison to the rates provided by other 
respondents 

2.3. Not to exceed pricesprice for services has been 
provided and includes all requested services  

0 - 25 points 

Successful Experience and Qualification of FirmRespondent 
and Staff 

1. Experience with similar sized citiesmunicipalities /public 
entities 

2. Staff qualifications and subject knowledge 
3. Evidence of experience and skill (heavy emphasis on 

housing related research, presentation of data and analysis, 
and policy recommendations) 

4. Evidence of availability to deliver in the timeline 
5. Successful past projects with the City  

0 - 30 points 

Similar Projects and References 
1. Prior experience with two (2) similar projects in past 5 years  
2. References from at least (3) entities for similar projects or 

work   

0 – 25 points 

Veteran Business Enterprise, Small Business and Local 
Business Preference  
      1. Respondent has provided supporting documentation claiming 
veteran business enterprise, small business or local business 
preference.   

0 - 5 points 



 

9 
 
 

  

Default, Termination, Litigation, Debarment, etc. 
1. Instances of a default under a similar project or contract; 
2. Instances of litigation related to a similar project or contract; 
3. Instances of on any debarment by a local, state or federal 

governmental entity 
(Note: Respondents that do not address this item in their 
proposal will score 0 points) 

0 – 5 points 

TOTAL 100 Points 

  
In the event of a tie in the scoring, the City will provide a preference to the Respondent with a 
drug-free workplace policy. 
 
13.   PROPOSAL FORMAT 

Each Respondent shall submit one (1) original, one (1) copy, and one (1) electronic copy of 
their proposal, in a clear, concise format, on 8 1/2" x 11" paper, in English. Electronic copy shall 
be provided on USB drive. maximum size of 10 Mb.  
 
Each proposal (and all copies) shall contain all the information required herein to be considered 
for award. Omission of required data may be cause for disqualification. Any other information 
thought to be relevant, but not applicable to the enumerated sections, should be provided as an 
appendix to the proposal. If publications are supplied by a Respondent to respond to a 
requirement, the response should include reference to the document number and page number.  
Proposals not providing this reference will be considered to have no reference materials included 
in the additional documents. 
 
Proposals must be properly signed by the owner/principal having the authority to bind the  
Respondent in a resulting contract. Signatures are required where indicated; failure to do so 
may be cause for rejection of proposal.   
 
Only one proposal may be submitted by each Respondent.  
 
Proposals which do not contain or address key points or sufficiently document the requested 
information may be deemed non-responsive and rejected. 
 
All proposals shall be submitted in the format identified below. Failure to submit the required 
documentation in the format identified may cause the proposal to be rejected.  
 
Table of Contents 

Outline in sequential order the sections of the proposal. The sections should match with the 
evaluation criteria. 
 
Respondent Information Page  

Exhibit “C” hereto. 



 

10 
 
 

 
Letter of Transmittal   (not to exceed two pages) 

This letter will summarize in a brief and concise manner the following: 

 General summary of Respondent’s business operation; how long in business; general 
approach to tasks and projects; and, why the Respondent should be selected. 

 Respondent's understanding of the scope of services. 

 The letter must name all persons or entities interested in the proposal as principals. 
Identify all of the persons authorized to make representations for the Respondent, 
including the titles, addresses, and telephone numbers of such persons.   

 An authorized agent of the Respondent must sign the Letter of Transmittal and must 
indicate the agent's title or authority. 

 The individual, university, or firm, etc. identified on the Letter of Transmittal will be 
considered the primary firmrespondent.    

 If more than one firmrespondent is named on the Letter of Transmittal, a legal 
document showing the partnership, joint venture, corporation, etc. shall be submitted 
showing the legality of such.  Submittal for Joint Venture to include executed Joint 
Venture agreement and if state law requires that the Joint Venture be registered, filed, 
funded, or licensed prior to submission of the proposal, then same shall be completed 
prior to submittal.  Respondents shall make their own independent evaluation of the 
requirements of the state law.  The City will not consider submittals that identify a joint 
partnership to be formed.   

 
Proof of Licenses (unlimited) 

Respondents shall provide proof of required licenses for the firmRespondent and its staff and 
the scope of services to be performed. This shall include: 
 

 Proof of all applicable licenses for goods and/or services to be rendered (including 
registration with State of Florida Division of Corporations if applicable);  

 Statement or proof of required insurance; and, 

 Proof of Respondent’s Business Tax Receipt (as applicable) 

 Other Proof of Specific Qualifications as outlined in Scope of Services  
 
Cost Effectiveness (unlimited) 

Respondents shall provide the completed Pricing Form, Exhibit “A1”. The prices provided shall 
include all of the services described in the solicitation documents (except as otherwise noted). 
Respondent shall provide any additional relevant pricing information to meet all the requirements 
as defined in the solicitation document. Additional services will not be taken into consideration for 
evaluation purposes but City reserves the right to negotiate and include those services as an 
amendment to the Agreement with the successful respondent.   
 
Successful Experience and Qualification of FirmRespondent and Staff (limited to two 
pages plus resumes) 

Respondents shall provide a two-page summary regarding their ability to deliver the requested 
services in the required timeframes and the technical approach to the study (including an outline 
of tasks). Respondents shall specifically include experience and qualifications related to their 
housing related research, presentations of data and analysis, and making policy 
recommendations.  Information regarding dedicated staff and current workload should be 
provided. 



 

11 
 
 

 
Resumes of key personnel should also be included. Resumes should not exceed two-pages per 
person. Resumes should include a description of: 
 

 Training, education and degrees. 

 Related experience and for whom. 

 Professional certifications, licenses and affiliations. 
 
 
Similar Projects and References (unlimited)  

Respondents shall provide a minimum of two (2) similar projects on the form provided and include 
whether the project was completed on time. 
 
Respondents shall provide a minimum of three (3) references on the forms provided 
demonstrating their experience and/or skill with similar projects. Prior experience and skill with 
other Florida municipalities is desirable. Respondents are responsible for verifying correct phone 
numbers and contact information provided. Failure to provide accurate information may result in 
the reference not being obtained or considered.   
 
Default, Termination, Litigation, Debarment, etc. (unlimited) 

Respondents should provide a summary of any default, termination, litigation, debarment against 
or which named the Respondent in the past five (5) years which is related to the goods and/or 
services sought in this RFP or that Respondent otherwise provides in the regular course of 
business. The summary shall state the nature of the default, termination, litigation, debarment or 
a brief description of the outcome or projected outcome, and the monetary amount involved. If 
none, state as such. 

 
Appendix   

Other Relevant and Supporting Documentation (optional). 
 
14.   REPRESENTATIONS BY SUBMITTAL OF PROPOSALS 

By submitting a proposal, the Respondent warrants, represents and declares that: 
 A. Person(s) designated as principal(s) of the Respondent is named and that no other 
person(s) other than the person(s) mentioned has (have) any interest in the proposal or in the 
resulting contract.  
 B. The proposal is made without connection, coordination or cooperation with any 
other persons, company, firm or party submitting another proposal, and that the proposal 
submitted is, in all respects, fair and in good faith without collusion or fraud. 
 C. The Respondent understands and agrees to all elements of the proposal unless 
otherwise indicated or negotiated, and that the proposal may become part of any contract entered 
into between the City and the Respondent.  
 D.  By signing and submitting a proposal, Respondent certifies that Respondent and 
any parent corporations, affiliates, subsidiaries, members, shareholders, partners, officers, 
directors or executives thereof are not presently debarred, proposed for debarment or declared 
ineligible to bid or participate in any federal, state or local government agency projects. 

E. Pursuant to 287.133, Florida Statutes, a person or affiliate who has been placed 
on the convicted firm list maintained by the State of Florida may not submit a proposal to the City 
of Lake Worth Beach for 36 months following the date of being placed on the convicted firm list.  



 

12 
 
 

Respondent certifies that submittal of its proposal does not violate this statute.  
 F. Respondent recognizes and agrees that the City will not be responsible or liable in 
any way for any losses that the Respondent may suffer from the disclosure or submittal of 
proposal information to third parties.  
 G.  Respondent has carefully and to his/her full satisfaction examined the RFP, the 
attached Scope of Services and all required forms, and Respondent has received and read all 
addenda issued and has included their provisions in their proposal. 
 
15.   PROTESTS 

Any actual Respondent who is aggrieved in connection with this RFP may protest such 
procurement. The protest must be filed with the City in accordance with the City’s procurement 
code. A complete copy of the City’s procurement code is available on- line at municode.com under 
the City’s code of ordinances (sections 2-111 – 2-117). The protest procedures are set forth at 
section 2-115. There are strict deadlines for filing a protest. Failure to abide by the deadlines will 
result in a waiver of the protest.  
 
16. EXHIBITS 

This RFP consists of the following exhibits (which are incorporated herein by reference): 
A. Exhibit “A”  Scope of Services 

Exhibit “A1” Pricing Form (MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH PROPOSAL TO BE 
CONSIDERED RESPONSIVE) 

B. Exhibit “B” City’s Campaign Contribution Statement (submit with proposal) 
C. Exhibit “C” Respondent Information Form (submit with proposal) 
D. Exhibit “D” Similar Projects (submit with proposal) 
E. Exhibit “E” References (submit with proposal) 
F. Exhibit “F” Drug Free Workplace Form (submit with proposal) 
G. Exhibit “G” Scrutinized Companies Certification 
H. Exhibit “H”  Veteran Business Enterprise, Small Business and/or Local   

   Business Preference Form 

17. COMPLIANCE 

All proposals received in accordance with this RFP shall be subject to applicable Florida Statutes 
governing public records including without limitation Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. If any 
Respondent believes its proposal contains exempt or confidential information, the Respondent 
must identify the same at the time of submission of its proposal. Failure to do so may result in the 
waiver of such exemption or confidentiality.   
 
18. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES.   

Pursuant to section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a person or affiliate who has been placed on the 
convicted vendor list maintained by the State of Florida may not submit a bid to the City for 36 
months following the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. 
 
19. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES 

A. Contractor certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized Companies 
that Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to section 287.135, 
Florida Statutes, the City may immediately terminate the resulting Agreement at its sole option if 
the Contractor or any of its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if 



 

13 
 
 

the Contractor or any of its subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott 
Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of Israel during the term of this Agreement. 
B.  The Contractor agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts 
entered into for the performance of work under the Agreement. 
C. The Contractor agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied 
upon by the City for the term of the Agreement, including any and all renewals. 
D. The Contractor agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards to 
any certification herein, the Contractor shall immediately notify the City of the same. 
E. As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize 
the above-stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 
 
20.  E-VERIFY  

Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, the awarded Respondent shall: 
A. Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all 
newly hired employees and require all contractors (providing services or receiving funding under 
this Agreement) to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status 
of all the contractors’ newly hired employees; 
B. Secure an affidavit from all contractors (providing services or receiving funding under the 
resulting Agreement) stating that the contractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract 
with an “unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes; 
C. Maintain copies of all contractor affidavits for the duration of the Agreement and provide 
the same to the City upon request; 
D. Comply fully, and ensure all contractor s comply fully, with Section 448.095, Florida 
Statutes;  
E. Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens; 
employment prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of the Agreement; and, 
F. Be aware that if the City terminates the Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida 
Statues, the Respondent may not be awarded a contract for at least 1 year after the date on which 
the Agreement is terminated and will be liable for any additional costs incurred by the City as a 
result of the termination of the Agreement. 
 

END OF RFP 
RFP EXHIBITS FOLLOW  



 

14 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

RFP# 23-200 / Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 
 

SCOPE OF WORK/SERVICES 
 
The City Commission is requesting proposals for the preparation of a housing emergency study 

and a rent control ordinance analysis (collectively, the “Study”) as set forth below.   

A housing crisis consisting of greatly increased house purchase prices and sharply increased 

monthly rents has been observed and formally recognized in the City of Lake Worth Beach. The 

City Commission (“the Commission”) of Lake Worth Beach (“the City”) recognizes that both sale 

prices and rental rates are set by the market and as such are generally beyond legislative control. 

Nevertheless, the Commission is alarmed at the steepness of the increases, and further alarmed 

that the rental and sales price increases are much steeper than local wage or income increases. 

These disproportionate increases in housing costs relative to income increases can be expected 

to lead to both increased housing insecurity and a substantial shift in the income distribution of 

city residents.  

Lake Worth Beach has been known within the South Florida metropolis as an unusual community: 

a relaxed, creative, diverse beach town that has been welcoming to a diversity of cultures and 

incomes: artists, musicians, diverse ethnicities, and the LGBTQ+ community, including LGBTQ+ 

youth. That diversity, the city’s history, and the income range present over the last several 

decades have likely all contributed to Lake Worth Beach’s reputation for authenticity, for 

“realness.” Many also believe that this city character or “flavor” is a key economic engine for the 

city, drawing in exceptionally creative businesses and residents, as well as attracting visitors from 

other parts of Palm Beach County and beyond.  

It is therefore the Commission’s desire to use all available means to protect the ability of people 

and families of income ranges historically present within Lake Worth Beach to find reasonable, 

healthy and positive housing here. While the need for a range of incomes is certainly 

acknowledged, it is explicitly not the desire of the Commission to create a bedroom community 

only available to those with substantial incomes.  

The above focusses on a long-term vision for Lake Worth Beach. On a more immediate time 

scale, verbal testimony as well as interactions with Legal Aid of Palm Beach County suggest that 

there is an ongoing crisis among many renters in our city, with renters of a wide range of incomes 

being suddenly presented with rental increases of $200 and $300 per month, even $600 and $700 

or more. 

Other factors influencing or perceived to be influencing the higher costs of providing housing are 

the proliferation of short-term rentals, rising property insurance costs, property taxes, escalating 

cost of new construction and renovation, location of housing and its age, lack of housing options, 

scarcity of housing and in migration of new Florida residents.    The root causes of the crisis are 

many but having a qualitative and quantitative understanding of their impacts is necessary in 

order to attempt to solve the problem.  



 

15 
 
 

The legislative steps that the City has recently taken (for example Ordinances 2022-12, -13, and 

-14) will help with the construction of new and alternate forms of housing, and are likely to increase 

the availability of housing affordable at various levels. That said, the Commission wishes to 

additionally pursue any other avenues that might provide more immediate relief from these types 

of rent increases. 

This RFP is intended to gather the necessary data to form a defensible, quantitative picture of our 

community and its housing needs. We see an accurately and quantitatively constructed picture 

as the necessary foundation for the Commission to take informed action. Ideally, the data, 

analysis, and resulting picture additionally would be strong enough to provide a legal basis for 

asserting the presence of a “housing emergency so grave as to constitute a serious menace to 

the general public.” While the Commission recognizes that the relevant state statute from which 

this is drawn raises a very high and possibly unattainable legal bar, the Commission nevertheless 

feels that framing the study in this context is an approach that is likely to yield a strong and 

complete picture of our current situation. Therefore, the City Commission seeks, as part of the 

study and pursuant to Section 166.043, Florida Statutes, to secure the necessary data specific to 

the City of Lake Worth Beach (e.g., vacancy rates, rising rents, shortage of housing, increase in 

cost of living, inflation, etc.) and the opinion of a qualified professional to firmly establish, at a 

minimum, the following: (1a) whether there exists within the City of Lake Worth Beach a “housing 

emergency so grave as to constitute a serious menace to the general public” (including an 

explanation of how the statistics and other data gathered establishes a “grave housing 

emergency”); (2b) what impacts/effects the housing emergency is having on the general public’s 

health, safety and welfare (i.e., “serious menace to the general public”)  (e.g., distress, extortion, 

increase of rents without legal process, evictions, homelessness,  overcrowding, etc.); and (3c) 

whether and how a rent control ordinance is “necessary and proper to eliminate such grave 

housing emergency” and the details/requirements of such an ordinance.  For additional 

information on the Section 166.043, Florida Statutes, criteria analysis, the following Fifth District 

Court of Appeal Opinion may be found at the following link:  

file:///G:/Clients/Lake%20Worth/Research/Rent%20Control%20Ordinance/Opinion%20-

%205th%20DCA.pdf.  For additional information, the following documents are available from the 

City Clerk upon request:  Orange County Attorney’s Memorandum regarding the legal history of 

rent control ordinances and the legal analysis of the same under the current statute, Orange 

County Rent Control Ordinance, and the Complaint challenging the Orange County Ordinance 

(without attachments).   

The services may also include, as needed, advice and expert testimony of the successful 

Respondent in preparation for or as otherwise needed for the City’s defense of potential litigation 

based upon challenges to a rent control ordinance.  Such testimony may include, but not be limited 

to, the factual basis to support the professional opinion that a rent control ordinance was 

warranted. 

Goals. Overall, the Commission’s goals for this study are to: 

1) Characterize the extent, scope and nature of housing crisis specifically in our city; 

2) Characterize the secondary problems caused by the housing crisis; 

3) Characterize the possible factors contributing to the crisis; 

file:///G:/Clients/Lake%20Worth/Research/Rent%20Control%20Ordinance/Opinion%20-%205th%20DCA.pdf
file:///G:/Clients/Lake%20Worth/Research/Rent%20Control%20Ordinance/Opinion%20-%205th%20DCA.pdf


 

16 
 
 

4) Provide appropriate data and opinions on Section 166.043, Florida Statutes’ criteria (set 

forth in (a)-(c) above); 

5) Suggest a range of possible solutions, along with timelines for providing relief; and 

6) Gather and analyze sufficient data for the City to apply for external resources.  

Collectively, it is hoped that a study meeting these goals will provide a strong, accurate and 

complete picture of the housing crisis present in Lake Worth Beach, and its effects. The 

Commission envisions a study that produces a complementary mix of qualitative and quantitative 

data. We envision qualitative descriptions or accounts that capture a representative variety of the 

housing problems encountered in our community, accompanied by quantitative measures that 

estimate how widespread these problems are, as well as the parts of the community affected. 

Some example quantitative measures might include: 

- Income distribution 

- Income distribution in comparison to Palm Beach County 

- Family size distribution 

- Age distribution 

- Distribution of Lake Worth Beach housing options 

- Quantification and impact of short-term rentals, time trends in same 

- Housing sales, including types of buyers, price increases 

- Average and median rents compared to average and median incomes 

- Average and median cost burdens of both rentals and home ownership 

- Percentage of households spending more than 30% of gross income on housing broken 

out into percentiles of 5% 

- Rental stress 

- Jump in price during sale (with resultant effects on rent) 

- Owner-occupied purchases vs. small investor purchases vs. corporate investor purchases 

- Overall housing condition and quality  

- Impacts of increasing property insurance and property taxes Impediments to production 

of new housing stock 

- Impediments to renovation and expansion of existing housing stock 

The Commission welcomes additional or alternative suggestions for how best to successfully 

understand and characterize the crisis. 

Part I of the Study.  Section 166.043, Florida Statutes (attached), authorizes the adoption of a 

rent control ordinance only when the local government “makes and recites in such measure its 

findings establishing the existence in fact of a housing emergency so grave as to constitute a 

serious menace to the general public and that such controls are necessary and proper to eliminate 

such grave housing emergency.”  See §166.043(5), Fla. StatPresently, the median household 

income for the City of Lake Worth Beach at roughly $40,000 for a household of four (4) is less 

than half of that for Palm Beach County, which stands at nearly $90,000.   Rental rates have 

increased and vacancies decreased across the County with no appreciation for current housing 

issue. In addition, the cost to construct new residential units has risen consistently and rather 

dramatically over the past few years.  With the household incomes in Lake Worth Beach at the 

very low end for the County, the rental rate increases due to lack of supply and the rents 



 

17 
 
 

necessary to cover the cost of new construction, housing costs far exceed the ability of most 

residents to afford a home.  Data regarding how this disparity has worsened over the past several 

years would need to be provided. .  The statute exempts the following categories of residential 

accommodations from a rent control ordinance:  (1) seasonal or tourist unit; (2) second housing 

unit; and (3) luxury apartment buildings.”  §166.043(4), Fla. Stat.   Therefore, the City Commission 

seeks 

It is uncertain what factual findings and data would be considered adequate today to establish “a 

housing emergency so grave as to constitute a serious menace to the general public” because 

the statute has not yet been interpreted by the courts in Florida since its adoption. However, the 

United States Supreme Court has upheld the finding that a New York rent control ordinance was 

warranted to address a housing emergency “so grave that it constituted a serious menace to the 

health, morality, comfort, and even to the peace of a large part of the people of the state.”  This 

housing emergency was based upon findings of fact “That there was a very great shortage in 

dwelling house accommodations in the cities of the state to which the acts apply; that this 

condition was causing widespread distress; that extortion in most oppressive forms was flagrant 

in rent profiteering; that, for the purpose of increasing rents, legal process was being abused and 

eviction was being resorted to as never before; and that unreasonable and extortionate increases 

of rent had frequently resulted in two or more families being obliged to occupy an apartment 

adequate only for one family, with a consequent overcrowding, which was resulting in insanitary 

conditions, disease, immorality, discomfort, and widespread social discontent.”  See Edgar A. 

Levy Leasing Co. V. Siegel, 258 U.S. 242, 246 (1922). 

Part I of the Study must be completed and presented to the City on or before November 28, 2022.  

The successful Respondent shall present the written Study to the Commission at its Commission 

meeting on December 6, 2022.  This date is subject to change at the discretion of the City. 

Part I of the StudyFor additional information, the following document is attached: Orange County 

Attorney’s Memorandum regarding the legal history of rent control ordinances and the legal 

analysis of the same under the current statute.  Further, the following additional documents are 

available from the City Clerk upon request:  (1) Orange County Rent Control Ordinance; and (2) 

Complaint challenging the Orange County Ordinance (without attachments).   

Part II of the Study.  The Study will also include an assessment of existing housing conditions, 

demographic and market demands, and identify critical housing gaps and issues.  It should 

identify any current and anticipated unmet housing needs and provide an outlook towards 

anticipated housing demands over the next 10 years.  This should be a data driven study that 

identifies citywide and neighborhood focused housing priorities and provides policy alternatives 

and strategies to guide the City in decision making for addressing current and future housing 

needs.  

Part II of the Study must be completed and presented to the City on or before February 6, 2023.  

The successful Respondent shall present the written Part II of the Study to the Commission at its 

Commission meeting on February 21, 2023.  This date is subject to change in the discretion of 

the City. 

Potential Additional Services. After Part I and Part II of the Study are completed, the City 

Commission may request additional consulting services from the Respondent to address a 

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline



 

18 
 
 

broader sociological study and analysis of the effects of housing issues on the community.  A 

detailed scope of services will be provided to the Respondent if the Commission chooses to move 

forward with these additional services and the price for such services shall be based upon the 

hourly rates established in the Agreement.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

19 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A1” 
 

RFP# 23-200 Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 
 

PRICING FORM  
Failure to fully complete and sign this Pricing Form may result in rejection of the Proposal. 

 
HOURLY RATES 

 

Position Hourly Rates 

 
 

$ 

 
 

$ 

 
 

$ 

 
 

$ 

 
 

$ 

 

HOURLY RATE SPECIFIC TO EXPERT WITNESS SERVICES 

 

Position Hourly Rates 

 
 

$ 

 
 

$ 

 

NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNTS 

 

Study Parts 

Tasks 

 

Not to Exceed Amount 

Part I of the Study 

(not including expert witness testimony) 

Completion of all Services as defined in 

solicitation document  

(not to include expert witness services) 

$ 

Part II of the Study 

 

$ 

 

ABILITY TO MEET ESTABLISHED DEADLINES 
 

Study Parts Deadlines Ability to Meet Deadline 

(Yes or No) 

Part I of the Study November 28, 2022  

Part II of the Study February 6, 2023  



 

20 
 
 

 

 

 

Name of Respondent: ______________________________________________________________ 

 

Address: _____________________________________________ ST_____ Zip______________ 

 

Phone: (_____) ___________________   Email: __________________________________________ 

 

Print Name: _____________________________________ Title: _____________________________ 

 

SIGNATURE:  ___________________________________ Date: 

____________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

21 
 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 

 
RFP# 23-200 Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 

 
CITY CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION STATEMENT 

 
This RFP is subject to Section 2-101 of the City of Lake Worth Beach Code of Ordinances 
regarding campaign contributions which provides:    
 
Sec. 2-101. - Additional and supplemental disclosures requirements. 
(a) Any elected official of the City of Lake Worth Beach, who is a current sitting member of 

the city commission and has accepted an election campaign contribution in an amount 
that is more than one hundred dollars ($100.00) from an individual or business entity 
having an interest in a matter before the city commission in which the city commission 
will take action, must publicly disclose, both verbally and in writing, such contribution 
prior to any discussion or vote on the matter. The written disclosure must be submitted 
to the city clerk. 

(b) Any applicant coming before the city commission for an award of a contract with the city 
and who has made an election campaign contribution in an amount that is more than 
one hundred dollars ($100.00) to any elected official of the city commission, who is a 
current sitting member of the commission, must disclose such election campaign 
contribution, verbally and in writing, during the application or bidding process 
and before the award of the contract.  

 
Respondent to complete: Check which statement applies, fill in the requested information, if 
applicable, and sign below. 
 
[     ]  Neither the undersigned business nor any of its owners or officers contributed more than 
$100.00 to the campaign of a sitting City Commission member.  [If you checked this statement, 
you are done and may sign below.] 
 
 [     ]  The undersigned business or one or more of its owners or officers contributed more than 
$100.00 to the campaign of a sitting City Commission member.  All such contributions are listed 
below and on the attached sheet of paper (if more room is needed).  [If you checked this 
statement, please fill in the information requested below and sign below.] 
 

1. _________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to the campaign 
of City Commission member ___________________________________. 

2. _________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to the campaign 
of City Commission member ___________________________________. 

3. _________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to the campaign 
of City Commission member ___________________________________. 

4. _________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to the campaign 
of City Commission member ___________________________________. 

 
Signature: 
I hereby certify that the above statements are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and I 
understand that a false or inaccurate statement may result in the rejection of this 
bid/proposal/submittal or the immediate termination of any resulting agreement with the City of 
Lake Worth Beach. 



 

22 
 
 

 
By: _____________________________________ 
 
Print Name: ______________________________ 
 
Print Title: _______________________________ 
 
Print Name of Business: _______________________________________________  
 
Commissioner/Mayor to complete:  Check which statement applies, fill in the requested 
information, if applicable, and sign below. 
 
[     ]  Neither the above referenced business nor any of its owners or officers contributed more 
than $100.00 to my campaign.  [If you checked this statement, you are done and may sign below.] 
 
 [     ]  The above referenced business or one or more of its owners or officers contributed more 
than $100.00 to my campaign. All such contributions are listed below and on the attached sheet 
of paper (if more room is needed). [If you checked this statement, please fill in the information 
requested below and sign below.] 
 
_________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to my campaign. 
_________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to my campaign. 
_________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to my campaign. 
_________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to my campaign. 
 
Signature: 
I hereby certify that the above statements are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and I 
understand that a false or inaccurate statement may result in the rejection of this 
bid/proposal/submittal or the immediate termination of any resulting agreement with the City of 
Lake Worth Beach. 
 
By: _____________________________________ 
 
Print Name: ______________________________ 
 
For City Clerk’s Use Only.  
 
THIS SECTION SHALL BE COMPLETED ONLY IF THERE IS A CAMPAIGN 
CONTRIBUTION LISTED ABOVE BY THE VENDOR OR COMMISSION MEMBER. 
 
Applicable campaign contributions were disclosed in writing above, and prior to the award of the 
contract, the following statements were verbally made at the City Commission Meeting on the 
____ day of ____________________, 202___. 
 

Check all that apply. 
 

_____ Commissioner/Mayor ________________________ verbally disclosed the 
campaign contribution(s) set forth above. 

_____ Vendor, _____________________________, verbally disclosed the campaign 
contribution(s) set forth above. 

 



 

23 
 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 

RFP# 23-200 Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 
 

RESPONDENT INFORMATION PAGE 
 
 

Company Name: _________________________________________________________ 
 
Authorized 
Signature:    _________________________________________________________ 
                           Signature                                                    
 
   _________________________________________________________ 
                          Print Name                                                    
  
Title:  _________________________________________________________ 
 
Physical 
Address:   _________________________________________________________ 
    Street 
    
   _________________________________________________________ 
   City                                                 State                                Zip Code  
           
Telephone:  _________________________  Fax: ________________________ 
 
Email Address:    _______________________________________________________ 
 
Website (if applicable):___________________________________________________ 
 
Federal Identification Number:_____________________________________________ 
This is a requirement of every Respondent.  
 
 
State of Incorporation: _____________________________________________________ 
  



 

24 
 
 

EXHIBIT “D” 
 

RFP# 23-200 Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 
 

SIMILAR PROJECTS 

 

List two (2) similar projects successfully completed in the past five (5) years by the individual, 
university, firm, or project manager, etc. assigned to the project. 
 
Completed Project  #1: 
Agency/company:   
Current contact person at agency/company:     
Telephone: ______________ Fax: _________________ E-mail: _____________________ 
Address of agency/company:     
Name of project:   
Description:   
  
  
  
Project value: ___________  Start date: _____________  Completion date:   
  (month/year)    (month/year) 
Name(s) of assigned personnel: 
Project manager:   
Others:   
 
Completed Project #2: 
 
Agency/company:   
Current contact person at agency/company:     
Telephone: _______________   Fax: _________________ E-mail: _____________________ 
Address of agency/company:     
Name of project:   
Description:   
  
  
  
Project value: ___________  Start date: _____________  Completion date:   
  (month/year)    (month/year) 
Name(s) of assigned personnel: 
Project manager:   
Others:   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

25 
 
 

EXHIBIT “E” 
 

RFP# 23-200 Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 
 

REFERENCES 
 
List below, or on an attached sheet, list references per RFP requirements for providing towing 
services.  Provide the name, addresses and telephone numbers of organizations, governmental 
or private, for whom you now are, or have within the past five (5) years provided services.  This 
form may be copied.    
 
REFERENCE #1  
 
Name of Client: ________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address:  _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone: (______)__________________________  Fax: (______)_________________________ 
 
Contact Person: _____________________________________  Title: _____________________ 
 
Description of services: __________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
REFERENCE #2  
 
Name of Client: ________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address:  _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone: (______)__________________________  Fax: (______)_________________________ 
 
Contact Person: _____________________________________  Title: _____________________ 
 
Description of services: __________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 



 

26 
 
 

REFERENCE #3   
 
Name of Client: ________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address:  _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone: (______)__________________________  Fax: (______)_________________________ 
 
Contact Person: _____________________________________  Title: _____________________ 
 
Description of services: __________________________________________________________ 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
  



 

27 
 
 

EXHIBIT “F” 
 

RFP# 23-200 Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 
 

CONFIRMATION OF DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 
 

In accordance with Section 287.087, Florida Statutes, whenever two or more proposals are equal 
with respect to price, quality, and service which are received by any political subdivision for the 
procurement of commodities or contractual services, a proposal received from a business that 
certifies that it has implemented a drug-free workplace program shall be given preference in the 
award process. In order to have a drug-free workplace program, a business shall: 
(1)  Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and 
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition. 
 
(2)   Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business's policy 
of maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee 
assistance programs, and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse 
violations. 
(3)  Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are 
under proposal a copy of the statement specified in subsection (1). 
(4)  In the statement specified in subsection (1), notify the employees that, as a condition of 
working on the commodities or contractual services that are under proposal, the employee will 
abide by the terms of the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of 
guilty or nolo contendere to, any violation of chapter 893 or of any controlled substance law of the 
United States or any state, for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than 5 days after 
such conviction. 
(5)  Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or 
rehabilitation program if such is available in the employee's community by, any employee who is 
so convicted. 
(6)  Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation 
of this section. 
As the person authorized to sign this statement on behalf of _______________________, I  
certify that _______________________________ complies fully with the above requirements. 
 
 
________________________________________________ ________________ 
Authorized Representative’s Signature    Date 
 
________________________________________  _____________________________ 
Print Name       Position 
 

 
 
 

  



 

28 
 
 

EXHIBIT “G” 
RFP# 23-200 Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 

 
SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES CERTIFICATION FORM 

By execution below, I, _______________________, on behalf of ______________________________ (hereinafter, 
the “Contractor”), hereby swear or affirm to the following certifications:   

The following certifications apply to all procurements: 

1. The Contractor has reviewed section 215.4725, Florida Statutes, section 215.473, Florida Statutes and 
section 287.135, Florida Statutes, and understands the same.  

2. The Contractor is not on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List nor is the Contractor engaged in 
a boycott of Israel. 

3. If awarded a contract, the Contractor agrees to require these certifications for applicable subcontracts 
entered into for the performance of work/services under this procurement. 

4. If awarded a contract, the Contractor agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied 
upon by the City for the entire term of the contract, including any and all renewals.  

If the contract awarded hereunder is for one million dollars or more, the following additional certifications apply: 

1. The Contractor is not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List.  

2. The Contractor is not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List.  

3. The Contractor is not engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria. 

4. If awarded a contract, the Contractor agrees to require these certifications for applicable subcontracts 
entered into for the performance of work/services under this procurement. 

5. If awarded a contract, the Contractor agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied 
upon by the City for the entire term of the contract, including any and all renewals.  

CONTRACTOR: 

By:  __________________________________________________________       

Name: ________________________________________________________ 

Title: _______________________________ Date:  _____________________ 

STATE OF _________________)  

COUNTY OF __________________)  

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of •physical presence or •online notarization on 

this ____ day of ______________ 2022, by ________________________, as the ________________________ [title] of 

__________________________________ [vendor’s name], a ______________________________ [corporate description], who is 

personally known to me or who has produced_________________________ as identification, and who did take an oath that he or 

she is duly authorized to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR to the same.   

      ____________________________________ 
Notary Seal:      Notary Public Signature             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

29 
 
 

EXHIBIT “H” 
 

 RFP# 23-200 Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control Ordinance Analysis 
 

VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE, SMALL BUSINESS AND 
LOCAL BUSINESS PREFERENCE FORM 

 
 
Section 2-117 of the City’s Code of Ordinances shall govern the application of a Veteran Business 
Enterprise, Small Business and/or Local Business preference for this RFP.   
 
The undersigned Respondent, hereby claims the following preference:  
 
 

 Veteran Business Enterprise  
 

 Small Business 
 

 Local Business 
 
 
Documentation to support a Respondent as a Veteran Business Enterprise, Small Business 
and/or Local Business must be submitted with a bid in response to the RFP and attached to this 
form.  Documentation submitted after the bid deadline will be rejected.  

 
 
 
 
Signature:  
 
I hereby certify that the above statements are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and I 
understand that a false or inaccurate statement may result in the rejection of this 
bid/proposal/submittal or the immediate termination of any resulting agreement with the City of 
Lake Worth Beach.  
 
 
By: _____________________________________ 
 
Print Name: ______________________________ 
 
Print Title: _______________________________ 
 
Print Name of Business: _______________________________________________  
 

 
 
 







��������������������������������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������� �!����!"#� ����#�������#�"��!$��%%��&�#"�!$�%�����#�'���(��)��"�(����#���(�"���#�������#�"������� ������(�����#%���#��#"�(�����#�*$#�� �"�� ��"�!$� �#++��(�(� ����� )�"���"�%"#���(�� �����+�$�!��"�,��"�(�!����(�������(�������������#"(�����-��������"�&�� �#)�������#�"����(�-��������"�&���#)�%"#��(�"����(�&�-��#)�����������#)�)&#"�(�.-������������#�#"�!&��!"����(.�&�+!�"�'�����)�/�( ��#)�����(���"�����#�"��#)��%%��&�#)�����������#)�)&#"�(�'�)�)���(���"���'���(��������&�#)��������(��#�"�����(�$�#���!����'�)&#"�(��#�������(�$.(���0��
12�32	�45'�5455)�)���(���������#.0�6(�5575588�������$&�0 )&#"�(��"��&�#"����(�)&#"�(���%�"�+�������#�����#�'����.1. #"�� ���#���$'�)&#"�(����(�!�&&��#-&��'��������#))����&���%����$����#"�� ���#���$���%�"���#"�#)��&����#���#���$�#)�#"� ��0�#	9:;2�"��&��#�"��������#.0��54557��74486657#��<2	23=�>2	?@�=�?<9?�?<2��
	2;
@:;�@AB9�?	C2�>
D=�
�E�?<2�
	@;@:9F��
C	?��9:G9?2.+9:G9?2�9:G�#D@:@
:�?
0�#	9:;2��?=��@	>C@?��?��F2	H>>0��BI@?<
C?�9??9><2G�
D@:@
:E!2:J9�@:� @3A
:(9:@2F��
	G3=�	@>�+.�$2A:2	 �9	F=�/.��><	9G2	(=F9:��><
??�	@H�)	9:>@A��K93
 �9	
F�!.��<9::@:�F@K932?<��FF@A 	2;
	=��.��?2I9	?

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



�������������	
������������������� ���
�������������

��������� ��

��	������������11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



�����������	�
��
��	���������������������������	������������	�
��������������������������	������������������	�	����	�����������������������	������������	��������
���������	�����	�����������	����	�����	��������	�������	����������
����������
��������������
� ��!�����������"�� 
����� ���#�$$!$$%%����
����� ��$&$$!
�!&&%##$!���	�����
����'����	�������������
� ��!��������������������
�(��������������
����
���
��'�����	�����
����'�����	)���	�������
�����������������********************************����+�+ ��,+��-��.� /���$%��$&$$�� �,+�����������,� 0��1��
+�.2+��
 2���, ������3��
 2��4��5�,,��4������1� ���52-3����. ��������������-���+6����7�/ �� ,��12����8�� 9�������������- ����-����+������� �-/4�����:�0+���+/� �����-���+.�'������� ,��12����8�

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



��

��������	
����������
�������������������������������������������������
����������������
�	���
�������
���� !���!����
�����"����������� ����������#������
��������������������������������$����% ������
�&�����$����%������
�'�(�)����*������'��
�����+�������,������
����"�)���
�&�)���-�"� .�����
�	���
�����*$���% ���������������$����/012345�36�7894:0�;3<42=�>223840=?@�766AB05�638���������������������
�C��������!��$
���������"� ��������%�������������������%������
����%���������������
�	���
�C�����
�����������
���������
��������C��� ������� ��$����C��������!��$�%!���D��������'� ��������#�E'#
��������������� ����������#�������������������������������� ������
�F� ��G �� ��D�$
�H2I0�>@@3BA92A34JK�94L�7894:0�;3<42=5�MN38AL9�OH2I0�;3<42=JK�P32I�9QQ09N�2I0�28A9N�B3<82?@����������38L08�L04=A4:�2I0�>@@3BA92A34?@�R32A34�������������$���S!� ����������S����������!��$���������C��������!��$�%!���D��������'� ����������������������������������������� �������� ������������������ ������������� ����T����D��S!����� �������UVV�����#�������	�W�XYZG�[GY[G�[������������ �!��� ���� �$� �� !����������������� �������������!)���������.�����������!  �������������������������������������BI9NN04:0�23�2I0�;3<42=?@�8042�B34283N�38LA494B0�94L�2I0�B3880@��������)�����!����$����!�����������)$������������������������������������)������������

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



��

�����������	
���������������������
����������������
���	���
��������	��������
������
������
���������
	������������������� ��!��������"#$�%�&��'!�(�)"#$�����*��+�!�%"#�"�)'!�,��"�)�������,-��#�.�")/&)%�"�)�#)(���,#)(���"!�,#�������	�����������
������	�0���12 345647589���	��:�����������*���
���
���
�;�	���������*����
���	<��������������������*��=��	��
�������������
����*������������
:��������������*����
������
�-��-�"#�����>���?$��"(#�@�)!�"�&�"�)�A"!�����-#�#,�&)���B-��!!"�)��������$#C�D.�����-��-$�������"!�E�#���F��GHH�IJ�KLMJ�NOPQRST�UQMLVW�X�YZ[\]Ĥ_\̀�GHab]cd�e\fc�bc�GghgH<�ijj�k�0�l��jml<�jni�o=�
0�lpp�q�or�����<�s0<������		���q0��+���	������<����
��
:�����������������:��*���	�������������<����������
��0��GHH�tẐ̂Hu�bc�vwhx]<�l�i�k�0�l��ypm<�ypn�o=�
0�mz{pq0���=��	��
�����������*
�����	
�������	���������*
	��	�|��;���*����������*����
��|*
����*����:�	��������}����	�����0��GHH�+	�0�i<�~�mo�q<�=�
0�����0��9����*��=��	��
���������������������*�����:�	0�=�	���
����<����
������	��������
������
���
���	���
�����*
������������������:��*�����	
��
��������
���
:����
���������*��=��	��
�������
��	�0��GHH�_w0��k��*�
���	���
���<���������
��	�<�:����������������������
�0������mz{{<��*��=��	��
�������
��	���
�����
��
:�����������*��
�������������
���� ��),�)�!����-#!!�#).�,�#!&���",-�!")��A%�)���$!��)���)�!�F��GHH�~�

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



��

��������	�
������������	����
��������������������������������� ������������������!����� ���"��#������������"�$������������������%����������������������&���������������������"�$�������������������%����������������������&���'()*�+)*�*,-,./(),�0-1+-�2341�45)-.562�+.,�),4,22+.7�+)*�8.58,.�-5�,6(/()+-,�����!�����"���&���"�����"��� �������������"��$���������������&����������&��/,)+4,�-5�-1,�9,),.+6�83:6(4;<��=>������������� ��&�������&����� �����#����%�����������"������������ ������=>��?���������	�
������������������� %������%��%���������@�����������������������%��� ��!��%������������������������=>��?���������	�
�����������������A&���������"��������%�������#������������"�$������������%������������������������������=>��?���������	�
�����������95B,.)/,)-C2�95B,.)()9�:5*7�/32-�*367�+*58-�-1,�5.*()+)4,�+'-,.�)5-(4,�+)*�%&#���������"���=>��?���������	�
	�
���D���������&���"��������������������95B,.)/,)-�/32-�.,4(-,�0(-2�'()*()92�,2-+:6(21()9�-1,�,E(2-,)4,�()�'+4-�5'�+���&���"�����"��� ����"��$���������������&����������&����������������"������%&#�������������&����������������������� �����%��%���������������2341�9.+B,�1532()9�,/,.9,)47;<��=>��?���������	�
	#
������� ����������95B,.)/,)-C2�B5-,.2�/32-�+88.5B,�-1,�/,+23.,;��=>��?���������	�
	�
���D��������������������$��������"��������&������������"�$��������#���������#&��������&%�����"�����$����� ���=>��?���������	F
�������������������������G�&�� ��&���

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



��

������	�
��
���	������������������	�����	�����	���������
���
��
������	��	���������������	��	������������
�������������	������	�������������������	�
��
��������	����������������
������������
�������� �� !"#$%&'(�����	��)*))���
��+����,�+���	��	����	�����������������������������	������	��	��������������������������������������-
�����������
��+����,�./012�345567/89�:4;68/47<�=046>�4?�=@A�347<6;8B78<C�A7DE�FG=@AHI�84��������������,�
���	�������������
�������	���������������������������������J��	�	���,���
��+����,���K���L�(���M�NO���������������������������
���	������	�	�������������	����
��
����
�,��	�������
�������������
���	����������,P�)O����	������
��������������	����
��������������������,���������������������P�����QO������������
���	K��,������	�����������
�������������	��	������������(��R����)*))��L�(�����������	����	��	�������������	�����	�����L�(����������
���S������+����,�������������������	���
��������������	������
���	�����T����U�������	����������	�����������	����	���
���	���	�������,���������	��������	�����	��������	�����	��V������,����
	����	����������(�����	�	���������������������
���)�W������)*)*����)*)N�����������������,������������B8�XEYZC�8.1�;4[1<8�</7D1�Y\\\E��=@A�74812�8.B8�0178<�[101�G<>/]/7̂CH�B72�8.B8�_0B7̂1�346789̀<�;1B<8�B??;6178�D/8/a17<�b401�B�2/<>04>408/47B81�01<6;8/7̂�

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



��

������	��
��������������������������������������������������� ��!"!�#$�%"��&$'�'!���%�(�$�#$�(��!������$(��")�%��"*��"��+"�'%�(��"'�'	���,������������ ��+%�����"�'�#�$����%���"��)%���$�-��������.�������/0�&+%�+�&��+$1���2!#$%����%'�"���")�'�1��$#�*$��$�"�3�)%��%�('�����''$�3�)"��$�#"�$#�("1���*�����"�%*!"'��������"���"#'	��45
��"��#������+$���+��%''��'���%1%�(��%'%�(�����������������������������6����-����7�����������7�������!�"�����")���(%"�$#�$����$�%"�$#�*$�8���%�)#�����'9�#%8�#3���3"����+���"���"#�")�#"�$#�����7����/0����..����.��7����.�-�����:���������������������;���������6���������.��������������7����6�7����7���7����������<0��45
�"!%������������������������������������.������/����-.����.���������"�=���%1��")�'!���%�(�"1��$##�+"�'%�(���#%1��%�'�$'�&�##�$'����$���$���*���������������������:������/0���������������7��77����������7�")��#%*%�$�%�(�$�+"�'%�(���%'%'	��
�'��$�9�45
����"**������$�&�##>)�����9��"��%��%�(9�$����"*!��+��'%1��'��$��(%��$!!�"$�+��"�$����''��+�'���"�����'	�5)�����+%'�!��'���$�%"�9�45
�+$���"�)���+���!$��%�%!$�%"��%���+��#�(%'#$�%1��!�"��''	���?+��@"���3�A$3"��$#'"��%��������+��@"���3�5��"���3��"�!��!$���$��$�1%'"�3�#�($#�"!%�%"��"���+��%''��'�'���"���%�(�������"���"#�"��%�$���'�%��B#"�%�$	��?+��@"���3�5��"���3�$�1%'����+$��B#"�%�$�#$&�%*!"'���'��%���#%*%�'������������ ���C�7�������������������.������/�������������6���-��7�D�7�������

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



��

���������	��
������
���������	���	���������	������
��	��
�	��������������������	�����������������	�������	��������������	���
� �
����!"#���$��%	���&���������
�����	�
����������	��	������
�����	�
�����	��
��	����
���	���������
��&����	���������������������������	���	��	����
�����$����
�����	�
�����	��
��	�����������
�
�
�	��������	���
����	���
���	������$��%	���&�
��	�����
����'�������	��������(��)�������������	��	�����
�'����������������%	���&�
�	'���*����
�������+,-�./012�345678792#:�;<�8�=>���	����)����������&�����	����������?�@?�@�����*����
��������������������''	�����������	�����	����
��
��	�A67B�2C24B279<�2D6A025�67�3487B2�EFG70<�/AF�B48H2�8A�0F�9F7A060G02�8����	�����
���	�������
��'������
�����
��������	���	���
������
�&�875�I4FI24�0F�2J6C67802�AG91�B48H2�1FGA67B�2C24B279<"#��� '�����
��&�����*����
�����������
��	��������	��
��	���K��������������*�
���%	���&��
���
�'	'��
��	������
��	����L���	��������	��������(���	�����
���ML�	������	���������������*�
���%	���&�
��	���'����&��������
����������������L����
���
�
��&��
���������	����������������N0�529J8425�0180�/6���
��	����	������'������
������
���
������*�
���%	���&�842�679428A67BO�8992J248067BO�875�AI648J67BO#�96067B�8�P=Q�679428A2�67�C25687��	���
���'������	��R
&�������	�R
&������
���
���L�����
�����
�S��������'���������	��������	���������������������
����������K���������
��

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



��

����������	
���
�������������������
�����
�	���������	��
������
���
	��
��
���������
�����	���
�������� �����	
���������������
�	�����
���������
���	�������������������
���������������	�������
	����
��
�
�����
�������������!���������!��	��� �	������!�����
�������	
����������
�������	���
�������������

����������������	���������
��
��	
���
� ��
�����"�����
� ��
���������	�
�
���
����������	����#���
�$���
����	
��	���
����������
������������	����������%
�
���&�'%()�
�
	�
����	
��������������
� 	��	��!������
��������������������������
����
�
	��	��
���*������!����������
��!)���
�����������
��������������
���	�����������+�++!������(�����	
��
���
	���
����
� 
	������+�+(����,��
�������
����������
���������
�
	�
���!���
��	�����
�������
���	
�������	����
���	
������������
��	
-�
�����������������	
������	
��
����*�	��!��������� 	
�
������������	��	���
������!����	����!��	����
 �������	
������	
��
��	�����	
��
�������
�������	
���������
��������
��
%������ 
	�����$
���!��������� 	
���
����������	��	���
������!����	����!��	����
 �������	
������	
��
��������	
��
������������	
��
	��������
�
.�������	
�������� ��
������
�������
	�/	��
���
.���,�
��	�����
�����������
���� 	��
�����������������	������	
-�
���
.�
 ���������	
�
��
������	����	
�������
�	
��	��������
���
�����������������	����	�
����������	�����
���������������	
������	
��
����0�1
���
!���� 	���
���
�
	���
.
� �����!�

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



��

��������	�
�����������������������
�
��������������
�
�
���������������������
���������������������������������������������
�������
�
�����
��	����������������������������������
���
��������
�
����
��
������������
�
�����������������������
��� !"#$%&'�(!)*�*#+!,(*-*#$�.!/,)�!+�"0�
��1234555����������
���4�������
��
�������������������
��������
��	��������������
��1355�����65����������������������4�����
����273�525893:9�:��������4�
���������������������
��
��
�������������������
��������
����
���;��������7577�	�����������
����������������
����������
�������
�������	��<���
������
���
���������������������
����
�����������	������
�
�
��������������
�
����
��=>?@�A@BCDEDFB@DG?�HIJD?B?K>�@G�LDMD@�=>?@�N?KI>BO>�PGI�Q>I@BD?��=>ODJ>?@DBE�=>?@BE�R?D@O�S�����
�������	��<���
��T��
�S
�����U�
�������������4�����������
����
����������������
����������
�������
������
�������
��������
���
����
��
��������	��������������������
���<�������V�����W����4�������������
���<���
��
������
�����������������������
�������
���������
����
��
�������
�
�������
������
�������������������������
���
��
���������������������������������
�����������
���
4�������������������������������������X�S���������
��4�
���Y����
��������
���<���
��
����������
������������������
�
�
����������
��������
����������������������Y����
����������	�
�������
�����������������
��	�
���<���
���������������	�
�����������������������
��	�
�������	��<���
��S������������Z���
���������

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

������	
��������	
��
���	������������������������	
����������	����������	�������
�	
��������������	��������
�����	
���� 
���	�
����
���������	���
����
����	�
�����������������������	
���	�
�����
	
������!��	�
�������	�"�
� �������������
�#������
��	
�������
�����	�$�
���	�������
�	
�������	��%���	��������$
	������
�	�������&�
�
	����������������������	����!�������
�������'��	
���������&���
�����	�	
���$����
��$�
�����������
�����	����������
��	
�������������	��
���������	�������	�������
	�������	������	�
���������	��	�
�������	��()*(+�,-(�.//01*2,*0)3/��"��	�������	��������
�����	
�����4�	�
	����������	��	�	�������
�	
�������������	��	
����
 �
�������������
���
��
	��������������
��	�	��5��
���������	�������	��������������������	����	�
���������
����	��	�
�������	������
6��	��	���	
�����7����897:9�:��"�
���	��%���	��	���� ��
��
����/;<<0=,*)>�,-(�(?*/,()1(�0@�2�-0;/*)>�(A(=>()1BC��D,�@0;)+�,-2,�,-(�E0;),B3/��
��
������������	����	�
���
����������	����	����� ��$�����	��	��������	��������������	��
����������<=0<0/(+�F2G3/�,=;(�(@@(1,C��!��	�
�������	��	��
���	�������	���������$����
����
���������
	��
����	�
��������	�	
�����
�
��������	
����������������$����
���	��	��5��
��������!��	�
�������	���	
����
6��
	����
�
���	������	��
�
	
�	
�����	�������	����	������
	�$����
 ���������	����	
��	���
��������	������������

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

�����������	
���	���
�����������������	��
����
��������	����	����	�	��	���	�����
��	�
����	����������	��������	���
��	���
��	�	�������	�����
��	��
��	��
����	�	��
���������������������	�����	�	���
��
��	
��
���
�	��	����������������������	���
��
��	����
������������������������	��	���	�����������	�	�������	����
�����������	��	���
��	�	�����������	� �������
�
�
��	�
�������
���	���
������
�	���	��
�����	�	��
���
��	����
����������	�!"#$%&�'(�)*+*,&%-*�'.*%,�,%/.'�'(�*+!,*--�'.*%,�(!%0%(0�(0�'.%-�%--"*1�*2*0�%3�'.4'�%-�4$$�%'�5%$$�*2*,�#*1�40�(!%0%(067���8������	�9�����
�����
����	� ������
��	
�	���*�',%4$�&(",':-�(,;*,�	��������	��	����
����������������<	�	��	��	����	��������������
�	��	������	����������	�	����������	�9�����
���������	������
����	����
��������	��	����	�����������	=�	��������	����
������������	��	��	������	� �������
>	�����%--"*�5%'.�'.*�;*0%4$1�#"'�%'�;%-!"'*-�'.*�',%4$�&(",':-�&(0&$"-%(0�'.4'�%'�5%$$���>	�����������		���������������	�����
��	����	�	�������	��
���������
�������	�9�����
������������	������???@ ABCDECFE�GH�IJKLJMN*�,*2%*5�'.*�',%4$�&(",':-�;*0%4$�(3�'.*�O--(&%4'%(0:-�P('%(0�3(,'*P!(,4,Q�%0R"0&'%(0�%0�4�).Q#,%;7�P400*,6��STT�UVWXTYZW[[T�\]̂ VX�_V̀Ta�bb_�Zc�SdVdT��e�f�����g��ehg���eij�k��
��ef�lm�k���
�����������	m���<	����	���	
��	�	�	��	���������
���
�����������	�
��
�������	������
��
���	����

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

�����	
���������������
���������
����������	���
�������	
�����������	�������	��	���������������
��
����	������������� �!�"#������� �!$�%&��'�������()$���*%�+,����(&*-��.�����
���
$��	�	/�0��	�123�14567�89:41;<�73=67��������������	�����$��>��>�0	����
>�
��	��	��	���
���	�$��������
�>����	�	���		��>	�����	���	������?����!"�@@��ABC����� �D�EE�$���*�'��%���
���F&G�E���"#��H#�IBJ�!���HK#�L�#�BM���HK#��BCCNOP$�))Q�'��������*$����%�+,���F
>�RS���**�-���T>	�,�������'���	0	�S���
�>����0���	��������U���
�
	�
����
>	��������	������
	0���������V���
���������W��X�@��YZH�BB �[�"� H#��B#�"#���HK�BM�I�\�!B�"�@@�$�QF(�'������*]Q$��*])�+,����((F-��T����
����
>����	��	�$�
>	����
���		̂��_��
�0��
�	�
�����>̀��-�������
��
������̂	��>�����������	������
>	�0	��
�G��-�
>	���̂	��>����������	������	�>��0G�%-�
>	����̂���������	a��
	��	_����	0	��G�����]-�
>�
�
>	����������
	�	�
�������
��
>	���V���
�����b���T>	�5cd:c8159c;<�e49e9c3c1�f:<1�3<16g75<2�3682�373f3c1�h512�89fe313c1�����
��
����	���	��	�������B�\� ������H�i��!�MB �IZ�#�j�� ��!!D�b�\#�"#�k�\Z\\�$��Q��'��%��Q&$�)��+,���]
>�RS���*�]-��l������	�	0	�
����0�����_$���
���������
������
�	�
	�������V���
���������mnop�qrsNt�uv�wrontx�yp�j@B �X Bz�D�EE�$�%�)�'��%����*�$������+,����*��-���T>	�
���������
�����	���������	��
>�������U���
�
	�
$����������	�
�����	�
�����_�1261�123�{9:c1|�26}�123�g:4}3c�19�3<16g75<2�123�~4}5c6c83;<�

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

������	
���������������������������	�����	��������	������	�	��	������� !"#$�%&"'�(�)�*+,��-)+�."$�/�0	����/�����1�������1���0��0����������2�������	���/�����1������0��0��������3�!�4�"'�"'&�5$$��.6".�-#$�!&7 &$"�"��&-8�.-�"'&�9!(.-6-�&#$��/��0:�	�����	���:���	��;��	�����/��	������	����/��:�	��<����	�����0�����1�	��/���=���	�	�	�/����0��������>?@ ABCDEFGFH��	�����0���	�0���0	�
�0��0�����	��	�	��I���0��	����J����<�	��	����
���K�
�	����00�����	��:��	���/��	��0���:���1����	�	��L������0�����	��<����	���::��
���M
�0��	���	��J�/����	��	�	��	�����0���	���������	�:����1�	��	�	��I���0��	����������	���//���������<�����:���	����������;��	��:�
��	���J������	����<��0���	��	�������	������<��0���	������:�������1�<����	���::��
��/������0���	�	�	�������������0����N@ OGPQDGRSST�SU�VWXXQFF�SB�YRQ�ZQ[GYFH���	�<���������<�	��	������K��������/���00������	��:��	���/��	��0���:���	��I���0��	��������	�������0�:���	����\��	���0�����<��0���:���]̂ �̂]_̀aa�bc�dèaaf���g����������h����h���i������	�jkI����g�������	�����	�:��	�.)) $"!6"&�l6��)&6!�)&*6)�!.*'"�"��!&).&3�!&7 &$"&(mn��]̂ �̂ofpqrstc�ta�uvwafwx�yz_c�bc{ef||fz���������������}����}��i�����	��jkI��~gg����H��I���0��	��������
:	��	�����	�������/���<�	���	��0�����1���

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

�� ����	
�������������������������������������������� �������!��������� ������"���������������� �������������#��������������������$��� � ������#��������� %������ ���������� ��&'�(�()����������*���������� ��!�������+,,,��-��./0��#�������������1� �������� ���!��2���������������������������#��������� �� ������1�� �������3455�6789:;�7<�57=45�;95<>/�%�� �� �� ���� �� ����� ��2����/� �������2�?��@���!����+,,,��-��./0�������1� �����$����� �������� ������������������#��������2��������1�� ������� �������� � �������%����������4:9�3A7B�CA=7A����� ��2����D9A9:45�548E?��, �������2����������1�� ���������/�������� �������� �2�����������������F�/���������G4;�A7B�36:99H6B9I?����������������J��K�/� ������ ��������#������������K���L��� � /�������2�� �M������ ��$��/� ������ ������� ��NOO�������� ��&'�(�().&0������ ��������� �����������/ �#��� ����M������ ���K�#��������� ����������������� ���� ������������P�Q����2������ � ���������������������������2�����2�������%�������##�����#������� /��� ������� ��� ���������K���������������� ��� ���� ��##�����L�����������%���������� �� ��� �����������#�� ��� ��������� ������������ �#�������%������������������ �������������RR�
S����T
UT�
�VU��W�X��V��� ��Y�RV�Z��U[R�Z��X�
Z��S�2��������RU�Z
�\���R�VU��URV�V[V����R�
�U[R�X�����VU�V���Z��
�W�T[]W����.̂�������������0��!������������������������������M����������1�� ������6:7_9�BG9�39̀C;B9A=9�CA�<4=B?�7<�CB;�4I76B9I�59DC;54BC_9�<CAICAD;�����K����� /a�bc�4�3G7d;CAD�

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

�������	
�����������������������������	������������������������������������������ �!��	�����"�#����������� �� ���"������	��������������������!�������	�����
����"�� �� ��������������������������������������������	
$��%&&�'�(�)*�*+,(-.�,�-,/-.�,0-)��12��3�45�5�6�������7������������8����9���������.:������;<=�����������>?=5������7�5;@����5=���572��?�@<AA�?����2������7����@����?���?�B<5?�4���@)�5) �CDE��������������	
$�F����G�����H�"����	�8��I��"�����"����������������������35@�5�6���<@5�6��������	
G�����5@�?�B<5?�=�/2�@���5����(�)*�*+,(-���=�,�-,/-)��J����������������@���<���=��@�����=�75�������������������	
.��/<��:�������@��?��5��5�@�4���5�6�/2����@5=�?5�6�5�@�A;�5����=��?=5��?2�A</;5��4���5�6���������54���7������4���)��K��"�������G�L�������	����"���������������	����M�G��N�3��<@�C5�6E��;;�������3�<�;���=�@�?<��<?�;��;<�@8������/��?��������4���5�6��7���=5@A<��=���M�$���OPQRS&�TU�VQWX&Y�%XRX&Z.�[\�];�)�̂)�J��_;2�̀�aa.�̀(**�,];�)�b<6)�(�.�(*((-�,B<��5�6�cdRefgR�OQXhU�TU�iRXZPQ.�+++�̀�)�+=��0(.��0a�,];�)�(*((--)��j2A5��;;2.�����/�@���k5=������7�:�����������@��=���?4�4�����:����������=���4�@�7?�4���=5��5���?2�A</;5@��=��;�@�����������54�)��lYU����̀(*�)��m�"�����G�"�	����������"���������������������������	
��:�@���44��;2���"������"���������������I��������	��!���������I�	��	������	�������������������������������	�����I�������"������	����$���no&pS&Qeh.�qrsturvwt�

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

������	�
�������������������������������������������� !"�#$!�%&'#(�
���)����������������������������*���+,-�./01-21�30�4,3.,�1,-�516171-�75-5�89:;<=>?�@A@B?@>CDE�FB:G=H@<�6II313/06J�.J7-5�1/�315�K-6030L*��M0I--I��1,-�NJ/O3I6�P7QO-K-�R/7O1�I35.755-I�60I�I-S30-I�6�89:;<=>?�@A@B?@>CDE�T-S/O-�1,-�NJ/O3I6�U-L35J617O-�6I/Q1-I�1,-�1-OK�30�����*��PQ-.3S3.6JJV��30�-W6J76130L�K7J13QJ-�.65-5�SO/K�1,-�X031-I�P161-5�P7QO-K-�R/7O1��1,-�NJ/O3I6�P7QO-K-�R/7O1�./0.J7I-I�1,61�60�-K-OL-0.V�465�8YZ[9@�:>\D�];<Z=̂=C_Z=:>E�̂:B�_�B@>Z�C:>ZB:\�A@_<;B@̀�������a�b�����c���	��d�e�����f�g���h�)��d��i���P/*�iI�jk���jkl��NJ6*����i�*�+,-�e�����f�m:;BZ�>:Z@H�Z9_Z�8@A@B?@>CDE�9_H�8n--0�06OO/4JV�I-S30-IE�=>�Z9=<�./01-21*��)f*��M1�I-.J6O-I�1,61�8Y_[0�30.O-65-�30�1,-�./51�/S�J3W30L��60�30SJ613/06OV�5Q3O6J��6J/0-�35�0/1�6�o7513S3.613/0�S/O�O-01�./01O/J�J-L35J613/0�4,3.,�J3K315�1,-�_A:;>Z�:̂�B@>Z�p9=C9�_�Z@>_>Z�A_D�n@�B@q;=B@H�Z:�F_D̀E��)fd��M0�/1,-O�4/OI5��8YZ[9@�A@B@�=>_n=\=ZD�nD�_�?B:;F�:̂�Z@>_>Z<�Z:�K--1�O-01�Q6VK-015�35�0/1�57.,���r-�O-W3-4�I3.13/06O3-5�Q7TJ35,-I�.J/5-�1/�1,-�13K-�/S�-06.1K-01�n@C_;<@�<:A@Z=A@<�_�p:BHs<�;<_?@�@G:\G@<�:B�C9_>?@<̀��t:B�@u_AF\@v�H@F@>H=>?�:>�Z9@�C:>Z@uZv�8<F_AE�A=?9Z�:B�A=?9Z�>:Z�A@_>�<:A@Z9=>?�./KQJ-1-JV�I3SS-O-01�0/4�1,60�31�I3I�S3S1V�V-6O5�6L/*��w-B@v�8@A@B?@>CDE�9_<�1,-�56K-�I-S30313/0�1/I6V�65�31�I3I�30�����*�����������������b������xy�z{���� ����������� ,11Q5|}}444*K-OO36K~4-T51-O*./K}I3.13/06OV}�-K-OL-0.V��H@̂=>=>?�8@A@B?@>CDE�_<�8_>�;>̂:B@<@@>�C:An=>_Z=:>�:̂�.3O.7K5160.-5�/O�1,-�O-57J130L�5161-�19_Z�C_\\<�̂:B�=AA@H=_Z@�_CZ=:>E�̀���9@�I3.13/06OV�I-S30313/05�/S�1,-�/1,-O�1-OK5�4-�I-S30-�30�1,35�/Q303/0�6J5/�,6W-�0/1�.,60L-I*���

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

�������	��
��������������	���������
����������
�������������������	��������������������
����������������������������������	������
���������������� �!"���#$�!#��%&��!#���# ������$��%�'�#(�)*� +,-��./01�23�4/56/�7859:�;<�=2>08�?2@8>AB�CD9<E�FGH�I�J�K���LME����N�K�OP��J��Q�MR�OS�����E�TJE�
��
�����	��������������������	�������RJ��U������������
����E�������������������
��
�����������V�W!����)��X���������Y����	��
�-�!#���
�����KHJG�GFOKR�����OHRO�R�
����������!&!����&��#!#WZ���*� !���+� %#�!$��!#W��[��\#!��$�]�����])*��&��̂%)��X�������������������
��������	���������������������������������
��������Y�&��W�# +,-��_88B�8<̀<E�.2D5̀8E�M��P��J�VJ�a��b�����IKG��O����	�����c����	����
������������������������������W!����)��X��d%�(�*�%$) �Z��#$���	�������������E������������	�������RJ�I�
�����KHJG�GFX�����) �)���*�%"!$���e)��[����"!$�# ������%��[��� %*��%e��[�����&�Y[%)�!#W��&��W�# +,-��I�
�����KHJG�GFOFR��������������������� %#��%��%�$!#�# ��Y�[�������&!#�����#$��f*!���d!�[!#�g�+���-��#$� �##%������c����������������
������������������������������	����������
�����KHJG�GFX����h)!��&�#��,�%̂#�!$��!#W��[��%�$!#��+�&��#!#W�%e��[�����&�Y[%)�!#W��&��W�# +-�!#�
���cE����
��
����i�����������
�������i�������������������	�����	��
��
���������������
�����KHJG�GF�����������������c��
��E�

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

�����	
���������������
�	�	�
�
�����	���	
��	����	���������	������	�
��������	�	�
�������	�������������	������������������������������
��	
���	�������������������������	��
����	����	��	�
�������	
	�	�
����
���	�����������������������������	�
����� � !����	�����
����������
���������"��
���
�����
���#������	����	����	
�	
���	
�����$��	
�
�����
����	����������	
����%&'()(*�+,�-.+/0)(*�&%&1*&(234�'0�/0&5�)(�6.)0�2+(6&768��9.&�:15)('(2&;0��	
�	
������	����	��������	�
�	
�������������������������������
����
�	
������	
��������������
�����������	
�	
���
����������������	
����	�	��	
�<���� �����	���	�������������	����	����061/26/1'=�)00/&0�1'6.&1�6.'(�'�-0/55&(4�+1�-�
�>�����4�+22/11&(2&8� $������	
�	
����������������������
���	�������
������	�������?$@AB"�C��
���	�������
	
����������	
����	�	���������	
��	
��	���	
��	
����	�
������	
���	������
����
������������D�������E=+1)5'�F/G1&%&�H+/16�.'0�.&=5�6.'6�'(�-)(21&'0&�)(�6.&�2+06�+,�=)I)(*�J'(�	
����	�
�����	���K����
��	��
�����L���	�	�'6)+(�,+1�1&(6�2+(61+=�=&*)0='6)+(84�MNOOPQRRS�TRPON���U��V���������� W���#���?��
��������
������
�������?��
���������������������������������������	
����	�	�
���������	���
����������$��	
�
����#���?��
����������������������������	���������������
����
�������
���2'(�1&'2.�'�-6)GG)(*�G+)(64�6.'6�%'X&0�6.&%�+(&8��Y/6�6.&�61)'=�2+/16����
��

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

�����	
����	�
��
�����������������������
�������������	�����
����������������� �!"#$%�&�'%(�)*'+�)��,-��#'�)�%)* .*'+� ���)/��"%%�&*�)*�'��)�)/��������0���
�1���
�����0�
�2��������
������
������0������������������0�3������
�
����0�����
04�
��
0�����
����0�2��5��������4
�����
����
�����6�����
�4����0�4�	������4��������0�����
2������04����0����0��
2��������04���0����0���������2�40�����
������������0�4���0
��	��3������74�
�0��4���
���88�.*'+�)/�����*'��.�,��'*'+�� ���9/�(%*'+��,��+�'&.�:�0�������������
����������;��������
����<=�>�>?��	����4������0����0�2��@�(').�&�''�)�8��A��)/��9�B*%)�'&��*'� �&):�� ���9/�(%*'+��,��+�'&.:�����

�������1���
����������
�0������������
����<=�>�>?C<D�0���=C�D��E���
�24���������
04�����������4��������
������0������E���
0�
���
�������0��
044��4
3�4���������������������
������
����044��2������������
�0��$%�A��*�*).��

� 9FGH��2�0I��0���������
�����0����
�������0��������2����04����4
�:JI���
������5��������4�����I�������;
���������0�9����
�2��,��+�'&.K:�%�&)*�'�LMN-OLOP���Q(*��%�0����������	
�2�
��0������03���G��
�
044���������0�����04�����R�
������0������2�������9%��+��A���%�)��&�'%)*)()����%��*�(%�,�'�&��)��)/��+�'�����8(S�*&-:�T�LMN-OLOPUMV��C=DC�D��6���������
����
�����0���0���04��������
��������	��020
�����
�����������
�0�����0�
�2��������������
������;���

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

�����	�
��������������
������������������������������������������� ��������������������!�����"�#$$�%$&'($)�*$+,-$./,�#$0$&-1�2$3�4566$78'-$�98(-85&'.:�;<=>?@A�%$&'($)�*$+,-$./,�B18.C�2$3�D&-$.&'-85&'6�98(-85&'.:�;<=><@"���E�F�G	�����������������HI��J��J�������KI���
� � LM�N�)����������"�#$$�OP+68()�*$+,-$./,�#$0$&-1�2$3�4566$78'-$�98(-85&'.:�;<=>?@A�OP+68()�*$+,-$Q/,�B18.C�2$3�D&-$.&'-85&'6�98(-85&'.:�;<=><@"��R�S�����������)���������L�����TL��������������U�L��V�!���������������L������������NV������N������L���������W������������!�������������X������U�L��V�N���Y����',�'�3156$"�Z��������[��!��L  ����[������������� ������������ ��N�!���"��R���\����!�]�����]L �����U�L���!��������!���������������!������L������V����M�����������F�����J���HI��̂�HG_G	�HG����_�����	G����������	�"���̀C7'.�ab�c$0:�c$',8&7�45b�0b�#8$7$6)��de�\"]"��f�)��fd�;<=��@"�R���c$0:�U�L���!��N��g�!�������������������	��HI�H�K����H������	�����F������G��__G	G��H��JJ����_��K���G���I���������J��H���H
��F�H�����HI�H�K��������h��HI�H�GH�	��HGH�H����������L������N������������M��)�����M��V)�N��[���)���!��W���������� ��N��5i�'�6'.7$�j'.-�5i�-1$�j$5j6$�5i�-1$�,-'-$k���DCb�;�� �������!!�!@"��l��c$0:)�����]������[�m�n�o��S�N���!��L����L��N��!�������������[[�N��!���M����� �����[����� � LM�N�"��DC"�����fdpf>"��R�������NML!�!�������������[���L����������n���	��G����KG��J������GH���q����H�J��_GH���G������JJ��Gh������_������H�

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

����������	
�����	����	���	������������	����������
���	����������	������	������	�������
��	���	��������������������������������	���
���������������������
���	��������������������
�����	��	����	�������������������	����	�����������������
��	���������� !"#$%&�'()* *'+,$%&�!%,�-$%#!%$.!*/� '%,$.$'%#0�,$#)!#)0�$11'*!2$./0�,$# '13'*.0�!%,�+$,)#4*)!,�#' $!2�,$# '%.)%.56��78����9���������:'"%./;#�2)&$#2����������������������
�������	��	�������������������������������������<'"#$%&�)1)*&)% /�$#�-#'�&*!()�!#�.'� '%#.$.".)�!�#)*$'"#�1)%! )�.'�.<)�&)%)*!2�4"=2$ 56��>�?@A5B?BCD@E5��F���	��������G	
�����������	����	��������������������������	���������������	�����	�������	
������H'.<�.<)�.*$!2� '"*.;#�'*,)*�!%,�$.#�I")#.$'%$%&�'3�J*5�H)$.# <�!.�.<)�)($,)%.$!*/�����������	������������������	�������	�
���	����������
����K������	�����	�.<)�.*$!2� '"*.;#�I")#.$'%#��L���M��������������������������������	���������.<!.�*)%.#�<!,�=) '1)�#'�<$&<�.<!.�-)##)%.$!2�+'*N)*#� '"2,%;.�!33'*,�.'�2$()�����	�O����������	��
����56��P)�)Q42!$%),�.<!.�<)�3'"%,��	��������������.<)�<'1)2)##�4'4"2!.$'%�<!,�=) '1)�#'�&*)!.�.<!.�$.�-'()*+<)21),�4"=2$ �#)*($ )#6�!%,�-.<)�&)%)*!2�4"=2$ �,$,%;.�<!()�!  )##�6��9���	���
������������%'�)($,)% )�.<!.�.<)�-*)%.�$##")6�4'#)#�!%/�,!%&)*�.'�-4)'42)�+<'�!*)%;.�*)%.)*#�.<)1#)2()#56��R��������	��	��������S���������������
��	���������	��������
�����������	
��������
������������TUVWUTX����Y������G	
���������������
���������
�������������	��
��	�����������	���	������
���������������

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

����������	���
�
����	����������������������	�������	������	����������������	�������������������������	���
��	������	�����	������	���������������� ���!"#$������������������������������%�&'(%()'�*��	�
�	�+�,--./012�345�67801,7/�95,1012�6:�;����	���������������������,�<5706=<�951,>5�36�345�25157,.�-=?.0>@��������	������������������A���
���������%�&'(%()��B����������������C	��������������������������������=35D<�75E=0759513<+�5F51�0:�03�G575�36�5<3,?.0<4�,�;46=<012�5957251>/H@�*����	�������	����		����������	���������������I������������������������������J������������������������	�����
�����>4,..5125�36�345�K7801,1>5D<�F,.0803/�������������������B���'����' ;LMN5>5<<,7/@�,18�;-76-57@�36�;5.0901,35@�,1/�27,F5�����������	�����'I�
��������������
��������������
���������%�&'(%()�
�	���	��������	�����345�K7801,1>5D<�01F,.0803/H����������%�&'(%()�������������������
����	�������;46=<012�5957251>/+@�,18�5F51�0:�03�0<�;<6�27,F5�,<�36�>61<303=35�,�<5706=<�951,>5�36�345�25157,.�-=?.0>+@�>6=1305<�<30..�9=<3�85961<37,35�34,3�345�67801,1>5�0<�;15>5<<,7/�,18�-76-57�36�5.0901,35�������	������������5957251>/H@��O�%�&'(%()P&QP�Q'�R�������	��������������������������������������������������������������������345�67801,7/�95,1012�6:�345�G678�;5.0901,35+@�85961<37,3012�03�95,1<�36�;253�708�6:+@�5S-5����	��	�������'��T$UVUW�X���Y�Z X�[\ �]���WX"�̂�!�

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

������	
����	�	��
�������������	�	�
��������������� 	�!�"�#�$�����
�	��
���	�	��
���������%��&'(�)*+,-.�/+00(/-/�1(�/'*+23�,*-�45(1�6(2575,8-(9�5,�:;<=�>?@@AB�CAD?E=A�<:�F*,-(7G28-(/�8,�657G*//5H2(�/-8,38I3J9��K,/-(83L�5-�AMMAD:<NAOP�=EQQA=:=�RA�N<AR�6(2575,8-(9�8/�/.,*,.7*+/�15-'�-(I7/�687(25*I8-(L9�62(//(,L9�*I�675-508-(J9���SA�D?@@T:�?DDAU:�:;<=�=EQQA=:<T@�MTB�?:�OA?=:�:;BAA�BA?=T@=%��V<B=:��6(2575,8-(9�3*(/�,*-�8,3�'8/�,(4(I�7(8,-�-'5/J��&'(�)*+,-.W/�OAQ<=O?:<NA�M<@X<@Q=�XT�@T:�ANA@�/+00(/-�-'8-�-'(�YI35,8,F(�1522�6(2575,8-(9�8�'*+/5,0�A>ABQA@DP�<@�ZB?@QA�[TE@:P%��\ADT@X��:;A�:B<?O�DTEB:�BADA<NAX�DT>UA:A@:��=EC=:?@:<?O�AN<XA@DA�=;TR<@Q�:;A�TUUT=<:A%��]B%�̂A<:=D;�:A=:<M<AX�:;?:�BA@:�F*,-I*2�7(8/+I(/�8I(�6,*-�25_(2.�-*�'84(�7+F'�*̀�?@�AMMAD:�T@�BA@:?O�F*,35-5*,/�5,�-'(�78I_(-J9��abKW/�I(G*I-L�8375--(3�5,-*�(453(,F(�15-'*+-�TCcAD:<T@��DT@DOEXAX�:;?:�BA@:�DT@:BTO�>A?=EBA=�>?P�?D:E?OOP�;EB:�BA@:?O�DT@X<:<T@=�H.�657G(3d5,0e�-'(�*Hf(F-54(�*̀�/G((35,0�*4(I822�'*+/5,0�3(254(I5(/�?=�RAOO�?=�FI(8-d5,0e�8�,+7H(I�*̀�+,5,-(,3(3�F*,/(g+(,F(/J9��h;<BX��?@X�G(I'8G/�7*/-�57G*I-8,-2.L�-'(�)*+,-.W/�5,8H525-.�-*�3(7*,/-I8-(�-'5/�̀8F-*I�<OOE=:B?:A=�:;A�X<MMABA@DA�CA:RAA@�?�;TE=<@Q�DB<=<=�C?=AX�T@�OT@Qi:AB>�=P=:A><D�M?D:TB=��=T>A�TM�R;<D;�>?P�@T:�CA�E@<jEA�:T�ZB?@QA�[TE@:P��?@X�?�;TE=<@Q�A>ABQA@DP�:;?:�?�BA@:�DT@:BTO�>A?=EBA�>?P�AO<><@?:A%��h;A�[TE@:P�EBQA=�E=�:T�<Q@TBA�:;A�Ak:BA>AOP�;<Q;�C?B�=AD:<T@���l%m�m��<>UT=A=�:T�?OOTR�

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

�����	�
��������������	������
������������
�������������
������������������������������������
��������������������������������������������������	�����	����	���	��	������������������	���������������������������������
������������������������������������		�����������
�������������	����������������� !"!#$%&�'"( � )*����� +,-�./0012�3455/678��������	���������	����	����������������	���������������������		������������������

����	��
��������������������������������������9��8����������:$��$;$#)�)<$�=>?!)*%&�#>@A(" !)�)<")�)<$�)� "(�#>?�)� @A�>A$�(*��B	�����
������������B����������
�������������C��	���������������8��������	�������������������������������������������������D����������������E��������������������������
�����������������	��������F������	����8���������
������	��������<"'$� !G>�@$��)<$�=>?!)*%&�@"!�")$��($H &(") '$�G !� !H&�I$#"?&$� )�� ��!>)���������������
�������B��������3--�J�K�L�MKM9NLON�O����P?)�$'$!� G�)< &�)$&) @>!*�<"�� !G>�@$��)<$�=>?!)*%&�($H &(") '$���������������������D������	�����������	������������
�����������������������
���������������	����8��������	���C���������������
������
����������
������	�����K�L�MKM9������Q�������������	������������8������������������D�����������������������	���	���	��R����������
�����������E������������������F������	�R�������������������	������������������
�������������������������	������Q����
��������������������	�����K�L�MKM9NLON�O���S�	��������	��	��������������������������������
����������������������
�����������������
���������������������E������������������F������	�R���
�����������������R�������E���������	���9�8�������������������������������	���������T������U����
��D����������?($��)<")�"�)� "(�#>?�)%&��$# & >!� &�A� @"� (*�V<")�@"))$�&W�!>)�)<$��$"&>! !H�����������3--�XYY0-Z/2-�[\�./6]-22�./]̂�1_�+/00/,/̀ -̀-��9aa�U������KKLM��KKL��NT���KbabOc��de'$!�V<$!�I"&$��>!�$��>!$>?&��$�����������	��	�����������	����������������	������������������������
�����������E����	��������

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

������	�
���
����
�����������
�����	�����
���������������������	��
����
������������	��
������������������������
��������	�������������
��
�������������	��
����������������������
����������������	��
�������
�������������������������������������������
�����������������������	�����������������
��� ����� !�"�#��$% %�&'��&�!()�*%+�&,-�#�&��.!$(&!%$�&'(&�&'��/())%&�������	�����
����
���011�2345�67�83931:;�<1;=>�9?�83931:;�<1;=>�2343@1AB�C;BD�E6:=1��FG�����H�IF���I�JK����L���M�N��OI�P���Q������
����������������������������������������������������
��
���������R�
���������������
���IOI�ISI��K���
�������������011�TUVW�XYZ[W�\]]̂_�̀W�TUVW�abĉd�67�04;41��LF�����H�SeL��GOO�JK�����OIOP���f�
������������R�
������������������������	�g-'())�/��($��hi)($(&%�j�-&(&�.�$&k�$%&��h*��#!$l�G�������
�����������������*'!�m�i+�i%-��%m�&'��.�(-+��no��p�IOI�ISIJIP���f�����������
����g-'())�*%$-!-&����������
���������q���
���I�������
�����������	���
���������������
��*%..%$)j���m����#�&%�%��-i%r�$�%mno��st����f�������R�
��������������
�����������
����
�����
����������������)(",-�*%$&�$&k�-%�&'(&�(� %&���*($�*(-&�($�!$&�))!l�$&�($#�!$m%�.�#� %&�������������
����������&'��i�%i%-�#�)(",-�i+�i%-�n��011�\Ỳu]vwx�ycW�dv�\dd̂x�()&��$(&! ��&'�%�j�-+ii%�&-�!&no��st?�J�
���
������
���Pz�B11�;{B6�|;t1�2A45?�0=>?�<t?�9?�8;t36�04;436A�}~<���GHI�������SHF��SLL�L��JK����IeeeP?�

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

��������	
��������������������������������������������
����������� �!"���!"��#$%&���'�()�#*+�,-./�01234567�89:�;5�0;;<7�=>?:�6>�@>6A�B3A3;4�CD>1E>��"�������� �"F����'��#$%&���FF�))���G. HH ��I�,HJK�L+K,�MH�&M%H�,��+. HJK,&. �N�O�P&J�&�QJ�Q�KH �%&O�KOHHQK�PJ�L�,NH�M&%%�,�,-,%H�&. �K+LL&JR��K��,N&,�STU�VWXVXYUZ�[\]�̂_Y�̀U_STUW�[UYY�̀XW�aXWU�UbSÙY_cU�ST\̀�_S�\VVU\WY�SX�dUef�g���gh��i��
�j��gh��i����������� ���(����F�#$%&���F"�)���k�M&%%�,�,-,%H�&. �K+LL&JR� ��.�,�N&IH�,��HlQ%&-.�HIHJR� H,&-%��P�,NH�QJ�Q�KH �%&O��M+,�J&,NHJ�-,K�mN-HP�Q+JQ�KH������n����o�j�����p��qi���"������ �&,�������G.� H,HJL-.-./�ONH,NHJ�KHm,-�.��'�����rY�JH*+-JHLH.,K�&JH�K&,-KP-H ��OH�m�.K- HJ�S]X�stUYS_X̀Yu�̂vwx�]TUSTUW�STU�d\[[XS�S_S[U�\̀Z�Ytaa\Wyz�_̀�{[U\W�&. �+.&LM-/+�+K�%&./+&/H��P&-J%R�-.P�JL�,NH�I�,HJK��P�,NH�mN-HP�Q+JQ�KH��P�,NH�&LH. LH.,|�&. �#�)�ONH,NHJ�,NH�%&./+&/H��P�,NH�M&%%�,�,-,%H�&. �K+LL&JR��&K�OJ-,,H.��O-%%�MH�&PP-JL&,-IH%R�L-Y[U\Z_̀}�SX�cXSUWYef�~�j�
��n��������~��<7���������o����������������������������g�h��������~�q�i�������
�����
i�~������q��
���������i���o�
���q����
����'������ ��("����"����#$%&���'��)�#*+�,-./�01234567�89:�;5�0;;<7�=>?:�6>��4>�5����63���?���56��>6;�3?��������������
����������� �"����"F"�#$%&���'�!))���G. HH ��&�M&%%�,�K+LL&JR�a\y�dU�ZU�U{S_cU�_��_S�̂Xa_SY�a\SUW_\[��\{SY�̀U{UYY\Wy�SX�a\�U�STU�Ytaa\Wy�X̀S�a_Y[U\Z_̀}ef��01234567�89:�;5�0;;<7�=>?���������������h
���������������q��j�����
���(F������� ���(������#$%&���FF�)��

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

������		
�����	��������������������������������������� !"����#�����$�%��������&�#!��'��(�!�)�!��������'�"��������������*���'�+��		�����,��-��.
����/���+����	�0���
�,����1�2�3��1��	�����������1�������4
��1���������������	�����	����������	��4���	������1�������
������5���-�����	��1������������.
������6��1��7��82������9����������.
�����
�1��������:�
1����4
��	��	
�����
���9��������81�:��
��
�����	�������
�
����������1������������
���
::
��������
���1��5����4�����������
��	��������
��5������2�����::�
5���4
����:���
��
4�
������;�������������������	����-�
����1�����
4�3�����������2�������1�����
4�3��������
���
�����<��.����1�		�2�����,����1��:��:
�����
�1
��
	��������3
�3���<������4�����������1�������4��9��1��
4�����	��1��������
�
�������:����3�	5�=�
���:���
�<��������1
��	������������
���
4��������1�������������-�������
�����.
������6��1��7��8<��������		
���������2��
3�5��2�
	����5���������5
������
���������
���
4�����1
��
	2�����
������4��9��1�<�������
�����
����1
4���-���1���������1���4�:��:
���
4������������5���������1
��
	2�����������		
�������������	�����
��
3�����,����1��3�		��44�1�����������:��:
��<��7���
���
�2���
�����3
���2��11�����	����5������5
����>?@AB�BCD�EFGHI>IJDKL�LJ@MDN�BCAL2�M@FBF>OHIP�BCD�QD>LAFD�>L�RSDLL�T�T�T��8����5����������::������
���TU��VWW�VXYZ[W\]2�̂ _̂�+
<�������_�̀<������,����1���
���
��:�
5���2����3
�	�����1
�:	���	����44����2�4
���		
3�-�	��	
�����
�����������
��
��=�
=�
���	�������5�����
���4
��������������

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

�������	

	���������	��������	��	�����	��	���	�	���	�������	�������	������	����	����������
���������������������������	�	�����������	����	���������	��	��
��	�	�������	�������������������
�������
�������	�������	������������
��� ���	��������������!�������������	�������	"���	���������������������	�������	�	����	����������	��	�	���#
��	#�������������$%%�&'()*+,-�./0�1+�12%�&1134�5%60�,%�7,+2)8)1)69�7:80�;:6')69�+<�7+=0�>?@ABA?CDE3�>?FG?BH@E�IJK�L������JM��JMN�O!����PJJMQR�*%%�S=*+�TS12%*+6�(0�T)SU)VWS'%�X61-0�P�M�L���K����P���NY�I�O!����K��Z�[��\PNQ�]̂_̀abcde�fagbhi�jekl�mblkcagìn�jl̀d�hjeh��	������P\P�PIPOPQ�dali�oah�blpgcbl�lqfliickl�dlhec̀rstr��u�����������������	������������������	��������$%%�&,U*1,+69�(0�vS,,)*�MMK�L������M��P�O!�����\\\Q�]faof̀gdcow�hjeh�̂xè̀ah�̀eowgewl�co�hjl�mbliloh�feil�ci�dlylfhckl�yab�zjeh�ch�dali�oah�ienst{�&*|%}�(0�;),%*1+6%�~�P�L������PNP�PNI�O!����PJ��Q�]̂�jl������	����	�	
��	���	������������������	����������������������	�������zjeh�ch�dali�oah�ienrstr��!���������	����������� �����	�����	������

	�	�����������	���	�����������������	������	�	����	���������	�[��������������������������������	����������		���������	

���������	���	���	��	
	�	����������	���������	�
������	�����������

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

�� ����	
�
����
�������������
������
�������������� !"�#$%�������&'��$(�)��'�(��*� ��#$*#"%&�&� ��+�$%"&�*$��!,,$�&�����-++$# !� $*���./$�!�0���" �,�1�#!%+�� ���!&�*$��1��*� ���/!�!1"0��!�.�&�!*&�����-++$# !� $*��!&�!*�!&�2%!���"�3!"���.�&04������#$*#�/�+�$,� ���/!�!1"���!�.�!*&�*$�!&�2%!���"�3!"���.�&0�!���& +� *#��/�$*3+�$,�������./$�!�0� *5%*#� $*���+�'�1%�����0�!�����"!��&��$�$*��!*$����4��6778�79:9'�;<=>9�?:@A9�BCDEF<=F8�GHI9�D9�J<:K<F'�LMN�O$4��&��PN'��PL�QR"!4�M���ST-��UUUV�Q# �!� $*+�$.WXXYZ[�\]̂_Y�̀aYbXWcd�ce�f_YX_Yg�X_Y�Wdhagi�Wb�jWggYklglmnYo�Xagdb�cd�f_YX_Yg�X_YgY�Wb�ld�lZỲalXY�gYpYZi�lqlWnlmnYrs[4��-##$�& *3"0'�(��& +#%++����.��$3�����4���]tggYklglmnYs�pYldb�!*� *5%�0�#!**$��1��!&�2%!��"0���/! ��&�$����&��++�&� *�!�#$%���$,�"!(�10�!*�!(!�&�$,�.$*�0�&!.!3�+4��BE=�B@uvwxHI7�y7Az<={8�GHI9�D9�|w<=EuvF'�M}}�O$4��&�LU�'�LU��QR"!4�~&�ST-�}��LV4��-*� *5%�0�Wb�dcX�WggYklglmnY�We�WX�Wb�]ZcamXean��YqYdXaln�cg��cdXWd�YdXrs���xI{F<HDEww7��w7I9�BvAK9�D9�J77@E{�JvEwC7=F���;<HFA=vIA<=F8�GHI9'�P�L�O$4��&�~L�'�~L~�QR"!4�}+��ST-�}��NV�Q# �!� $*�$. ���&V4�R%�����'� ���/!�!1"�� *5%�0�( ""�*�)���1��,$%*&�]f_Yd�l�knlWdXWeeob�gW�_X�Xc�gY�cqYg�Wb�mlbYZ�akcd�l�eaXagY�YqYdXs�cg�X_Y�lnnY�YZ� *5%�0� +�+/�#%"!� )�4��JEFIx�H7��x={8���;�D9��xw�?x=A�6A<=7F��98���'�~P�O$4�~&��P'��N�QR"!4�~&�ST-��U}UV4��tdbXYlZ��X_Y�WggYklglmnY�Wdhagi�pabX�mY�]l�Xaln�ldZ�WppWdYdXrs��6E7:7w�D9��7�<=7'��~P�R4~&�}}N~'�}}LN�Q}}���T �4��UUUV4�����

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

���������	
�����	������������������������������������������ �!��������������"�����#���$%&'�(')%*++*,�-)./�0/�1'234,�-)./5�6�7�8�9�:;�<�=5�<�7�>?@�9��;�ABC�DE7:F�>��G�G�����H�GGI;F9���J���� �!��������� �������K����"��L����������M���NL��O����������O�������H��IG�
���	;PHI�G5���;���G�Q�IG�I
�G��G��	;PHI�G�Q�@@�RI���@@I�G�R@I����I��RG���I;9��S4++')T�U/�V'W*�XY'W%Z'[+*�\4])T/�0/�̂'2*&�_%)*�̀ZW'a,�$$X5��6��8�9��;�D:7=5�D:7EbE��>?@�9�D�G�ABC�:�::Fc�d**�e2/�̀]W/�X4/�4f�g/h/�0/�U]WiYj5�D��8�9�:;�66:5�66��>?@�9�DE6�F�>�G�G��P�PI�I
�@�k
�k���G����G��G�k�
G��K��������O���O�������LL�����!����O��������L��"������L��������������� �� �!��������� �������K�l9���m�I�C������G�����	I
I;n��;����G��	I��G���	I
n�

Ik�
�R@I���
H�RI��	�I�G�I�B�	�G��I���GI;����	�����G�G	G����@�@�Q9��C���	�G���
;�����I�G��G����@��G��;�
I�G@��Q�G�����G�GI��G�G	GI����	�����G�G	G����@9��̀**�U%'2%o('T*�X)Zj/�0/�U%'2%�p'WT*)d�̀q]'W*�r)*,�-)./5��D6�8�9��;��7E5��E:bE��>?@�9��;�ABC�:�:�F9��C�;�������G��	��P�����G�G	G����@�s��@�G���5������;����G�I@5����L������L���������O�������#���tT/�4f�X)Zj/�X422uvwx�yz{|z�}~wz��)Zj/�0/��~���������vw��wwu{�~�������z�5��:=�8�9��;�E7D5�E7=�>?@�9�D�G�ABC�:�:DF�>�	�G��P�\+'/�(*iuZ�4f�S*'+ZY�0/�\+4W%�W4a),�$$X5��:��8�9��;�DE=5�:���>?@�9�D�G�ABC�:�DEF5�q]'dY*T�4)�4ZY*W��W4])Td�[j��D<�8�9��;�DD�D�>?@�9�:�:DFF9�������� ���������������"���L�L������"�L����������#����NL���M��O������ ����L���G�

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

������	��
�
�
�	������������������������
������	���
�	������������������������������
������
��
�	���
���
������	��
������������������	
����������������	���
�	���������	��������������������
�
����	�����������������������	����
�	����
���	
��
�����������������
������������������	
����������������
���
������	��
����������	����		 ����������

������������	��
�����	��
����	����	���
�	���!���
�����
��
������
��
��
������������������������������
��	�
��������	��������������������������	����	������������������	�
������
�������
����	������������
������ �
�����
	�
����	�������
��	�����
��	�
�	���"��
�����
������	���
�	����������
	����	
�������
�����	������
	������
����
��������������	����
������
���
������#	��
��������	����	�
�
	�����������
����
��
��	���	����	��$�!�����
�	�������

��
�����%������������
���������
�����������
�����������
�����	���	�����������&��
������������	���
��
������
��
��������������	����	
�����	�
�'()�'*+,-�./0*'12�3+45+46�'(,'�'()�722/.+,'+/412�(,*8�9/0-5�:)�8//')5�+3�;/')*2�*)<).')5�
������������	��=���
�	��>��������������
�
�����	�����%��
��
��������������������	���	���
������	���
�	�������	����?��
��������������������#	��
�������	
��
�������	��������������
����������
����
������	���
�	���	���
�����������	�������	�������������	��
���������
����������������������������
�	����������������?���
���������@�����
�����
���	������������	�������������������	
�������������
�����	������	��
�������	
��ABB�

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

������	
����	����������������������	
����	�������������������������� !"�����#$%�����&'�(���	)(�����*+�,������	-.�����/�
�+�0���,(����1)	����23������������� !"������&��"44567589�:8;6<��4�=:67"8:8;�58>?8@;5�8�:8>�58589�A:@6:;"6<��4�A;";:�46�7�=!"@589�75A!:"�589�=6�=�A:��@�8A;5;?;5�8"!�6:B5A5�8��8�C"!!�;&���D8�;E5A�A:8A:��;E:�%AA�@5";5�8�E"A�8���;E:6�6:7:�<��7?@E�!:AA�"8�FGHIJFKH�LHMHGN�FK�OFPQ�RSL�KTH�USJVKNWX�MYXOHFGYVZ�[FOOSK�XJMMFLN\���]̂ _̀a�bcdefg�hijakaljmYVFOONQ�KTH�nJ[OYo�YVKHLHXK�XJnnSLKX�KTH�YXXJFVoH�SR�KTH�pXXSoYFKYSVWX�;:7=�6"6<�58>?8@;5�8���qE:�;65"!�@�?6;�6:"A�8:��;E";�8��E"67�@�?!��@�7:��4�;E:�=?C!5@��44:6589�5;A��=585�8��8�"�7:"A?6:�;E";�E"��8��!5r:!5E�����4�!:9"!�A?@@:AA��"8��;E";�5;�s�?!��8�;�A?CA;5;?;:�5;A�>?�97:8;�4�6�;E";��4�t6"89:�USJVKNWX�HOHoKHG�LHnLHXHVKFKYuHX\��vHXnHoKRJOONQ�PH��5A"96::����w��=?C!5@�58;:6:A;�@"8�C:�A:6B:��C<�"!!�s589�;E:�=�;:8;5"!�:84�6@:7:8;��4�"�6:8;�@�8;6�!��6�58"8@:�;E";�4"5!A�;��7::;�;E:�4"@5"!�6:x?56:7:8;A��4�A:@;5�8���2�������"8��%6;5@!:����A:@;5�8����4�;E:� !�65�"�$�8A;5;?;5�8���y:�6:@�985z:�;E";�F�OSoFO�ZSuHLVMHVKWX�"57�;��:8"@;�!:95A!";5�8�;��"��6:AA�"�@�7=!:{��7?!;54"@:;:��5AA?:�5A�8�C!:��"8��@5;5z:8A�759E;�C:!5:B:�;E";�6:8;�@�8;6�!�5A�"�E"67!:AA�s"<�;��"@@�7=!5AE�;E";�"57���|?;�"A�s:�A;";:��";�;E:��?;A:;��4�;E5A��=585�8��;E:�=�s:6��4�!�@"!�9�B:687:8;�5A�!575;:���"8��"�@65;5@"!�!575;";5�8��8�;E5A�=�s:6�5A�;E:� !�65�"�$�8A;5;?;5�8����

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

��������	
����������������������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������������������	������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������  �!����"
�#�$%&�!����'
�#��
��������������(�����)��������
�����������
���������������������������������
�)����������������)�	�������������������������������	�������������������������	
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������
�	���������������������������������������
����	��������������������������)��*��)����)�������������������������������������������(���������+��,-.,�,-/�0/123.4�25�,-/�6278,9:;�<.442,�=8=,=.,=3/�=;�.�;=>8=5=?.8,�0/1/@9A�.8@�)����������B����������������	���C����������������	������	����������
�����������)����������)��������������  �D E�FGHIG�J HKL�M KGN 
�$O%�����������$OPO��QR STUVWXYZTU[20�,-/;/�0/.;28;A�,-/�,0=.4�?270,�/00/@�=8�@/89=8>�,-/�\;;2?=.,=28:;������������������	���]����������(��������������������������������������������������(�����������������������������������̂��������:������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������C������������[420=@.�628;,=,7,=28:;�.@128=,=28�������������������������)���
�)����������������������������	�L_̀ ������������������̂���������

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

�����	�
��
���
��
��
��
�������
	�����
�
�����������������������������
����
��
�������
�
����������� ���!!"�#��"�$����%������&
��������
������������"���'
�
�"�����
��
���������
��������������
�'��������
��
����
	�� $$!()*+����,��-�(*.*(/*+����,��-���	�(*) �+*+�&!01�!�/0(2%0!3�/��/ //3"�4�"����������%31*�"�4�"�	���
��"�'������������
11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

������	
����������������	
�������������������������
������������������	����	�
�������������� ������!����"����	�!�#�������! $�%���$��!��	&� ��������������'���������(' ��� ��)!��&��������	��!	#���������� $�������*'�����&�����$�
%���+	((��������(�*	!��$,���	!"���������+�����������������	����$����"
��	��#�!����+���	����!������������(�*	!��$,��!��' ������+���&&�+��#� $�!�(	#���&!	(�����)�  	�����	!�����+���!	�	����)$����' $�� �+����)	�$�������	'��$��	((����	��!��	&��!������	'��$�-.�����	'��$/0
�������!	+��'!� ��	��'!��	&������+���������(�	!�
�����+����+	(����	�'��	������� �&!	(���������� �	&�����(�	!�!$���*'�+��	�
�1�&	!��!��+���������+!'2�	&�����(����!������������!'+��#���	�!�(�()�!��������������  ������3 	!����4�� �	!������3 	!�������!�(�������	+����	�����+
�-+	  �+��#� $��.4�� �	!�/0��('�������) ���5�-%0����')������� � �"� ��		��	&��'++����	������(�!�����-�0��� �+"�	&�������6'����!�(��$���� ����-�0����� �"� ��		��	&��!!���!�) ����!(��)������������!$�	&������*'�+��	�������-70��������*'�+��#��!� ��&���  ���!#�������') �+�����!���
�8�����#�  ��9	(�����!�������#
�:�������%��:	
����%�7���%��;�-3 �
���%0�-+������4�&	!(�<�!�$�	&�3 �
�#
�1 �+"��;;��:	
�������������-3 �
����700
�=������������!�� �+	'!�,��!' ���������4�� �	!�������	������) ��������%������+���������	����!&�+����'��� ��+�	)�!�%%������
�

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

�������	

������
���	�
�
�
�������
�����	����	
�
	�
�������	�����������������������	�����
��	������	��������������������
���	���
�
�
�������������������
�������������
��������
��
	�����������	�����������������������
����	������������������
����
�	
��������
�
�
������� �
�!������	
�
��
������
���	���������������	���������������������������������	�����
"��������#	���
�!���������
�
	�
��������	��
���������������
����
	�����
���
������
��
�
	����������$�%&'�(%(�)&*��)'*)�*��+����,�����+�	���
��������	����
����	���������������
�����
��������-����	
������	�	
��
.��������
������
�����.�
��
	�����
��������	
�������
���������������
�������	��	
/�	
�
����� �
	
�.�����������.�������������
��	������	��)�	������!�	�*�����������������
�
	����������-���������
��	������	��	
��
�������
������������
�����0���	�-��1
���1
������!������,�
�
���&'2�3�,��&4&�)%5&&*����
��
���������
����	
�������	����	�����
�3���
��,���
��,�	
�
�!�	��&� �
�,�	
�
�!�	�����
����
���	�������
�������
"���
�����6
.�7�	�������
�
�	����.
���
����
��	�8� � ������
	
�.������
	���	
������	���
�����.
���������
���������������������
�����
�������
�����
����.�������
�����������9���������������������.����������.��
��	
�������	
��9������
"��	����������������	
����
���	���.�������	�������	
����	����

	���9���������	���
��	���
�������	
������	
������
����&� �
��
	���
���������
�����
������%&'�(%(����		�	����������,�
�
���

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

�����		�
�	���������	��������������
�	��������	����������	�����������������������������	����������������������������	�	��������������������������	���������
���������������	�����������������������������������������������������������������
��������	��������������
�����
����
�	���	���������	��������������	���	��	��������������	�������������
��	������	������	����������������� !�"��������#$��%�
����������������������������������������������	�����	�������������&�����	����	���������������	����	������������	������������	������������	�����������	�����	��'������	����	����
�������	�����	������	�����������������		��������������������������������������������	��
��
����������������������������	�����	������������������������������������	��������������(��	����������������)	��	���������	�������������������	�����	����������	�	������	����	���������	�������������	�������������������
�	��	��������(����	��������	��������������	�
������������������*��������������������������%�
�+��'����������������
	����		����������������&���������������,�������������	�����
���������	���	����������������	�������������������������������������	����-�*���.��	�������������	�����/��������������0������)	�	�����������������������
�	�������������
�����������&��������	������	������������	����	���������������	�������������	�����������

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

��������	�����
��	
��
	�����������������
������������	������
������
��������������������������������������������������������������������
����	��������	���������������������	��������
�������
	 �����������

 ���������	�����������!�	�����	��
�"	������
�����	���������"	������
����������������������
�����	��������
���	���������
�������#$��
��������%�
	�����&�����
�
���������������	���!�	���!
���
�	������������������
�������������������������!
	�
��
��"	������
�������!
!����
������!�
���������
�������
�'!�����(
���������������	���"��	��)*�
���
����
������"	������
������	����	�������
	����
���������	������������
����+�
����
����
�����!�����
	��������)*�
�����	��
����
�����
���
��	���������	��������������������
	����
���	������������������������

�����
�������	���!
	���
����������������	���&���������������
���,������������
������,������������		�����
�������	 ���-�.
	�
��	���!!	
,�������-)*�
��"	������
�������!
!����
���	��	����	���+�������������������������������
��
��������������
����
�����!	���������	������	�������"	������
������	��/��	�������������	�����������!	�����0�+��	�������������-�*���	��������������
���������!	�����	
����"���
����
�����������	������������-�1�	�������!��������"	������
�����	��������
	���������	
���������������
�'��	��������"2&1'34����	������	����������������!	
�	������������
���	��
�������%�
	����

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

���������	
�������������������	��	�	���������	����
�����	������������	
��
�	����	
������������������������	�����
��������	
����
���	
����������	����
����
������	�	��������	����	������������������ ��������������������	�������	���
�������	
����!��	��������	�����������������"������	�����
����"�# ������	���������	����
����	
��
��$������%
��	���
�	�����	
���
����	�����
����	
����������
���� ���
����!��	
����������	�����&������	���	����
��������������������������	����������
�����	�����
�	����
������
&��	�����"������
�������	����	����
��	����
��������
���������	����$������%
��	�������������	
����
����'���	����
�	�������
�����������	������������	�������������'�	
��(�	��
����	������	������
��������	�������'��������������#������'�	
����������������������	�����#� ���������������
�������	
�	��������	��������������!��%
�	�����	
�	����
�	
��	��������)���	
����	�����������	������������	��
���	���������������	
������������)���	
����
��
	�����	��	��	������������	�
��	������
��������
�������
�	�����������������	��������	
����
��������	�������������	������
���

�������	�	���	
���������&���������	�	��������	���	��	�	����������������	��	
������
��	�����
�	�	
�������	������
����	�
��
�	��	����*����������
	��������	�	�	��+�	��������	�����������������	��������
�������������	������

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

���������	
��
	������
���������������������
�����
�����	����
��	
���	��
������	�����	������	���������
�����
	���
�����	���
��	����
������������
����
������������������
	
����������
������	���	���
��
	�
�����	����
�	��������	����
�	
�������
�����������
�����
��	��������	���������	������	���
	��
��
��	�	���
	���������������	���
����	�������
	��	���������
������ ����
	���
��	������������	������
������
�	��������	�����������
���������������	������
	����������	�
	�	������	��!�"���������
�������	������������
���	���
�������	�	����	��������
���������������������
�	�����������
�����������������#����
�	�������	��� ��	�����������������������
�����������
����������������$������������������
������������
�����%�&��������	�����������	����
�	�����	����������
�����������
��	��������	�����
	�����	�������
�����	�����
�������	������������'�()!��(�*+),��+!,+�,��-����.�����/��
��	�����&��
�����	��������������������
������������
�	�������������������	��	��������
	�()!��(�*��&��
����������
�������������������
���0��!�#���
��	�	����
����
	�����������������
������	������	�����	���	�����1������������������	���
����	
��������	����������
�
�	��	���1��������	������
��������%�/���������������
���������
�	�������	
���
�	���������
�	
	��
������
	�����	������
�������������������	��
	�
�����������������������������������
	�����������������
��	��������	����

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

�����	�
�����
������������������	���������		
����������������
����������
������
��
���
������
�������������������
�����	����
������������
�������		
���������������
��������������������������������
������������������	��
��� ���������
���
��	�����������������		
��	���������������������������	�����������������������	����
�!���
���������	������������
����������
�	��������	�"�������
��	��	����	��
������#�$
�����������������������������
���� ���
��	���
�������������		
��	�������������
�����	�������������������������!
�	������������
���
��������
��������������������
�������		��
���
	������#�%		������&	
�����	�����'������������������	��������������
������"������
���������!����������
�����(������
���� �
������������
������������)��#�*�� ��
��+��������&	���,����
����%�� ���������-./�+
��/��.�/��.�0�1&	���-2�34�1�������5����*
	�������6�������5���
��*�����������/0��+
��-��03���037�1&	����03�44��8�����&	
�����	����������		
�����������	�������
�7.��
������������!������������	���������������
���	��������
��������		
��#�����!���		��������9�	����
������������������
����������������
���
�������������#�:��2���;�1�4��&	���+�����1-2--4��������		
���������
����
��������
�!�9�	���������������	�
�����������
��
��������
�
������������#������
��<�������=��������<�������=���������"�������)�&
�����37�+
��/���3��-��1&	�������*�%�-2�-4�1'�
�����&	���>�����%�� �����&	���*�� ��
��+�������3�+
��/��;0���722�1&	���-2�244���

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



���

�������	
�����������	������������	��	����	�
������	���������������������	���������	��������������������������	������������������������

�	����������	��������
���������������������	�������	
����� ���	���������������!�	!������������
���
���"��������������	����������������������������������������

�	������	������������������	
��� ����
������������� ���	�#$�%� ���	��&!#����%��'��(��#�	��)��������*�	�+����������*����	�,�
���	����%����������-���������%����.����������/�&���	�)���	���������0�1�,�#�0��234��224526��7��#��1�������������%� ���	��&!#����%��'��(��#�	��8������*�	�+�������	���	�����*��#��������������0��,�#�0��462��494��7��#��1����#�:�	����������������

�	������	����������������
����!�	!������������	�������;�����
���	�������	��������	���	�����	�����������	��������������������<��������������
�	�=	��������<#�>����	����������������������	��������������	������� �	��������?���	���
���	�
��������������������������������!�	!������������	�������"���	�����������������������������������	����	�������

�	��
���������#�,�
!���!��������	�7��	���������������������

�	������������ �������������� �	����������	�	�
������������������	�����������!	� ��������������!�	!��������������43?�	����
��#��������	��!������������������	�
�����
�+�	���'�� ����������!	�!	��������&	�����������'�����������

�	�#��

11/02/2022 FILED IN OFFICE TIFFANY M. RUSSELL CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT ORANGE CO FL



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: December 6, 2022 DEPARTMENT: City Manager 

TITLE: 

Presentation of conceptual design for the pool by CPZ Architects, Inc. 

 
SUMMARY: 

CPZ Architects, Inc. was selected on October 12, 2017 to provide professional services for the Lake 
Worth Beach Complex Design Phase for replacement of the pool. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Possible design options for the pool were presented by CPZ Architects, Inc. at the August 7, 2018 
commission meeting.  At the July 5, 2022 commission meeting, Task Order No. 3 was approved for the 
preparation of a final conceptual design of the pool area only as outlined in the previously provided 
conceptual design drawings. 

 
MOTION: 

Direction sought from the commission regarding the design for the pool. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 



LAKE WORTH
BEACH

COMPLEX

301 East Atlantic Blvd.
Pompano Beach, FL 33060

PH: (954) 788-3400

CITY OF
LAKE WORTH

D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 Q
:\1

00
36

.0
0 

- 1
74

1 
La

ke
 W

or
th

 B
ea

ch
 C

om
pl

ex
 R

FQ
 1

7-
30

5 
- C

PZ
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

s\
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e\
C

A
D

\1
00

36
.0

0-
LC

-1
XX

.d
w

g

10036.00 ST
A

TU
S:

PR
EL

IM
IN

A
R

Y
Pl

ot
te

d 
by

: g
m

ar
tin

 O
n 

10
/5

/2
02

2 
12

:0
7 

PM

1

D

2 3

C

4 5

A

B

CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:

NO. DATE

DESIGNED BY:
ISSUE DATE:

BID-CONTRACT:

SHEET TITLE

SHEET
NUMBER

DESCRIPTION

PROJECT
NUMBER

1 2 3 4 5

PROJECT

CLIENT

Florida Engineering Business License: CA7928
Florida Surveyor and Mapper Business License: LB6860

Florida Landscape Architecture Business License: LC26000457

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE USE OF THESE
PLANS PRIOR TO OBTAINING PERMITS FROM
ALL AGENCIES HAVING JURISDICTION OVER
THE PROJECT WILL FALL SOLELY UPON THE

USER.

PRELIMINARY PLAN
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
THESE PLANS ARE NOT FULLY PERMITTED

AND ARE SUBJECT TO REVISIONS MADE
DURING THE PERMITTING PROCESS.

4316 WEST BROWARD BOULEVARD
PLANTATION, FL 33317

PH: 954.792.8525   EXT 102

N

SCALE= 1"  = 

GRAPHIC SCALE

NOTE: PRINTED DRAWING SIZE MAY HAVE
CHANGED FROM ORIGINAL. VERIFY
SCALE USING BAR SCALE ABOVE.

'

0 20 40

20

REVISIONS

LC-101

ILLUSTRATIVE PLAN
 CONCEPT A

chris
Image



LAKE WORTH
BEACH

COMPLEX

301 East Atlantic Blvd.
Pompano Beach, FL 33060

PH: (954) 788-3400

CITY OF
LAKE WORTH

D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 Q
:\1

00
36

.0
0 

- 1
74

1 
La

ke
 W

or
th

 B
ea

ch
 C

om
pl

ex
 R

FQ
 1

7-
30

5 
- C

PZ
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

s\
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e\
C

A
D

\1
00

36
.0

0-
LC

-1
XX

.d
w

g

10036.00 ST
A

TU
S:

PR
EL

IM
IN

A
R

Y
Pl

ot
te

d 
by

: g
m

ar
tin

 O
n 

10
/5

/2
02

2 
12

:0
7 

PM

1

D

2 3

C

4 5

A

B

CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:

NO. DATE

DESIGNED BY:
ISSUE DATE:

BID-CONTRACT:

SHEET TITLE

SHEET
NUMBER

DESCRIPTION

PROJECT
NUMBER

1 2 3 4 5

PROJECT

CLIENT

Florida Engineering Business License: CA7928
Florida Surveyor and Mapper Business License: LB6860

Florida Landscape Architecture Business License: LC26000457

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE USE OF THESE
PLANS PRIOR TO OBTAINING PERMITS FROM
ALL AGENCIES HAVING JURISDICTION OVER
THE PROJECT WILL FALL SOLELY UPON THE

USER.

PRELIMINARY PLAN
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
THESE PLANS ARE NOT FULLY PERMITTED

AND ARE SUBJECT TO REVISIONS MADE
DURING THE PERMITTING PROCESS.

4316 WEST BROWARD BOULEVARD
PLANTATION, FL 33317

PH: 954.792.8525   EXT 102

N

SCALE= 1"  = 

GRAPHIC SCALE

NOTE: PRINTED DRAWING SIZE MAY HAVE
CHANGED FROM ORIGINAL. VERIFY
SCALE USING BAR SCALE ABOVE.

'

0 20 40

20

REVISIONS

LC-102

ILLUSTRATIVE PLAN
 CONCEPT B

chris
Image



CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLEX

10 S OCEAN BLVD

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA  33460

CPZ DRAWINGS - SHEET NO. LC-101 & LC-102

ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

October 24, 2022

PREPARED FOR:

CPZ ARCHITECTS

PREPARED BY:

CMS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.
CMS FILE # 2333 ORDER OF MAGNITUDE



 CONCEPT A - 

PUBLIC 

RESTROOMS  

CONCEPT A - 

SPLASH PAD

CONCEPT A - 

EXTERIOR PAVING 

IMPROVEMENTS

 AMOUNT  AMOUNT  AMOUNT  AMOUNT  AMOUNT  AMOUNT  AMOUNT 

01000 GENERAL CONDITIONS - SEE BREAKOUT BELOW -$                                -$                                -$                          -$                            -$                           -$                            -$                            

02000 SITE WORK / DEMOLITION 928,931$                        -$                                -$                          -$                            -$                           -$                            -$                            

03000 CONCRETE 752,188$                        196,875$                        94,875$                    70,500$                      52,031$                     56,400$                      -$                            

04000 MASONRY 54,600$                          19,688$                          9,488$                      8,813$                        5,203$                       -$                            -$                            

05000 METALS 27,228$                          13,125$                          6,325$                      5,875$                        3,469$                       -$                            -$                            

06000 WOOD AND PLASTICS 14,294$                          6,563$                            3,163$                      2,938$                        1,734$                       -$                            -$                            

07000 THERMAL / MOISTURE PROTECTION 86,981$                          39,375$                          18,975$                    17,625$                      10,406$                     -$                            -$                            

08000 DOORS AND WINDOWS 110,250$                        39,375$                          18,975$                    17,625$                      10,406$                     -$                            -$                            

09000 FINISHES 142,938$                        65,625$                          31,625$                    29,375$                      17,344$                     -$                            -$                            

10000 SPECIALTIES / SIGNAGE 36,700$                          -$                                -$                          -$                            -$                           -$                            -$                            

11000 EQUIPMENT -$                                -$                                -$                          -$                            -$                           -$                            -$                            

12000 FURNISHINGS -$                                -$                                -$                          -$                            -$                           -$                            -$                            

13000 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION 1,201,883$                     -$                                -$                          -$                            -$                           -$                            -$                            

14000 CONVEYING SYSTEMS -$                                -$                                -$                          -$                            -$                           -$                            -$                            

21000 FIRE 25,729$                          11,813$                          5,693$                      5,288$                        3,122$                       -$                            -$                            

22000 PLUMBING 161,500$                        18,500$                          59,500$                    18,213$                      -$                           51,700$                      -$                            

23000 HVAC 68,610$                          42,000$                          20,240$                    18,800$                      11,100$                     -$                            -$                            

26000 ELECTRICAL 199,720$                        63,000$                          30,360$                    28,200$                      16,650$                     51,700$                      -$                            

27000 TECHNOLOGY -$                                -$                                -$                          -$                            -$                           -$                            -$                            

28000 ELECTRONIC SAFETY & SECURITY -$                                -$                                -$                          -$                            -$                           -$                            -$                            

31000 EARTHWORK 749,476$                        -$                                -$                          -$                            -$                           56,400$                      -$                            

32000 EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS 564,610$                        -$                                -$                          126,000$                    -$                           -$                            47,250$                      

33000 SITE UTILITIES 207,920$                        -$                                -$                          -$                            -$                           37,600$                      -$                            

SUBTOTALS:  DIRECT/HARD COSTS 5,333,556$                     515,938$                        299,218$                  349,250$                    131,466$                   253,800$                    47,250$                      

12.00% GENERAL CONDITIONS 640,027$                        61,913$                          35,906$                    41,910$                      15,776$                     30,456$                      5,670$                        

SUBTOTAL 5,973,583$                     577,850$                        335,124$                  391,160$                    147,242$                   284,256$                    52,920$                      

4.00% G.C. OVERHEAD 238,943$                        23,114$                          13,405$                    15,646$                      5,890$                       11,370$                      2,117$                        

SUBTOTAL 6,212,527$                     600,964$                        348,529$                  406,806$                    153,131$                   295,626$                    55,037$                      

6.00% G.C PROFIT 372,752$                        36,058$                          20,912$                    24,408$                      9,188$                       17,738$                      3,302$                        

SUBTOTAL 6,585,278$                     637,022$                        369,440$                  431,215$                    162,319$                   313,364$                    58,339$                      

1.29% G.C. P&P BOND 84,950$                          8,218$                            4,766$                      5,563$                        2,094$                       4,042$                        753$                           

SUBTOTAL 6,670,228$                     645,239$                        374,206$                  436,777$                    164,413$                   317,406$                    59,092$                      

15.00% ESCALATION (ALLOWANCE) 1,000,534$                     96,786$                          56,131$                    65,517$                      24,662$                     47,611$                      8,864$                        

SUBTOTAL 7,670,762$                     742,025$                        430,337$                  502,294$                    189,075$                   365,017$                    67,955$                      

20.00% CONTINGENCY 1,534,152$                     148,405$                        86,067$                    100,459$                    37,815$                     73,003$                      13,591$                      

TOTAL PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 9,204,915$                     890,430$                        516,404$                  602,753$                    226,890$                   438,021$                    81,546$                      

PREPARED FOR:

CMS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

1115 HERON BAY BLVD, SUITE 204

CORAL SPRINGS, FL  33076

(954) 481-1611 

CMS FILE # 2333 ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLEX

10 S OCEAN BLVD

CPZ DRAWINGS - SHEET NO. LC-101 & LC-102

October 24, 2022

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA  33460

ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

DIVISION DESCRIPTION

CONCEPT A - TACO 

BAR

CPZ ARCHITECTS

SCHEDULE OF VALUES - CONCEPT A

CONCEPT A - BASE

CONCEPT A -  

ADMIN PORTION OF 

TACO BAR 

CONCEPT A - 

LIFEGUARD OFFICE

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 2 of 34



CONCEPT B SPLASH 

PAD 

CONCEPT B 

EXTERIOR PAVING 

IMPROVEMENTS

AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT  AMOUNT  AMOUNT 

01000 GENERAL CONDITIONS - SEE BREAKOUT BELOW -$                        -$                                -$                             -$                             -$                               -$                                -$                           

02000 SITE WORK / DEMOLITION 928,931 0 0 0 0 -$                                -$                           

03000 CONCRETE 708,313 208,594 94,875 70,500 52,031 76,350$                          -$                           

04000 MASONRY 54,600 20,859 9,488 8,813 5,203 -$                                -$                           

05000 METALS 31,480 13,906 6,325 5,875 3,469 -$                                -$                           

06000 WOOD AND PLASTICS 14,294 6,953 3,163 2,938 1,734 -$                                -$                           

07000 THERMAL / MOISTURE PROTECTION 81,581 41,719 18,975 17,625 10,406 -$                                -$                           

08000 DOORS AND WINDOWS 85,763 41,719 18,975 17,625 10,406 -$                                -$                           

09000 FINISHES 142,938 69,531 31,625 29,375 17,344 -$                                -$                           

10000 SPECIALTIES / SIGNAGE 36,700 0 0 0 0 -$                                -$                           

11000 EQUIPMENT 0 0 0 0 0 -$                                -$                           

12000 FURNISHINGS 0 0 0 0 0 -$                                -$                           

13000 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION 1,255,568 0 0 0 0 -$                                -$                           

14000 CONVEYING SYSTEMS 0 0 0 0 0 -$                                -$                           

21000 FIRE 25,729 12,516 5,693 5,288 3,122 -$                                -$                           

22000 PLUMBING 161,500 18,500 59,500 18,213 0 69,988$                          -$                           

23000 HVAC 68,610 44,500 20,240 18,800 11,100 -$                                -$                           

26000 ELECTRICAL 199,720 66,750 30,360 28,200 16,650 69,988$                          -$                           

27000 TECHNOLOGY 0 0 0 0 0 -$                                -$                           

28000 ELECTRONIC SAFETY & SECURITY 0 0 0 0 0 -$                                -$                           

31000 EARTHWORK 756,996 0 0 0 0 76,350$                          -$                           

32000 EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS 529,341 0 0 0 0 -$                                47,250$                     

33000 SITE UTILITIES 207,920 0 0 0 0 50,900$                          -$                           

SUBTOTALS:  DIRECT/HARD COSTS 5,289,982$            545,547$                        299,218$                     223,250$                     131,466$                       343,575$                        47,250$                     

12.00% GENERAL CONDITIONS 634,798$                65,466$                          35,906$                       26,790$                       15,776$                         41,229$                          5,670$                       

SUBTOTAL 5,924,780$            611,013$                        335,124$                     250,040$                     147,242$                       384,804$                        52,920$                     

4.00% G.C. OVERHEAD 236,991$                24,441$                          13,405$                       10,002$                       5,890$                           15,392$                          2,117$                       

SUBTOTAL 6,161,771$            635,453$                        348,529$                     260,042$                     153,131$                       400,196$                        55,037$                     

6.00% G.C PROFIT 369,706$                38,127$                          20,912$                       15,602$                       9,188$                           24,012$                          3,302$                       

SUBTOTAL 6,531,478$            673,580$                        369,440$                     275,644$                     162,319$                       424,208$                        58,339$                     

1.29% G.C. P&P BOND 84,256$                  8,689$                            4,766$                         3,556$                         2,094$                           5,472$                             753$                          

SUBTOTAL 6,615,734$            682,269$                        374,206$                     279,200$                     164,413$                       429,680$                        59,092$                     

15.00% ESCALATION (ALLOWANCE) 992,360$                102,340$                        56,131$                       41,880$                       24,662$                         64,452$                          8,864$                       

SUBTOTAL 7,608,094 784,610 430,337 321,080 189,075 494,132$                        67,955$                     

20.00% CONTINGENCY 1,521,619$            156,922$                        86,067$                       64,216$                       37,815$                         98,826$                          13,591$                     

TOTAL PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 9,129,712$            941,532$                        516,404$                     385,296 226,890 592,959$                        81,546$                     

DIVISION DESCRIPTION

CONCEPT B - 

BASE

CONCEPT B -  

LIFEGUARD OFFICES

CONCEPT B - 

PUBLIC 

RESTROOMS

CONCEPT B TACO 

BAR

CONCEPT B ADMIN 

PORTION OF TACO 

BAR

SCHEDULE OF VALUES - CONCEPT B

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLEX

10 S OCEAN BLVD

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA  33460

CPZ DRAWINGS - SHEET NO. LC-101 & LC-102

ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

October 24, 2022

PREPARED FOR:

CPZ ARCHITECTS

CMS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

1115 HERON BAY BLVD, SUITE 204

CORAL SPRINGS, FL  33076

(954) 481-1611 

CMS FILE # 2333 ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 3 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

01 01 00 00 GENERAL CONDITIONS  $                         -   

GENERAL CONDITIONS  SEE BELOW 

02 02 00 00 EXISTING CONDITIONS /DEMOLITION  $                928,931 

MOBILIZATION 1 LS  $        50,000.00  $                  50,000 

MOT - MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC 1 LS  $        50,000.00  $                  50,000 

EROSION CONTROL 

SF - INSTALL SILT FENCE 1,200 LF  $                 2.50  $                    3,000 

CL - CHAIN LINK FENCE RENTAL 1,200 LF  $               11.85  $                  14,220 

CHAIN LINK FENCE GATE RENTAL 2 EA  $             697.50  $                    1,395 

CE - CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 2,500 SF  $                 1.25  $                    3,125 

FS - FILTER SACK INLET/CATCH BASIN PROTECTION 14 EA  $               73.13  $                    1,024 

DEMO. POOL

DEMO POOL DECK & SLAB 11,892 SF  $               17.36  $                206,458 

DEMO POOL BOTTOM SLAB 12,628 SF  $               17.36  $                219,236 

DEMO POOL WALLS 4,820 SF  $               17.36  $                  83,681 

DEMO WADING POOL/DECK 4,820 SF  $               17.36  $                  83,681 

DEMO WADING POOL WALLS 464 SF  $               17.36  $                    8,056 

DEMO. BUILDINGS 

DEMO POOL MAINTENANCE BUILDING  (WEST SIDE) 1,603 SF  $               10.56  $                  16,932 

DEMO POOL BUILDING 5,705 SF  $               10.56  $                  60,259 

DEMO RETAINING WALL 433 LF  $               56.00  $                  24,248 

DEMO. PAVING, BASE, HAUL

POOL MAINTENANCE PARKING LOT (WEST OF POOL) 3,127 SF  $                 7.50  $                  23,453 

SIDEWALK ADJACENT TO EXISTING ROAD (EAST OF POOL) 4,000 SF  $                 7.50  $                  30,000 

DEMO. MISCELLANEOUS

REMOVE MISC/INKNOWN 1 LS  $        50,000.00  $                  50,000 

03 03 00 00 CONCRETE  $                752,188 

CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE I/C SLAB ON GRADE AND 

ELEVATED SLAB (CHANGING ROOMS + RR'S) 4,574 SF  $               93.75  $                428,813 

12' RETAINING WALL 430 LF  $             650.00  $                279,500 

6' RETAINING WALL (E SIDE @ DUNE PLANTING) 90 LF  $             487.50  $                  43,875 

04 04 0 00 MASONRY  $                  54,600 

MASONRY (CHANGING ROOMS + RR'S) 3,120.00 SF  $               17.50  $                  54,600 

05 05 00 00 METALS  $                  27,228 

42" RAILING (TOP OF RETAINING WALL N, W, S & E SIDE) 345 LF 74.00$                 $                  25,530 

8' ENTRY GATE 14 LF 121.25$               $                    1,698 

06 06 00  00 WOOD & PLASTICS  $                  14,294 

ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CMS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

1115 HERON BAY BLVD, SUITE 204

CORAL SPRINGS, FL  33076

(954) 481-1611 

CMS FILE # 2333 ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLEX

10 S OCEAN BLVD

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA  33460

CPZ DRAWINGS - SHEET NO. LC-101 & LC-102

October 24, 2022

PREPARED FOR:

CPZ ARCHITECTS

CONCEPT A - BASE

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 4 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

CONCEPT A - BASE

WOOD & PLASTICS (CHANGING ROOMS + RR'S) 4,574 SF  $                 3.13  $                  14,294 

07 07 00 00 THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION  $                  86,981 

ROOFING & INSULATION (CHANGING ROOMS + RR'S) 2,287.00 SF  $               18.75  $                  42,881 

WATERPROOFING AT RETAINING WALL 5,880.00 SF  $                 7.50  $                  44,100 

08 08 00 00 OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS)  $                110,250 

OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS)

OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 5,880 SF  $               18.75  $                110,250 

09 09 00 00 FINISHES  $                142,938 

2 STORY RESTROOM BUILDING.  GROUND FLOOR 

EQUIPMENT ROOM AND RESTROOMS UP TOP AT POOL 

LEVEL

STUCCO, DRYWALL, INSULATION, CEILINGS, FLOORING, 

PAINTING, ETC 4,574 SF  $               31.25  $                142,938 

10 10 00 00 SPECIALTIES & SIGNAGE  $                  36,700 

SIGNAGE ALLOWANCE 1 LS  $        10,000.00  $                  10,000 

LOCKERS 72 EA  $             350.00  $                  25,200 

BENCHES 2 EA  $             750.00  $                    1,500 

11 11000 EQUIPMENT  $                         -   

12 12 00 00 FURNISHINGS  $                         -   

13 13 00 00 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION  $             1,201,883 

MAIN POOL 

MAIN POOL 3,494 SF 281.25$               $                982,688 

POOL DECK 

POOL DECK 4,871 SF 45.00$                 $                219,195 

14 14 00 00 CONVEYING SYSTEMS  $                         -   

21 21 00 00 FIRE  $                  25,729 

WET PIPE SPRINKLER SYSTEM (ORDINARY HAZARD) 4,574 SF 5.63$                  25,729$                  

22 22 00 000 PLUMBING  $                161,500 

STORM WATER DRAINAGE

STORM WATER DRAINAGE 1 LS  $        10,000.00  $                  10,000 

PLUMBING FIXTURES

WC 7 EA  $          5,000.00  $                  35,000 

UR 3 EA  $          3,500.00  $                  10,500 

LAV 6 EA  $          3,500.00  $                  21,000 

SHWR 6 EA  $          7,500.00  $                  45,000 

SHWR ADA 2 EA  $          7,500.00  $                  15,000 

EWC 1 EA  $          5,000.00  $                    5,000 

FLOOR DRAIN 4 EA  $          2,500.00  $                  10,000 

WATER HEATERS

WATER HEATERS 1 LS  $        10,000.00  $                  10,000 

23 23 00 00 HVAC  $                  68,610 

HVAC 4,574 SF 15.00$                68,610$                  

26 26 00 000 ELECTRICAL  $                199,720 

ELECTRICAL 4,574 SF  $               30.00  $                137,220 

SITE LIGHTING 1 LS  $        62,500.00 62,500$                  

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 5 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

CONCEPT A - BASE

27 27 00 00 TECHNOLOGY  $                         -   

28 28 00 00 ELECTRONIC SAFETY & SECURITY  $                         -   

31 31 00 00 EARTHWORK  $                749,476 

EXCAVATION & BACKFILL 

EXCAVATE POOL AREA 4,677 CY  $                 7.50  $                  35,078 

BACK FILL POOL AREA 5,846 CY  $               21.50  $                125,695 

EXCAVATE SITE 5,678 CY  $                 9.38  $                  53,228 

BACK FILL SITE 14,194 CY  $               26.88  $                381,468 

6"LIMEROCK BASE 5,678 SY 21.06$                119,586$                

12"STAB.SUBGRD. 5,678 SY 6.06$                  34,421$                  

32 32 00 00 SITE EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS/GATES  $                564,610 

PAVING

EAST SIDE ADJACENT TO EXISTING ROAD 6,230 SF  $               45.00  $                280,350 

SHADE STRUCTURE/COVERED GATHERING SPACE

TENSIONED FABRIC STRUCTURE 490 SF  $               50.00  $                  24,500 

LANDSCAPE

ARTIFICIAL TURF (INCL CONC BASE) 6,978 SF  $               20.45  $                142,700 

PLANTING 15,608 SF  $                 7.50  $                117,060 

33 33 00 00 SITE UTILITIES  $                207,920 

UTILITIES - ALLOWANCES

STORM DRAINAGE 1 ALW  $        50,000.00  $                  50,000 

SITE WATER UTILITIES 1 ALW  $        50,000.00  $                  50,000 

FIRE 1 ALW  $        50,000.00  $                  50,000 

SANITARY SEWER 1 ALW  $        50,000.00  $                  50,000 

GAS 300 LF  $               26.40  $                    7,920 

SUBTOTAL 5,333,556$             

12.00% GENERAL CONDITIONS 640,027$                

SUBTOTAL 5,973,583$             

4.00% G.C. OVERHEAD 238,943$                

SUBTOTAL 6,212,527$             

6.00% G.C. PROFIT 372,752$                

SUBTOTAL 6,585,278$             

1.29% BOND 84,950$                  

SUBTOTAL 6,670,228$             

15.00% ESCALATION (ALLOWANCE) 1,000,534$             

SUBTOTAL 7,670,762$             

20.00% CONTINGENCY 1,534,152$             

TOTAL PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 9,204,915$             

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 6 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

01 01 00 00 GENERAL CONDITIONS -$                          

GENERAL CONDITIONS SEE BELOW

02 02 00 00 EXISTING CONDITIONS /DEMOLITION -$                          

03 03 00 00 CONCRETE 196,875$                  

CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE INCLUDING SLAB ON GRADE 2,100 SF 93.75$                           $                 196,875 

04 04 0 00 MASONRY 19,688$                    

MASONRY 2,100 SF  $                           9.38  $                   19,688 

05 05 00 00 METALS 13,125$                    

METALS 2,100 SF  $                           6.25  $                   13,125 

06 06 00  00 WOOD & PLASTICS 6,563$                      

WOOD & PLASTICS 2,100 SF  $                           3.13  $                     6,563 

07 07 00 00 THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION 39,375$                    

ROOFING & INSULATION 2,100 SF  $                         18.75  $                   39,375 

08 08 00 00 OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 39,375$                    

OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 2,100 SF  $                         18.75  $                   39,375 

09 09 00 00 FINISHES 65,625$                    

FINISHES 2,100 SF  $                         31.25  $                   65,625 

10 10 00 00 SPECIALTIES & SIGNAGE -$                          

11 11000 EQUIPMENT -$                          

12 12 00 00 FURNISHINGS -$                          

13 13 00 00 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION -$                          

14 14 00 00 CONVEYING SYSTEMS -$                          

21 21 00 00 FIRE 11,813$                    

WET PIPE SPRINKLER SYSTEM (ORDINARY HAZARD) 2,100 SF 5.63$                            11,813$                    

22 22 00 000 PLUMBING 18,500$                    

WC 1 EA  $                     5,000.00  $                     5,000 

LAV 1 EA  $                     3,500.00  $                     3,500 

SHWR ADA 1 EA  $                     7,500.00  $                     7,500 

FLOOR DRAIN 1 EA  $                     2,500.00  $                     2,500 

23 23 00 00 HVAC 42,000$                    

October 24, 2022

PREPARED FOR:

CPZ ARCHITECTS

CONCEPT A - LIFEGUARD OFFICE

ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CMS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

1115 HERON BAY BLVD, SUITE 204

CORAL SPRINGS, FL  33076

(954) 481-1611 

CMS FILE # 2333 ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLEX

10 S OCEAN BLVD

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA  33460

CPZ DRAWINGS - SHEET NO. LC-101 & LC-102

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 7 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

CONCEPT A - LIFEGUARD OFFICE

HVAC 2,100 SF 20.00$                          42,000$                    

26 26 00 000 ELECTRICAL 63,000$                    

ELECTRICAL 2,100 SF  $                         30.00  $                   63,000 

27 27 00 00 TECHNOLOGY -$                          

28 28 00 00 ELECTRONIC SAFETY & SECURITY -$                          

31 31 00 00 EARTHWORK -$                          

32 32 00 00 SITE EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS/GATES -$                          

33 33 00 00 SITE UTILITIES -$                          

SUBTOTAL 515,938$                  

12.00% GENERAL CONDITIONS 61,913$                    

SUBTOTAL 577,850$                  

4.00% G.C. OVERHEAD 23,114$                    

SUBTOTAL 600,964$                  
6.00% G.C. PROFIT 36,058$                    

SUBTOTAL 637,022$                  
1.29% BOND 8,218$                      

SUBTOTAL 645,239$                  
15.00% ESCALATION (ALLOWANCE) 96,786$                    

SUBTOTAL 742,025$                  

20.00% CONTINGENCY 148,405$                  

TOTAL PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 890,430$                  

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 8 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

01 01 00 00 GENERAL CONDITIONS -$                          

GENERAL CONDITIONS SEE BELOW

02 02 00 00 EXISTING CONDITIONS /DEMOLITION -$                          

03 03 00 00 CONCRETE 94,875$                    

CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE INCLUDING SLAB ON 

GRADE 1,012 SF 93.75$                           $                   94,875 

04 04 0 00 MASONRY 9,488$                      

MASONRY 1,012 SF  $                           9.38  $                     9,488 

05 05 00 00 METALS 6,325$                      

METALS 1,012 SF  $                           6.25  $                     6,325 

06 06 00  00 WOOD & PLASTICS 3,163$                      

WOOD & PLASTICS 1,012 SF  $                           3.13  $                     3,163 

07 07 00 00 THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION 18,975$                    

ROOFING & INSULATION 1,012 SF  $                         18.75  $                   18,975 

08 08 00 00 OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 18,975$                    

OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 1,012 SF  $                         18.75  $                   18,975 

09 09 00 00 FINISHES 31,625$                    

FINISHES 1,012 SF  $                         31.25  $                   31,625 

10 10 00 00 SPECIALTIES & SIGNAGE -$                          

11 11000 EQUIPMENT -$                          

12 12 00 00 FURNISHINGS -$                          

13 13 00 00 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION -$                          

14 14 00 00 CONVEYING SYSTEMS -$                          

21 21 00 00 FIRE 5,693$                      

WET PIPE SPRINKLER SYSTEM (ORDINARY HAZARD) 1,012 SF 5.63$                            5,693$                      

22 22 00 000 PLUMBING 59,500$                    

WC 5 EA  $                     5,000.00  $                   25,000 

UR 1 EA  $                     3,500.00  $                     3,500 

LAV 6 EA  $                     3,500.00  $                   21,000 

FLOOR DRAIN 2 EA  $                     2,500.00  $                     5,000 

EWC 1 EA  $                     5,000.00  $                     5,000 

ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CMS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

1115 HERON BAY BLVD, SUITE 204

CORAL SPRINGS, FL  33076

(954) 481-1611 

CMS FILE # 2333 ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLEX

10 S OCEAN BLVD

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA  33460

CPZ DRAWINGS - SHEET NO. LC-101 & LC-102

October 24, 2022

PREPARED FOR:

CPZ ARCHITECTS

CONCEPT A - PUBLIC RESTROOMS

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 9 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

CONCEPT A - PUBLIC RESTROOMS

23 23 00 00 HVAC 20,240$                    

HVAC 1,012 SF 20.00$                          20,240$                    

26 26 00 000 ELECTRICAL 30,360$                    

ELECTRICAL 1,012 SF  $                         30.00  $                   30,360 

27 27 00 00 TECHNOLOGY -$                          

28 28 00 00 ELECTRONIC SAFETY & SECURITY -$                          

31 31 00 00 EARTHWORK -$                          

32 32 00 00 SITE EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS/GATES -$                          

33 33 00 00 SITE UTILITIES -$                          

SUBTOTAL 299,218$                  

12.00% GENERAL CONDITIONS 35,906$                    
SUBTOTAL 335,124$                  

4.00% G.C. OVERHEAD 13,405$                    

SUBTOTAL 348,529$                  
6.00% G.C. PROFIT 20,912$                    

SUBTOTAL 369,440$                  

1.29% BOND 4,766$                      

SUBTOTAL 374,206$                  
15.00% ESCALATION (ALLOWANCE) 56,131$                    

SUBTOTAL 430,337$                  
20.00% CONTINGENCY 86,067$                    

TOTAL PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 516,404$                  

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 10 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

01 01 00 00 GENERAL CONDITIONS -$                          

GENERAL CONDITIONS SEE BELOW

02 02 00 00 EXISTING CONDITIONS /DEMOLITION

03 03 00 00 CONCRETE 70,500$                    

CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE INCLUDING SLAB ON GRADE 940 SF 75.00$                $                    70,500 

04 04 0 00 MASONRY 8,813$                      

MASONRY 940 SF  $                9.38  $                     8,813 

05 05 00 00 METALS 5,875$                      

METALS 940 LF  $                6.25  $                     5,875 

06 06 00  00 WOOD & PLASTICS 2,938$                      

WOOD & PLASTICS 940 SF 3.13$                 $                     2,938 

07 07 00 00 THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION 17,625$                    

ROOFING & INSULATION 940 SF  $              18.75  $                    17,625 

08 08 00 00 OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 17,625$                    

OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 940 SF  $              18.75  $                    17,625 

09 09 00 00 FINISHES 29,375$                    

FINISHES 940 SF  $              31.25  $                    29,375 

10 10 00 00 SPECIALTIES & SIGNAGE

11 11000 EQUIPMENT

12 12 00 00 FURNISHINGS

13 13 00 00 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION

14 14 00 00 CONVEYING SYSTEMS

21 21 00 00 FIRE 5,288$                      

WET PIPE SPRINKLER SYSTEM (ORDINARY HAZARD) 940 SF 5.63$                5,288$                      

22 22 00 000 PLUMBING 18,213$                    

PLUMBING 940 SF 19.38$                $                    18,213 

October 24, 2022

PREPARED FOR:

CPZ ARCHITECTS

CONCEPT A - TACO BAR

ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CMS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

1115 HERON BAY BLVD, SUITE 204

CORAL SPRINGS, FL  33076

(954) 481-1611 

CMS FILE # 2333 ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLEX

10 S OCEAN BLVD

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA  33460

CPZ DRAWINGS - SHEET NO. LC-101 & LC-102

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 11 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

CONCEPT A - TACO BAR

23 23 00 00 HVAC 18,800$                    

HVAC 940 SF 20.00$               18,800$                    

26 26 00 000 ELECTRICAL 28,200$                    

ELECTRICAL 940 SF  $              30.00  $                    28,200 

27 27 00 00 TECHNOLOGY

28 28 00 00 ELECTRONIC SAFETY & SECURITY

31 31 00 00 EARTHWORK -$                          

32 32 00 00 EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS 126,000$                  

TIKI AREA - DECK 2,520 SF  $              50.00  $                  126,000 

33 33 00 00 SITE UTILITIES -$                          

SUBTOTAL 349,250$                  

12.00% GENERAL CONDITIONS 41,910$                    

SUBTOTAL 391,160$                  

4.00% G.C. OVERHEAD 15,646$                    

SUBTOTAL 406,806$                  

6.00% G.C. PROFIT 24,408$                    

SUBTOTAL 431,215$                  

1.29% BOND 5,563$                      

SUBTOTAL 436,777$                  

15.00% ESCALATION (ALLOWANCE) 65,517$                    

SUBTOTAL 502,294$                  

20.00% CONTINGENCY 100,459$                  

TOTAL PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 602,753$                  

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 12 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

01 01 00 00 GENERAL CONDITIONS

GENERAL CONDITIONS SEE BELOW

02 02 00 00 EXISTING CONDITIONS /DEMOLITION

03 03 00 00 CONCRETE 52,031$               

CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE INCLUDING SLAB ON GRADE 555 SF 93.75$                           $              52,031 

04 04 0 00 MASONRY 5,203$                 

MASONRY 555 SF  $                           9.38  $                5,203 

05 05 00 00 METALS 3,469$                 

METALS 555 SF  $                           6.25  $                3,469 

06 06 00  00 WOOD & PLASTICS 1,734$                 

WOOD & PLASTICS 555 SF 3.13$                             $                1,734 

07 07 00 00 THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION 10,406$               

THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION 555 SF 18.75$                           $              10,406 

08 08 00 00 OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 10,406$               

OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 555 SF 18.75$                           $              10,406 

09 09 00 00 FINISHES 17,344$               

FINISHES 555 SF  $                         31.25  $              17,344 

10 10 00 00 SPECIALTIES & SIGNAGE

11 11000 EQUIPMENT

12 12 00 00 FURNISHINGS

13 13 00 00 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION

14 14 00 00 CONVEYING SYSTEMS

21 21 00 00 FIRE 3,122$                 

WET PIPE SPRINKLER SYSTEM (ORDINARY HAZARD) 555 SF 5.63$                            3,122$                 

22 22 00 000 PLUMBING -$                    

October 24, 2022

PREPARED FOR:

CPZ ARCHITECTS

CONCEPT A - ADMINISTRATION PORTION OF THE TACO BAR

ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CMS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

1115 HERON BAY BLVD, SUITE 204

CORAL SPRINGS, FL  33076

(954) 481-1611 

CMS FILE # 2333 ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLEX

10 S OCEAN BLVD

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA  33460

CPZ DRAWINGS - SHEET NO. LC-101 & LC-102

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 13 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

CONCEPT A - ADMINISTRATION PORTION OF THE TACO BAR

23 23 00 00 HVAC 11,100$               

HVAC 555 SF 20.00$                          11,100$               

26 26 00 000 ELECTRICAL 16,650$               

ELECTRICAL 555 SF  $                         30.00  $              16,650 

27 27 00 00 TECHNOLOGY

28 28 00 00 ELECTRONIC SAFETY & SECURITY

31 31 00 00 EARTHWORK

32 32 00 00 EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS

33 33 00 00 SITE UTILITIES

SUBTOTAL 131,466$             

12.00% GENERAL CONDITIONS 15,776$               

SUBTOTAL 147,242$             

4.00% G.C. OVERHEAD 5,890$                 

SUBTOTAL 153,131$             

6.00% G.C. PROFIT 9,188$                 

SUBTOTAL 162,319$             

1.29% BOND 2,094$                 

SUBTOTAL 164,413$             

15.00% ESCALATION (ALLOWANCE) 24,662$               

SUBTOTAL 189,075$             

20.00% CONTINGENCY 37,815$               

TOTAL PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 226,890$             

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 14 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

01 01 00 00 GENERAL CONDITIONS -$                    

GENERAL CONDITIONS SEE BELOW

02 02 00 00 EXISTING CONDITIONS /DEMOLITION

03 03 00 00 CONCRETE 56,400$               

SPLASH PAD 752 SF 75.00$                           $              56,400 

04 04 0 00 MASONRY -$                    

05 05 00 00 METALS -$                    

06 06 00  00 WOOD & PLASTICS -$                    

07 07 00 00 THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION -$                    

08 08 00 00 OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) -$                    

09 09 00 00 FINISHES -$                    

10 10 00 00 SPECIALTIES & SIGNAGE -$                    

11 11000 EQUIPMENT -$                    

12 12 00 00 FURNISHINGS -$                    

13 13 00 00 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION -$                    

14 14 00 00 CONVEYING SYSTEMS -$                    

21 21 00 00 FIRE -$                    

22 22 00 000 PLUMBING 51,700$               

SPLASH PAD 752 SF  $                         68.75  $              51,700 

23 23 00 00 HVAC -$                    

26 26 00 000 ELECTRICAL 51,700$               

SPLASH PAD 752 SF  $                         68.75  $              51,700 

October 24, 2022

PREPARED FOR:

CPZ ARCHITECTS

CONCEPT A - SPLASH PAD

ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CMS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

1115 HERON BAY BLVD, SUITE 204

CORAL SPRINGS, FL  33076

(954) 481-1611 

CMS FILE # 2333 ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLEX

10 S OCEAN BLVD

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA  33460

CPZ DRAWINGS - SHEET NO. LC-101 & LC-102

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 15 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

CONCEPT A - SPLASH PAD

27 27 00 00 TECHNOLOGY -$                    

28 28 00 00 ELECTRONIC SAFETY & SECURITY -$                    

31 31 00 00 EARTHWORK 56,400$               

SPLASH PAD 752 SF  $                         75.00  $              56,400 

32 32 00 00 EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS -$                    

33 33 00 00 SITE UTILITIES 37,600$               

SPLASH PAD 752 SF  $                         50.00  $              37,600 

SUBTOTAL 253,800$             

12.00% GENERAL CONDITIONS 30,456$               

SUBTOTAL 284,256$             

4.00% G.C. OVERHEAD 11,370$               

SUBTOTAL 295,626$             

6.00% G.C. PROFIT 17,738$               

SUBTOTAL 313,364$             

1.29% BOND 4,042$                 

SUBTOTAL 317,406$             

15.00% ESCALATION (ALLOWANCE) 47,611$               

SUBTOTAL 365,017$             

20.00% CONTINGENCY 73,003$               

TOTAL PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 438,021$             

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 16 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

01 01 00 00 GENERAL CONDITIONS -$                    

GENERAL CONDITIONS SEE BELOW

02 02 00 00 EXISTING CONDITIONS /DEMOLITION -$                    

03 03 00 00 CONCRETE -$                    

04 04 0 00 MASONRY -$                    

05 05 00 00 METALS -$                    

06 06 00  00 WOOD & PLASTICS -$                    

07 07 00 00 THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION -$                    

08 08 00 00 OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) -$                    

09 09 00 00 FINISHES -$                    

10 10 00 00 SPECIALTIES & SIGNAGE -$                    

11 11000 EQUIPMENT -$                    

12 12 00 00 FURNISHINGS -$                    

13 13 00 00 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION -$                    

14 14 00 00 CONVEYING SYSTEMS -$                    

21 21 00 00 FIRE -$                    

22 22 00 000 PLUMBING -$                    

23 23 00 00 HVAC -$                    

26 26 00 000 ELECTRICAL -$                    

27 27 00 00 TECHNOLOGY -$                    

October 24, 2022

PREPARED FOR:

CPZ ARCHITECTS

CONCEPT A - EXTERIOR PAVING IMPROVEMENTS

ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CMS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

1115 HERON BAY BLVD, SUITE 204

CORAL SPRINGS, FL  33076

(954) 481-1611 

CMS FILE # 2333 ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLEX

10 S OCEAN BLVD

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA  33460

CPZ DRAWINGS - SHEET NO. LC-101 & LC-102

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 17 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

CONCEPT A - EXTERIOR PAVING IMPROVEMENTS

28 28 00 00 ELECTRONIC SAFETY & SECURITY -$                    

31 31 00 00 EARTHWORK -$                    

32 32 00 00 EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS 47,250$               

REMOVE AND REPLACE ASPHALT PAVING AT SERVICE 

ACCESS AREA (WEST SIDE) 3,150 SF  $                         15.00  $              47,250 

EXISTING ASPHALT AT OCEAN BLVD (EAST SIDE)  NIC 

33 33 00 00 SITE UTILITIES

SUBTOTAL 47,250$               

12.00% GENERAL CONDITIONS 5,670$                 

SUBTOTAL 52,920$               

4.00% G.C. OVERHEAD 2,117$                 

SUBTOTAL 55,037$               

6.00% G.C. PROFIT 3,302$                 

SUBTOTAL 58,339$               

1.29% BOND 753$                    

SUBTOTAL 59,092$               

15.00% ESCALATION (ALLOWANCE) 8,864$                 

SUBTOTAL 67,955$               

20.00% CONTINGENCY 13,591$               

TOTAL PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 81,546$               

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 18 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

01 01 00 00 GENERAL CONDITIONS -$                           

GENERAL CONDITIONS SEE BELOW

02 02 00 00 EXISTING CONDITIONS /DEMOLITION 928,931$                   

MOBILIZATION 1 LS  $             50,000.00  $                    50,000 

MOT - MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC 1 LS  $             50,000.00  $                    50,000 

EROSION CONTROL 

SF - INSTALL SILT FENCE 1,200 LF  $                      2.50  $                      3,000 

CL - CHAIN LINK FENCE RENTAL 1,200 LF  $                    11.85  $                    14,220 

CHAIN LINK FENCE GATE RENTAL 2 EA  $                  697.50  $                      1,395 

CE - CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 2,500 SF  $                      1.25  $                      3,125 

FS - FILTER SACK INLET/CATCH BASIN PROTECTION 14 EA  $                    73.13  $                      1,024 

DEMO. POOL

DEMO POOL DECK & SLAB 11,892 SF  $                    17.36  $                  206,458 

DEMO POOL BOTTOM SLAB 12,628 SF  $                    17.36  $                  219,236 

DEMO POOL WALLS 4,820 SF  $                    17.36  $                    83,681 

DEMO WADING POOL/DECK 4,820 SF  $                    17.36  $                    83,681 

DEMO WADING POOL WALLS 464 SF  $                    17.36  $                      8,056 

DEMO. BUILDINGS 

DEMO POOL MAINTENANCE BUILDING  (WEST SIDE) 1,603 SF  $                    10.56  $                    16,932 

DEMO POOL BUILDING 5,705 SF  $                    10.56  $                    60,259 

DEMO RETAINING WALL 433 LF  $                    56.00  $                    24,248 

DEMO. PAVING, BASE, HAUL

POOL MAINTENANCE PARKING LOT (WEST OF POOL) 3,127 SF  $                      7.50  $                    23,453 

SIDEWALK ADJACENT TO EXISTING ROAD (EAST OF POOL) 4,000 SF  $                      7.50  $                    30,000 

DEMO. MISCELLANEOUS

REMOVE MISC/INKNOWN 1 LS  $             50,000.00  $                    50,000 

03 03 00 00 CONCRETE 708,313$                   

CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE I/C SLAB ON GRADE AND 

ELEVATED SLAB (CHANGING ROOMS + RR'S) 4,574 SF  $                    93.75  $                  428,813 

12' RETAINING WALL 430 LF  $                  650.00  $                  279,500 

04 04 0 00 MASONRY 54,600$                     

MASONRY (CHANGING ROOMS + RR'S) 3,120.00 SF  $                    17.50  $                    54,600 

05 05 00 00 METALS 31,480$                     

42" RAILING (TOP OF RETAINING WALL N, W & S SIDE) 255 LF 74.00$                     $                    18,870 

8' FENCE (E SIDE, INCLS ENTRY GATE) 104 LF 121.25$                   $                    12,610 

06 06 00  00 WOOD & PLASTICS 14,294$                     

WOOD & PLASTICS (CHANGING ROOMS + RR'S) 4,574 SF  $                      3.13  $                    14,294 

07 07 00 00 THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION 81,581$                     

ROOFING & INSULATION (CHANGING ROOMS + RR'S) 2,287.00 SF  $                    18.75  $                    42,881 

WATERPROOFING AT RETAINING WALL 5,160.00 SF  $                      7.50  $                    38,700 

08 08 00 00 OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 85,763$                     

OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS)

OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 4,574 SF  $                    18.75  $                    85,763 

ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CMS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

1115 HERON BAY BLVD, SUITE 204

CORAL SPRINGS, FL  33076

(954) 481-1611 

CMS FILE # 2333 ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLEX

10 S OCEAN BLVD

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA  33460

CPZ DRAWINGS - SHEET NO. LC-101 & LC-102

October 24, 2022

PREPARED FOR:

CPZ ARCHITECTS

CONCEPT B - BASE

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 19 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

CONCEPT B - BASE

09 09 00 00 FINISHES 142,938$                   

2 STORY RESTROOM BUILDING.  GROUND FLOOR 

EQUIPMENT ROOM AND RESTROOMS UP TOP AT POOL 

LEVEL

STUCCO, DRYWALL, INSULATION, CEILINGS, FLOORING, 

PAINTING, ETC 4,574 SF  $                    31.25  $                  142,938 

10 10 00 00 SPECIALTIES & SIGNAGE 36,700$                     

SIGNAGE ALLOWANCE 1 LS  $             10,000.00  $                    10,000 

LOCKERS 72 EA  $                  350.00  $                    25,200 

BENCHES 2 EA  $                  750.00  $                      1,500 

11 11000 EQUIPMENT -$                           

12 12 00 00 FURNISHINGS -$                           

13 13 00 00 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION 1,255,568$                

MAIN POOL 

MAIN POOL 3,090 SF 281.25$                   $                  869,063 

POOL DECK 

POOL DECK 8,589 SF 45.00$                     $                  386,505 

14 14 00 00 CONVEYING SYSTEMS -$                           

21 21 00 00 FIRE 25,729$                     

WET PIPE SPRINKLER SYSTEM (ORDINARY HAZARD) 4,574 SF 5.63$                      25,729$                     

22 22 00 000 PLUMBING 161,500$                   

STORM WATER DRAINAGE

STORM WATER DRAINAGE 1 LS  $             10,000.00  $                    10,000 

PLUMBING FIXTURES

WC 7 EA  $               5,000.00  $                    35,000 

UR 3 EA  $               3,500.00  $                    10,500 

LAV 6 EA  $               3,500.00  $                    21,000 

SHWR 6 EA  $               7,500.00  $                    45,000 

SHWR ADA 2 EA  $               7,500.00  $                    15,000 

EWC 1 EA  $               5,000.00  $                      5,000 

FLOOR DRAIN 4 EA  $               2,500.00  $                    10,000 

WATER HEATERS

WATER HEATERS 1 LS  $             10,000.00  $                    10,000 

23 23 00 00 HVAC 68,610$                     

HVAC 4,574 SF 15.00$                    68,610$                     

26 26 00 000 ELECTRICAL 199,720$                   

ELECTRICAL 4,574 SF  $                    30.00  $                  137,220 

SITE LIGHTING 1 LS  $             62,500.00 62,500$                     

27 27 00 00 TECHNOLOGY -$                           

28 28 00 00 ELECTRONIC SAFETY & SECURITY -$                           

31 31 00 00 EARTHWORK 756,996$                   

EXCAVATION & BACKFILL 

EXCAVATE POOL AREA 4,677 CY  $                      9.38  $                    43,847 

BACK FILL POOL AREA 5,846 CY  $                    26.88  $                  157,119 

EXCAVATE SITE 5,363 CY  $                      9.38  $                    50,274 

BACK FILL SITE 13,406 CY  $                    26.88  $                  360,297 

6"LIMEROCK BASE 5,363 SY 21.06$                    112,949$                   

12"STAB.SUBGRD. 5,363 SY 6.06$                      32,510$                     

32 32 00 00 SITE EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS 529,341$                   

PAVING

EAST SIDE ADJACENT TO EXISTING ROAD 6,462 SF  $                    45.00  $                  290,790 

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 20 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

CONCEPT B - BASE

SHADE STRUCTURE/COVERED GATHERING SPACE

TENSIONED FABRIC STRUCTURE (2 EA) 873 SF  $                    50.00  $                    43,650 

LANDSCAPE

ARTIFICIAL TURF (INCL CONC BASE) 2,807 SF  $                    20.45  $                    57,403 

PLANTING 18,333 SF  $                      7.50  $                  137,498 

33 33 00 00 SITE UTILITIES 207,920$                   

UTILITIES - ALLOWANCES

STORM DRAINAGE 1 ALW  $             50,000.00  $                    50,000 

SITE WATER UTILITIES 1 ALW  $             50,000.00  $                    50,000 

FIRE 1 ALW  $             50,000.00  $                    50,000 

SANITARY SEWER 1 ALW  $             50,000.00  $                    50,000 

GAS 300 LF  $                    26.40  $                      7,920 

SUBTOTAL 5,289,982$                

12.00% GENERAL CONDITIONS 634,798$                   

SUBTOTAL 5,924,780$                

4.00% G.C. OVERHEAD 236,991$                   

SUBTOTAL 6,161,771$                

6.00% G.C. PROFIT 369,706$                   

SUBTOTAL 6,531,478$                

1.290% BOND 84,256$                     

SUBTOTAL 6,615,734$                

15.00% ESCALATION (ALLOWANCE) 992,360$                   

SUBTOTAL 7,608,094$                

20.00% CONTINGENCY 1,521,619$                

TOTAL PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 9,129,712$                

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 21 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

01 01 00 00 GENERAL CONDITIONS -$                    

BUILDING GENERAL CONDITIONS SEE BELOW

02 02 00 00 EXISTING CONDITIONS /DEMOLITION -$                    

03 03 00 00 CONCRETE 208,594$            

CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE INCLUDING SLAB ON GRADE 2,225 SF 93.75$               $           208,594 

04 04 00 00 MASONRY 20,859$              

MASONRY 2,225 SF  $               9.38  $             20,859 

05 05 00 00 METALS 13,906$              

METALS 2,225 SF  $               6.25  $             13,906 

06 06 00 00 WOOD & PLASTICS 6,953$                

WOOD & PLASTICS 2,225 SF 3.13                   $               6,953 

07 07 00 00 THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION 41,719$              

THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION 2,225 SF 18.75                 $             41,719 

08 08 00 00 OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 41,719$              

OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 2,225 SF 18.75                 $             41,719 

09 09 00 00 FINISHES 69,531$              

FINISHES 2,225 SF  $             31.25  $             69,531 

10 10 00 00 SPECIALTIES & SIGNAGE -$                    

11 11 00 00 EQUIPMENT -$                    

12 12 00 00 FURNISHINGS -$                    

13 13 00 00 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION -$                    

14 14 00 00 CONVEYING SYSTEMS -$                    

21 21 00 00 FIRE SUPRESSION 12,516$              

WET PIPE SPRINKLER SYSTEM (ORDINARY HAZARD) 2,225 SF 5.63$                12,516$              

ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CMS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

1115 HERON BAY BLVD, SUITE 204

CORAL SPRINGS, FL  33076

(954) 481-1611 

CMS FILE # 2333 ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLEX

10 S OCEAN BLVD

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA  33460

CPZ DRAWINGS - SHEET NO. LC-101 & LC-102

October 24, 2022

PREPARED FOR:

CPZ ARCHITECTS

CONCEPT B - LIFEGUARD OFFICE

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 22 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

CONCEPT B - LIFEGUARD OFFICE

22 22 00 00 PLUMBING 18,500$              

WC 1 EA  $        5,000.00  $               5,000 

LAV 1 EA  $        3,500.00  $               3,500 

SHWR ADA 1 EA  $        7,500.00  $               7,500 

FLOOR DRAIN 1 EA  $        2,500.00  $               2,500 

23 23 00 00 HVAC 44,500$              

HVAC 2,225 SF 20.00$              44,500$              

26 26 00 00 ELECTRICAL 66,750$              

ELECTRICAL 2,225 SF  $             30.00  $             66,750 

27 27 00 00 TECHNOLOGY -$                    

28 28 00 00 ELECTRONIC SAFETY & SECURITY -$                    

31 31 00 00 EARTHWORK -$                    

32 32 00 00 EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS -$                    

33 33 00 00 SITE UTILITIES -$                    

SUBTOTAL 545,547$            

12.00% GENERAL CONDITIONS 65,466$              
SUBTOTAL 611,013$            

4.00% G.C. OVERHEAD 24,441$              

SUBTOTAL 635,453$            

6.00% G.C. PROFIT 38,127$              

SUBTOTAL 673,580$            
1.29% BOND 8,689$                

SUBTOTAL 682,269$            
15.00% ESCALATION (ALLOWANCE) 102,340$            

SUBTOTAL 784,610$            
20.00% CONTINGENCY 156,922$            

TOTAL PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 941,532$            

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 23 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

01 01 00 00 GENERAL CONDITIONS -$                           

GENERAL CONDITIONS SEE BELOW

02 02 00 00 EXISTING CONDITIONS / DEMOLITION

03 03 00 00 CONCRETE 94,875$                     

CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE INCLUDING SLAB ON 

GRADE
1,012 SF 93.75$          

 $                    94,875 

04 04 0 00 MASONRY 9,488$                       

MASONRY 1,012 SF  $            9.38  $                      9,488 

05 05 00 00 METALS 6,325$                       

METALS 1,012 SF  $            6.25  $                      6,325 

06 06 00  00 WOOD & PLASTICS 3,163$                       

WOOD & PLASTICS 1,012 SF 3.13               $                      3,163 

07 07 00 00 THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION 18,975$                     

THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION 1,012 SF 18.75  $                    18,975 

08 08 00 00 OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 18,975$                     

OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 1,012 SF 18.75  $                    18,975 

09 09 00 00 FINISHES 31,625$                     

FINISHES 1,012 SF  $          31.25  $                    31,625 

10 10 00 00 SPECIALTIES & SIGNAGE -$                           

11 11000 EQUIPMENT -$                           

12 12 00 00 FURNISHINGS -$                           

13 13 00 00 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION -$                           

14 14 00 00 CONVEYING SYSTEMS -$                           

21 21 00 00 FIRE 5,693$                       

WET PIPE SPRINKLER SYSTEM (ORDINARY HAZARD) 1,012 SF 5.63$            5,693$                       

ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CMS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

1115 HERON BAY BLVD, SUITE 204

CORAL SPRINGS, FL  33076

(954) 481-1611 

CMS FILE # 2333 ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLEX

10 S OCEAN BLVD

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA  33460

CPZ DRAWINGS - SHEET NO. LC-101 & LC-102

October 24, 2022

PREPARED FOR:

CPZ ARCHITECTS

CONCEPT B - PUBLIC RESTROOMS

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 24 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

CONCEPT B - PUBLIC RESTROOMS

22 22 00 000 PLUMBING 59,500$                     

WC 5 EA  $     5,000.00  $                    25,000 

UR 1 EA  $     3,500.00  $                      3,500 

LAV 6 EA  $     3,500.00  $                    21,000 

FLOOR DRAIN 2 EA  $     2,500.00  $                      5,000 

EWC 1 EA  $     5,000.00  $                      5,000 

23 23 00 00 HVAC 20,240$                     

HVAC 1,012 SF 20.00$          20,240$                     

26 26 00 000 ELECTRICAL 30,360$                     

ELECTRICAL 1,012 SF  $          30.00  $                    30,360 

27 27 00 00 TECHNOLOGY -$                           

28 28 00 00 ELECTRONIC SAFETY & SECURITY -$                           

31 31 00 00 EARTHWORK -$                           

32 32 00 00 SITE EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS -$                           

33 33 00 00 SITE UTILITIES -$                           

SUBTOTAL 299,218$                   

12.00% GENERAL CONDITIONS 35,906$                     

SUBTOTAL 335,124$                   

4.00% G.C. OVERHEAD 13,405$                     

SUBTOTAL 348,529$                   

6.00% G.C. PROFIT 20,912$                     

SUBTOTAL 369,440$                   

1.29% BOND 4,766$                       

SUBTOTAL 374,206$                   

15.00% ESCALATION (ALLOWANCE) 56,131$                     

SUBTOTAL 430,337$                   
20.00% CONTINGENCY 86,067$                     

TOTAL PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 516,404$                   

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 25 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

01 01 00 00 GENERAL CONDITIONS -$                  

GENERAL CONDITIONS SEE BELOW

02 02 00 00 EXISTING CONDITIONS /DEMOLITION

03 03 00 00 CONCRETE 70,500$            

CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE INCLUDING SLAB ON GRADE 940 SF 75.00$           $            70,500 

04 04 00 00 MASONRY 8,813$              

MASONRY 940 SF  $            9.38  $              8,813 

05 05 00 00 METALS 5,875$              

METALS 940 SF  $            6.25  $              5,875 

06 06 00 00 WOOD & PLASTICS 2,938$              

WOOD & PLASTICS 940 SF 3.13$            2,938$              

07 07 00 00 THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION 17,625$            

THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION 940 SF 18.75  $            17,625 

08 08 00 00 OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 17,625$            

OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 940 SF 18.75  $            17,625 

09 09 00 00 FINISHES 29,375$            

FINISHES 940 SF  $          31.25  $            29,375 

10 10 00 00 SPECIALTIES & SIGNAGE -$                  

11 11 00 00 EQUIPMENT -$                  

12 12 00 00 FURNISHINGS -$                  

13 13 00 00 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION -$                  

14 14 00 00 CONVEYING SYSTEMS -$                  

21 21 00 00 FIRE SUPRESSION 5,288$              

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLEX

10 S OCEAN BLVD

CPZ DRAWINGS - SHEET NO. LC-101 & LC-102

ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

October 24, 2022

CONCEPT B - TACO BAR

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA  33460

PREPARED FOR:
CPZ ARCHITECTS

CMS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

1115 HERON BAY BLVD, SUITE 204

CORAL SPRINGS, FL  33076

(954) 481-1611 

CMS FILE # 2333 ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 26 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

CONCEPT B - TACO BAR

WET PIPE SPRINKLER SYSTEM (ORDINARY HAZARD) 940 SF 5.63$            5,288$              

22 22 00 00 PLUMBING 18,213$            

PLUMBING 940 SF 19.38$          18,213$            

23 23 00 00 HVAC 18,800$            

HVAC 940 SF 20.00$          18,800$            

26 26 00 00 ELECTRICAL 28,200$            

ELECTRICAL 940 SF 30.00$          28,200$            

27 27 00 00 TECHNOLOGY -$                  

28 28 00 00 ELECTRONIC SAFETY & SECURITY -$                  

31 31 00 00 EARTHWORK -$                  

32 32 00 00 EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS -$                  

33 33 00 00 SITE UTILITIES -$                  

SUBTOTAL 223,250$          

12.00% GENERAL CONDITIONS 26,790$            

SUBTOTAL 250,040$          

4.00% G.C. OVERHEAD 10,002$            

SUBTOTAL 260,042$          
6.00% G.C. PROFIT 15,602$            

SUBTOTAL 275,644$          
1.29% BOND 3,556$              

SUBTOTAL 279,200$          
15.00% CONTINGENCY 41,880$            

SUBTOTAL 321,080$          
20.00% CONTINGENCY 64,216$            

TOTAL PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 385,296$          

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 27 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

01 01 00 00 GENERAL CONDITIONS -$                   

BUILDING GENERAL CONDITIONS SEE BELOW

02 02 00 00 EXISTING CONDITIONS /DEMOLITION -$                   

03 03 00 00 CONCRETE 52,031$             

CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE INCLUDING SLAB ON GRADE 555 SF 93.75$              $             52,031 

04 04 00 00 MASONRY 5,203$               

MASONRY 555 SF  $               9.38  $               5,203 

05 05 00 00 METALS 3,469$               

METALS 555 SF  $               6.25  $               3,469 

06 06 00 00 WOOD & PLASTICS 1,734$               

WOOD & PLASTICS 555 SF 3.13$               1,734$               

07 07 00 00 THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION 10,406$             

THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION 555 SF 18.75$             10,406$             

08 08 00 00 OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 10,406$             

OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) 555 SF 18.75$             10,406$             

09 09 00 00 FINISHES 17,344$             

FINISHES 555 SF  $             31.25  $             17,344 

10 10 00 00 SPECIALTIES & SIGNAGE -$                   

11 11 00 00 EQUIPMENT -$                   

12 12 00 00 FURNISHINGS -$                   

13 13 00 00 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION -$                   

14 14 00 00 CONVEYING SYSTEMS -$                   

21 21 00 00 FIRE SUPRESSION 3,122$               

CONCEPT B - ADMINISTRATION PORTION OF TACO BAR

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLEX

10 S OCEAN BLVD

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA  33460

CPZ DRAWINGS - SHEET NO. LC-101 & LC-102

ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

October 24, 2022

PREPARED FOR:

CPZ ARCHITECTS

CMS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

1115 HERON BAY BLVD, SUITE 204

CORAL SPRINGS, FL  33076

(954) 481-1611 

CMS FILE # 2333 ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 28 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

CONCEPT B - ADMINISTRATION PORTION OF TACO BAR

WET PIPE SPRINKLER SYSTEM (ORDINARY HAZARD) 555 SF 5.63$               3,122$               

22 22 00 00 PLUMBING -$                   

23 23 00 00 HVAC 11,100$             

HVAC 555 SF 20.00$             11,100$             

26 26 00 00 ELECTRICAL 16,650$             

ELECTRICAL 555 SF  $             30.00  $             16,650 

27 27 00 00 TECHNOLOGY -$                   

28 28 00 00 ELECTRONIC SAFETY & SECURITY -$                   

31 31 00 00 EARTHWORK -$                   

32 32 00 00 EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS -$                   

33 33 00 00 SITE UTILITIES -$                   

SUBTOTAL 131,466$           
12.00% GENERAL CONDITIONS 15,776$             

SUBTOTAL 147,242$           
4.00% G.C. OVERHEAD 5,890$               

SUBTOTAL 153,131$           

6.00% G.C. PROFIT 9,188$               

SUBTOTAL 162,319$           
1.29% BOND 2,094$               

SUBTOTAL 164,413$           
15.00% ESCALATION (ALLOWANCE) 24,662$             

SUBTOTAL 189,075$           
20.00% CONTINGENCY 37,815$             

TOTAL PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 226,890$           

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 29 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

01 01 00 00 GENERAL CONDITIONS -$                   

BUILDING GENERAL CONDITIONS SEE BELOW

02 02 00 00 EXISTING CONDITIONS /DEMOLITION

03 03 00 00 CONCRETE 76,350$             

SPLASH PAD I/C WATER FEATURE 1,018 SF 75.00$              $             76,350 

04 04 00 00 MASONRY -$                   

05 05 00 00 METALS -$                   

06 06 00 00 WOOD & PLASTICS -$                   

07 07 00 00 THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION -$                   

08 08 00 00 OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) -$                   

09 09 00 00 FINISHES -$                   

10 10 00 00 SPECIALTIES & SIGNAGE -$                   

11 11 00 00 EQUIPMENT -$                   

12 12 00 00 FURNISHINGS -$                   

13 13 00 00 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION -$                   

14 14 00 00 CONVEYING SYSTEMS -$                   

21 21 00 00 FIRE SUPRESSION -$                   

22 22 00 00 PLUMBING 69,988$             

SPLASH PAD I/C WATER FEATURE 1,018 SF 68.75$              $             69,988 

23 23 00 00 HVAC -$                   

October 24, 2022

PREPARED FOR:

CPZ ARCHITECTS

CONCEPT B - SPLASH PAD + WATER FEATURE

ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CMS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

1115 HERON BAY BLVD, SUITE 204

CORAL SPRINGS, FL  33076

(954) 481-1611 

CMS FILE # 2333 ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLEX

10 S OCEAN BLVD

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA  33460

CPZ DRAWINGS - SHEET NO. LC-101 & LC-102

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 30 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

CONCEPT B - SPLASH PAD + WATER FEATURE

26 26 00 00 ELECTRICAL 69,988$             

SPLASH PAD I/C WATER FEATURE 1,018 SF 68.75$              $             69,988 

27 27 00 00 TECHNOLOGY -$                   

28 28 00 00 ELECTRONIC SAFETY & SECURITY -$                   

31 31 00 00 EARTHWORK 76,350$             

SPLASH PAD I/C WATER FEATURE 1,018 SF 75.00$              $             76,350 

32 32 00 00 EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS -$                   

33 33 00 00 SITE UTILITIES 50,900$             

SPLASH PAD I/C WATER FEATURE 1,018 SF 50.00$              $             50,900 

SUBTOTAL 343,575$           
12.00% GENERAL CONDITIONS 41,229$             

SUBTOTAL 384,804$           
4.00% G.C. OVERHEAD 15,392$             

SUBTOTAL 400,196$           

6.00% G.C. PROFIT 24,012$             

SUBTOTAL 424,208$           
1.29% BOND 5,472$               

SUBTOTAL 429,680$           
15.00% ESCALATION (ALLOWANCE) 64,452$             

SUBTOTAL 494,132$           
20.00% CONTINGENCY 98,826$             

TOTAL PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 592,959$           

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 31 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

01 01 00 00 GENERAL CONDITIONS -$                   

BUILDING GENERAL CONDITIONS SEE BELOW

02 02 00 00 EXISTING CONDITIONS /DEMOLITION

03 03 00 00 CONCRETE -$                   

04 04 00 00 MASONRY -$                   

05 05 00 00 METALS -$                   

06 06 00 00 WOOD & PLASTICS -$                   

07 07 00 00 THERMAL & MOISTURE  PROTECTION -$                   

08 08 00 00 OPENINGS (DOORS & WINDOWS) -$                   

09 09 00 00 FINISHES -$                   

10 10 00 00 SPECIALTIES & SIGNAGE -$                   

11 11 00 00 EQUIPMENT -$                   

12 12 00 00 FURNISHINGS -$                   

13 13 00 00 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION -$                   

14 14 00 00 CONVEYING SYSTEMS -$                   

21 21 00 00 FIRE SUPRESSION -$                   

22 22 00 00 PLUMBING -$                   

23 23 00 00 HVAC -$                   

October 24, 2022

PREPARED FOR:

CPZ ARCHITECTS

CONCEPT B - EXTERIOR PAVING IMPROVEMENTS

ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CMS-CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

1115 HERON BAY BLVD, SUITE 204

CORAL SPRINGS, FL  33076

(954) 481-1611 

CMS FILE # 2333 ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLEX

10 S OCEAN BLVD

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA  33460

CPZ DRAWINGS - SHEET NO. LC-101 & LC-102

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 32 of 34



DIVISION # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT AMOUNT

CONCEPT B - EXTERIOR PAVING IMPROVEMENTS

26 26 00 00 ELECTRICAL -$                   

27 27 00 00 TECHNOLOGY -$                   

28 28 00 00 ELECTRONIC SAFETY & SECURITY -$                   

31 31 00 00 EARTHWORK -$                   

32 32 00 00 EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS 47,250$             

REMOVE AND REPLACE ASPHALT PAVING AT SERVICE 

ACCESS AREA (WEST SIDE) 3,150 SF  $             15.00  $             47,250 

EXISTING ASPHALT AT OCEAN BLVD (EAST SIDE)  NIC 

33 33 00 00 SITE UTILITIES -$                   

SUBTOTAL 47,250$             
12.00% GENERAL CONDITIONS 5,670$               

SUBTOTAL 52,920$             
4.00% G.C. OVERHEAD 2,117$               

SUBTOTAL 55,037$             

6.00% G.C. PROFIT 3,302$               

SUBTOTAL 58,339$             
1.29% BOND 753$                  

SUBTOTAL 59,092$             
15.00% ESCALATION (ALLOWANCE) 8,864$               

SUBTOTAL 67,955$             
20.00% CONTINGENCY 13,591$             

TOTAL PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 81,546$             

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 33 of 34



Page 34 of 34

1 This estimate assumes a CM-At-Risk Contract basis.

2 This estimate is based on order of magnitude drawings Concept A - LC-

101 & Concept B - LC-102 provided by CPZ Architects. 
3 Due to the present volatile nature of the construction market, construction 

material cost could change substantially prior to construction.
4 Utility Connection and Impact Fees are assumed to be BY OWNER and 

are NOT INCLUDED.
5 Off-site Storage is NOT INCLUDED.

6 Night Watchman/Security Guard Services are NOT INCLUDED.

7 Testing is NOT INCLUDED.

8 Asbestos and Lead Paint Abatement/Removal is NOT INCLUDED.

9 Petroleum or contaminate abatement / removal is NOT INCLUDED.

10 Contaminated soil or water, removal or processing is NOT INCLUDED.

11 Assumed electrical, sewer, water drainage are existing & available for use 

on this project. 

12 Unknown Conditions including muck/demucking, rerouting of major utilities 

(water, sewer, drainage, electrical) are NOT INCLUDED.

13 FF&E NOT INCLUDED.

14 Kitchen equipment NOT INCLUDED.

CMS-Construction Management Services, Inc.

1115 HERON BAY BLVD, SUITE 204

CORAL SPRINGS, FL  33076

954-481-1611

CMS FILE # 2333 ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

PREPARED FOR:

CPZ ARCHITECTS

ORDER OF MAGNITUDE

QUALIFICATIONS

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLEX

10 S OCEAN BLVD

LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA  33460

CPZ DRAWINGS - SHEET NO. LC-101 & LC-102

October 24, 2022

Prepared by CMS 10/24/2022 Page 34 of 34



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: December 6, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Ordinance 2022-20 – First Reading – amending Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” 
Article 3 “Zoning Districts,” Division 7 “Public Districts,” Section 23.3-26 “P- Public,” and Section 
23.3-27 “PROS – Public Recreation and Open Space” for consistency with the use tables in 
Section 23.3-6 and clarifying the approval process for uses in the public districts; and Division 8 
“Conservation District,” Section 23.3-28 “C- Conservation,” for consistency with the use tables 
in Section 23.3-6, correcting a scrivener’s error and modifying the approval process to require 
conditional use approval for new uses; and Division 1 “Generally,” Section 23.3-6 “Use Tables,” 
to remove the P, PROS, and C zoning districts from all use categories in the use tables in this 
section except from the “Temporary Uses” category 

 
SUMMARY: 

The proposed amendment would allow indoor storage (warehouse) in the Public (P) zoning 
district as consistent with existing and proposed (Education Foundation) uses on publicly owned 
lands. The amendment would also remove public and conservation districts from the use table, 
and clarify the list of permitted uses and required review processes in the zoning district sections 
to enhance clarity and ease of use of use of the Land Development Regulations (LDR) for these 
zoning districts.  This amendment is a housekeeping item that would also correct a scrivener’s 
error in addition to providing clarity to the zoning district sections. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
A portion of the subject amendment to the City’s Land Development Regulations (LDRs) was 
drafted based on City Commission direction to staff to allow for indoor storage (warehouse) in 
the Public (P) zoning district to reflect existing uses on City properties and to facilitate the 
development of a vacant parcel on Barton Road owned by the PBC School District for an 
Education Foundation teacher supply and training center.  In preparation of that text 
amendment, it was determined that removal of the public and conservation districts from the 
use table and clarification of the permitted uses and review processes in those zoning districts 
sections would enhance the ease of use and clarity of the LDR. Additional minor housekeeping 
items were also addressed. 

The Historic Resources Preservation Board (HRPB) voted to recommend approval (4-1) of the 
proposed text amendment to the City Commission at the October 12, 2022 meeting. The 
Planning & Zoning Board (PZB) unanimously voted to recommend approval of the proposed 
text amendment to the City Commission at its October 19, 2022 meeting*.   

 

MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance 2022-20 on First Reading, and to schedule second 
reading for January 2023.  



 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Draft Ordinance 2022-20 
PZHP Staff Report  
 

*Note: draft meeting minutes were not available upon publication of this staff report. 



2022-20 1 

 2 
ORDINANCE 2022-20 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE 3 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 23 “LAND 4 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 3 “ZONING DISTRICTS,” 5 
DIVISION 7 “PUBLIC DISTRICTS,” SECTION 23.3-26 “P-PUBLIC” AND 6 
SECTION 23.3-27 “PROS – PUBLIC RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE,” 7 
FOR CONSISTENCY WITH THE USE TABLES IN SECTION 23.3-6 AND 8 

CLARIFYING THE APPROVAL PROCESS FOR USES IN THE PUBLIC 9 
DISTRICTS; AMENDING ARTICLE 3 “ZONING DISTRICTS,” DIVISION 8 10 
“CONSERVATION DISTRICT” SECTION 23.3-28 “C – 11 
CONSERVATION” FOR CONSISTENCY WITH THE USE TABLES IN 12 
SECTION 23.3-6, CORRECTING A SCRIVENER’S ERROR AND 13 

MODIFYING THE APPROVAL PROCESS TO REQUIRE CONDITIONAL 14 
USE APPROVAL FOR NEW USES; AND AMENDING ARTICLE 3 15 

“ZONING DISTRICTS,” DIVISION 1 “GENERALLY” SECTION 23.3-6 16 
“USE TABLES” BY REMOVING THE “P,” “PROS” AND “C” ZONING 17 
DISTRICTS FROM ALL USE CATEGORIES IN THE USE TABLE 18 
EXCEPT FROM THE “TEMPORARY USES” CATEGORY; AND 19 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION AND 20 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE 21 

 22 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”), is a duly constituted 23 

municipality having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution 24 

and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 25 
 26 

WHEREAS, as provided in Section 2(b), Article VIII of the Constitution of the State 27 

of Florida, and Section 166.021(1), Florida Statutes, the City of Lake Worth Beach (the 28 

“City”), enjoys all governmental, corporate, and proprietary powers necessary to conduct 29 
municipal government, perform municipal functions, and render municipal services, and 30 
may exercise any power for municipal purposes, except as expressly prohibited by law; 31 

and  32 
 33 

WHEREAS, as provided in Section 166.021(3), Florida Statutes, the governing 34 
body of each municipality in the state has the power to enact legislation concerning any 35 
subject matter upon which the state legislature may act, except when expressly prohibited 36 

by law; and  37 
 38 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23 “Land Development 39 

Regulations,”, Article 3 “Zoning Districts,” Division 7 “Public Districts,” Section 23.3-26 “P- 40 

Public,” and Section 23.3-27 “PROS – Public Recreation and Open Space” for 41 
consistency with the use tables in Section 23.3-6 and clarifying the approval process for 42 
uses in the public districts; and 43 

 44 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23 “Land Development 45 

Regulations,”, Article 3 “Zoning Districts,” Division 8 “Conservation District,” Section 23.3-46 
28 “C- Conservation,” for consistency with the use tables in Section 23.3-6, correcting a 47 
scrivener’s error and modifying the approval process to require conditional use approval 48 
for new uses; and 49 

 50 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-20 

 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23 “Land Development 51 

Regulations,”, Article 3 “Zoning Districts,” Division 1 “Generally,” Section 23.3-6 “Use 52 
Tables,” to remove the P, PROS, and C zoning districts from all use categories in the use 53 
tables in this section except from the “Temporary Uses” category; and 54 

 55 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board, in its capacity as the local planning 56 
agency, considered the proposed amendments at a duly advertised public hearing; and 57 

 58 
WHEREAS, the Historic Resources Preservation Board, in its capacity as the local 59 

planning agency, considered the proposed amendments at a duly advertised public 60 

hearing; and 61 
 62 
WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and declares that the adoption of this 63 

ordinance is appropriate, and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the 64 
City, its residents and visitors. 65 

 66 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 67 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 68 

 69 
Section 1: The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed as 70 

being true and correct and are made a specific part of this ordinance as if set forth herein.  71 

 72 
Section 2: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,”, Article 3 “Zoning 73 

Districts,” Division 7 “Public Districts,” Section 23.3-26 “P- Public,” is hereby amended to 74 

read as follows: 75 

 76 

Sec. 23.3-26. P—Public. 77 

a) Intent. The "public district" designates locations for public schools and municipal facilities 78 
including City Hall, City Hall Annex, Lake Worth Public Library, Pine Crest Cemetery and 79 
the reclaimed landfill site at the southern city limits. It also provides for publicly owned utility 80 
facilities. Because of the diverse variety of uses permitted in the "public district" and the 81 
mapping of the district throughout the city, all uses are permitted as conditional uses. The 82 
P public district implements the P public land use category of the Lake Worth 83 
Comprehensive Plan.  84 

b) Use restrictions. Uses permitted by right and as conditional uses shall be subject to the 85 
applicable provisions of Article 4, Development Standards. Refer to the permitted use table 86 
at section 23.3-6 for a complete list of uses.  87 

1. Principal uses permitted by right in P public district. No uses are permitted by right 88 
in the P public district. All principal uses shall be subject to conditional use review.  89 

2. Principal uses permitted as either administrative or conditional uses in P public 90 
district. 91 

A. Office uses - low to high intensity.  92 

B. Institutional uses - low to high intensity.  93 

C.  Public uses, including recreational facilities - low to high intensity.  94 

D. Cultural & Artisanal uses, including radio and television broadcasting studios & 95 
assembly uses such as a performing arts theater - low to high intensity.  96 



Pg.3, Ord. 2022-20 

E.  Vehicular & Industrial uses in support of governmental & school/educational 97 
operations, including warehouse (indoor storage) and repair and maintenance 98 
facilities - low to high intensity. 99 

F.D. Heavy utility facilities.  100 

G E.. Light utility facilities.  101 

H.F. Marinas.  102 

I.G. Power plants generation facilities & substations.  103 

J.H. Public safety facilities, including fire stations and police stations.  104 

K. I. Water towers.  105 

L. J. Essential services.  106 

M. K. Communication towers.  107 

L. Radio and television broadcasting studios  108 

N. Cemetery 109 

O. Community facilities such as community centers, nature centers, community 110 
gardens, libraries, museums, and ballroom, banquet, and meeting rooms. 111 

P. Outdoor Markets & Mobile Food Vending Courts 112 

3. Accessory uses permitted as either administrative or conditional uses in P public 113 
district. Any use accessory to and customarily incidental to a permitted principal use, 114 
including commercial, retail and educational uses, permitted as either an 115 
administrative if less than 2,500 sf, or as a conditional use if greater than 2,500 sf.  116 

c) Development regulations for P public district sites which lie adjacent to land zoned for 117 
residential use. P public district sites which lie adjacent to any parcel zoned with a district 118 
with the term "residential" in its name shall be subject to minimum development regulations 119 
as set forth below, or by higher development regulations if determined necessary pursuant 120 
to conditional use review and approval. All new public buildings shall use green/sustainable 121 
building design and obtain LEED certification.  122 

1. Minimum lot dimension for P public district. 123 

A. Minimum lot area: Six thousand five hundred (6,500) square feet.  124 

B. Minimum lot width: Fifty (50) feet.  125 

2. Maximum height of buildings in P public district. 126 

A. Principal building: Sixty-five (65) feet.  127 

B. Garages and other accessory buildings: Twenty-five (25) feet.  128 

3. Minimum setbacks for building in P public district. 129 

A. Minimum front setback: Twenty (20) feet.  130 

B. Minimum side setback:  131 

(1) From street side lot lines: Twenty (20) feet.  132 

(2) From interior side lot lines adjacent to land zoned in any district other than 133 
a district with the term "residential" in its name: none.  134 

(3) From interior side lot lines adjacent to land zoned in any district with the 135 
term "residential" in its name: Ten (10) feet.  136 

C. Minimum rear setback: Ten (10) feet.  137 



Pg. 4, Ord. 2022-20 

 
D. Buildings in excess of thirty-five (35) feet in height shall provide an additional 138 

front and rear setback of between eight (8) and twelve (12) feet to the minimum 139 
required front and rear setbacks.  140 

4. Floor area ratio. The maximum FAR is 2.0.  141 

5. Maximum impermeable surface for use in P public district. The maximum permitted 142 
impermeable surface for nonresidential uses in the P public district shall be sixty-143 
five (65) percent.  144 

d) Development regulations for P public district sites which do not lie adjacent to land zoned 145 
for residential use. P public district sites which do not lie adjacent to any parcel zoned with 146 
a district with the term "residential" in its name shall be subject to minimum development 147 
regulations as set forth in the most restrictive adjacent district.  148 

e) Supplemental regulations for the P public district. Uses permitted by right and uses 149 
permitted as either administrative or conditional All uses shall be subject to applicable 150 
provisions of Article 4, Development Standards.  151 

 152 

Section 3: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,”, Article 3 “Zoning 153 
Districts,” Division 7 “Public Districts,” Section 23.3-27 “PROS—Public recreation and 154 

open space,” is hereby amended to read as follows: 155 
 156 

Sec. 23.3-27. PROS—Public recreation and open space. 157 

a) Intent. The public recreation and open space district designates locations for parks and 158 
other outdoor open space areas intended for active and passive use. The district 159 
implements the public recreation and open space land use category in the Lake Worth 160 
Comprehensive Plan.  161 

b) Use restrictions. Uses permitted by right and as conditional uses shall be subject to the 162 
applicable provisions of Article 4, Development Standards. Refer to the permitted use table 163 
at section 23.3-6 for a complete list of uses.  164 

1. Principal uses permitted by right in PROS district. 165 

A. Parks and other outdoor open space areas intended for passive use.  166 

B. Essential services.  167 

2. Principal uses permitted as either administrative or conditional uses. 168 

A. Public uses - medium to high intensity.  169 

B. Institutional uses - medium to high intensity.  170 

C.  Cemetery. 171 

D. Gymnastic studios / training facilities & gym/studio for dance or fitness  172 

E. Ballroom, banquet and meeting rooms 173 

F. Governmental Administrative Office 174 

 175 

3. Accessory uses permitted by right. Any use accessory to and customarily incidental 176 
to a principal use permitted by right.  177 

4. Accessory uses permitted as either administrative or conditional uses in PROS 178 
district. Any use accessory to and customarily incidental to a principal use permitted 179 



Pg.5, Ord. 2022-20 

as a conditional use shall be permitted as either an administrative use if less than 180 
2,500 sf, or as a conditional use if greater than 2,500 sf. 181 

 182 

c) Development regulations.  183 

1. Height: Thirty-five (35) feet.  184 

2. Setback: Twenty (20) feet from all lot lines.  185 

3. Floor area ratio: Maximum FAR of 0.1.  186 

 187 

Section 4: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,”, Article 3 “Zoning 188 
Districts,” Division 8 “Conservation District,” Section .3-28 “C—Conservation,” is hereby 189 
amended to read as follows: 190 

 191 

Sec. 23.3-28. C—Conservation. 192 

a) Intent. The C conservation district is intended to provide standards for the protection and 193 
preservation of areas having natural beauty and to mitigate the effects of development on 194 
the environment. A conservation area designation can be applied to a tract of land to provide 195 
protected status in order to ensure that natural features or biota are safeguarded. A 196 
conservation area may be a nature reserve, a park, a land reclamation project or other area.  197 

b) Use restrictions. Uses permitted by right and as either administrative or conditional uses shall 198 
be subject to the applicable provisions of Article 4, Development Standards. Refer to the 199 
permitted use table at section 23.3-6 for a complete list of uses.  200 

1. Permitted uses by right. No uses are permitted by right in the C – conservation 201 
district. P public district. All uses shall be subject to conditional use review.  202 

2. Principal uUses permitted as either administrative or conditional uses. 203 

A. Botanical research and education.  204 

B. Marine uses, kayak, canoe and other non-motorized watercraft.  205 

C. Marine research and education.  206 

D. Marinas and associated uses.  207 

E. Limited dockage.  208 

F. Nature, foot and bicycle trails.  209 

G. Public and private nature preserves.  210 

H. Public parks.  211 

I. Water conservation areas, reservoirs and control structures.  212 

J. Accessory structures not exceeding five hundred (500) square feet.  213 

K. Accessory uses in support of the intent of the district that facilitate public access 214 
to the conservation area, including nature and welcome centers. 215 

c) Prohibited uses. The following uses are prohibited in the CON conservation district:  216 

1. Wheeled or tracked vehicles, prop (agitation) dredging and airboats are prohibited. 217 
Government and emergency vehicles are exempt.  218 

2. Any use which has an adverse impact upon the habitat, bird roosting areas, 219 
archaeological sites, endangered or threatened wildlife species causing the 220 



Pg. 6, Ord. 2022-20 

 
deterioration of the habitat, physical alteration of the environment, or prohibiting the 221 
propagation or causing the extermination thereof is prohibited.  222 

d) Development regulations. 223 

1. Height: Thirty-five (35) feet.  224 

2. Setback: Twenty (20) feet from all lot lines.  225 

 226 
 227 

Section 5: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,”, Article 3 “Zoning 228 
Districts,” Division 1 “Generally,” Section 23.3-6 “Use Tables,” is hereby amended to 229 
remove the P, PROS, and C zoning districts from all use categories in the use tables 230 
except from the “Temporary Uses” category. 231 

 232 

 233 
Section 6: Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 234 

portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 235 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 236 
independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 237 
portions thereof.  238 

 239 
Section 7:  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 240 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 241 
 242 
Section 8: Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of 243 

the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to 244 

accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or 245 
any other appropriate word. 246 

 247 

Section 9: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after 248 
passage. 249 

 250 
The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by 251 

______________________, seconded by ________________________, and upon 252 
being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 253 

 254 
Mayor Betty Resch  255 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  256 

Commissioner Sarah Malega  257 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  258 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  259 
 260 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 261 

_______ day of ____________________, 2022. 262 
 263 

 264 
The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 265 

_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 266 

the vote was as follows: 267 



Pg.7, Ord. 2022-20 

 268 
Mayor Betty Resch  269 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  270 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  271 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  272 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  273 
 274 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 275 

_____________________, 2022. 276 

 277 
LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 278 
 279 
 280 
By: __________________________ 281 

Betty Resch, Mayor 282 
 283 
ATTEST: 284 

 285 

 286 
____________________________ 287 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 288 

 289 



 
City Of Lake Worth 

Department for Community Sustainability 

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division 

1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461· Phone: 561-586-1687  
  

 

DATE:  October 5, 2022  
 
TO:  Members of the Planning & Zoning and Historic Resources Preservation Boards 
 
FROM:  William Waters, Director Community Sustainability 
 
MEETING:  October 12 and October 19, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance 2022-20: Consideration of an ordinance amending Chapter 23 “Land Development 

Regulations,”, Article 3 “Zoning Districts,” Division 7 “Public Districts,” Section 23.3-26 “P- Public,” 
and Section 23.3-27 “PROS – Public Recreation and Open Space” for consistency with the use tables 
in Section 23.3-6 and clarifying the approval process for uses in the public districts; and Division 8 
“Conservation District,” Section 23.3-28 “C- Conservation,” for consistency with the use tables in 
Section 23.3-6, correcting a scrivener’s error and modifying the approval process to require 
conditional use approval for new uses; and Division 1 “Generally,” Section 23.3-6 “Use Tables,” to 
remove the P, PROS, and C zoning districts from all use categories in the use tables in this section 
except from the “Temporary Uses” category. 

 

 
PROPOSAL / BACKGROUND/ ANALYSIS: 
The subject amendment to the City’s Land Development Regulations (LDR) was drafted based on City Commission 
direction to staff to allow for indoor storage (warehouse) in the Public (P) Zoning District as consistent with existing 
and proposed uses on publicly owned lands.  In preparation of the subject text amendment, it was determined that 
removal of the public and conservation districts from the use table and clarification of the permitted uses and 
review processes in those zoning districts sections would enhance the ease of use and clarity of the LDR.  
 
The proposed amendments would add a new section to the LDR in Chapter 23 of the City’s Code of Ordinances: 

 Article 3 “Zoning Districts,” Section 23.3-26 - P- Public, 

 Article 3 “Zoning Districts,” Section 23.3-27 - PROS – Public Recreation and Open Space  

 Article 3 “Zoning Districts,” Section 23.3-28 - C- Conservation 

 Article 3 “Zoning Districts,” Section 23.3-6 - Use Tables 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board and Historic Resources Preservation Board recommend that 
the City Commission adopt Ordinance 2022-20. 
 
POTENTIAL MOTION: 
I move to RECOMMEND/NOT RECOMMEND TO THE CITY COMMISSION TO ADOPT the proposed LDR text 
amendments included in Ordinance 2022-20. 
 
Attachments 

A. Draft Ordinance 2022-20 



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: December 6, 2022 DEPARTMENT: City Attorney  
 

TITLE: 

Ordinance No. 2022-24 – Providing for the City’s Consent to the Inclusion of the City of Lake 
Worth Beach Into the Palm Beach County’s Fire/Rescue Municipal Service Taxing Unit for Fire-
Rescue, Fire Protection, Advanced Life Support, Fire Code Enforcement and Other Necessary 
and Incidental Services and Providing for Effectiveness and Duration of Consent and 
Acknowledging Ad Valorem Millage Rate Limitation. 

 
SUMMARY: 

An ordinance extending the City’s consent to remain within the Palm Beach County’s 
Fire/Rescue Municipal Service Taxing Unit through September 30, 2026. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Pursuant to subsections 125.01(q) and (r), Florida Statutes, Palm Beach County established a 
Municipal Service Taxing Unit (MSTU) for fire/rescue services.  The City, in accordance with 
subsection 125.01(q), Florida Statutes, provided its consent to be included within the MSTU 
through the adoption of an ordinance.  The City’s consent expires on December 31, 2022 and 
the MSTU services will end 7:30 a.m. on October 1, 2023.  According to the County, the City’s 
consent adheres to the end of the tax year (December 31st) and the services provided coincides 
with the end of the fiscal year (October 1, 2023).  The City Commission wishes to continue its 
consent to be included within the MSTU through December 31, 2025, which will result in the 
City receiving fire-rescue services until 7:30 a.m. on October 1, 2026.  The City also wishes to 
provide for the authority to repeal this Ordinance and the consent provided therein if the County 
transfers or assigns the fire/rescue MSTU or its duties thereunder to any other entity.  The City 
is required to give 30 days’ prior written notice; however, due to the statutory requirements, the 
consent will terminate on December 31st of the applicable year and the MSTU services will 
continue through the following October 1st or the date of the assignment or transfer of the MSTU, 
whichever occurs sooner.  Finally, the ordinance provides that the City, by opting into the MSTU, 
cannot levy an annual ad valorem millage rate that would exceed the 10 mill cap for municipal 
purposes when combined with the Fire/Rescue MSTU annual ad valorem millage rate. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance No. 2022-24 on first reading and setting the second 
reading and public hearing for January 3, 2023. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Ordinance 2022-24 



2022-24 1 

 2 

ORDINANCE 2022-24 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION 3 

OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR 4 

THE CITY’S CONSENT TO THE INCLUSION OF THE ENTIRE 5 

TERRITORY WITHIN THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH MUNICIPAL 6 

BOUNDARIES INTO PALM BEACH COUNTY’S FIRE/RESCUE 7 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE TAXING UNIT FOR FIRE-RESCUE, FIRE 8 

PROTECTION, ADVANCED LIFE SUPPORT (OR SIMILAR 9 

EMERGENCY SERVICES), FIRE CODE ENFORCEMENT AND OTHER 10 

NECESSARY AND INCIDENTAL SERVICES; PROVIDING FOR INTENT, 11 

PURPOSE AND CONSENT; PROVIDING FOR EFFECTIVENESS AND 12 

DURATION OF CONSENT; PROVIDING FOR EFFECTIVENESS OF 13 

REPEAL; ACKNOWLEDGING AD VALOREM MILLAGE RATE 14 

LIMITATION; AND PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING 15 

ORDINANCES, SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, CAPTIONS, AND  AN 16 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 17 

 18 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 125.01(1)(q) and (r), Florida Statutes, the Florida 19 

Legislature has empowered counties to establish Municipal Service Taxing Units 20 

(“MSTU”s), whereby a county may levy a tax within the MSTU for certain essential 21 

municipal services, including the provision of fire-rescue services; and 22 

 23 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 125.01(1)(q), Florida Statutes, a municipality may 24 

be included within an MSTU, subject to approval by ordinance of the governing body of 25 

the municipality giving consent either annually or for a term of years; and 26 

 27 

 WHEREAS, Palm Beach County (“County”) established an MSTU known as the 28 

Fire/Rescue MSTU to provide fire protection, fire rescue, advanced life support (or similar 29 

emergency services), code enforcement and other services necessary and incidental to 30 

the purpose for which the MSTU was created; and 31 

 32 

 WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach (“City”) by Ordinance No. 2008-26 33 

consented to its inclusion in the County’s Fire/Rescue MSTU for a ten (10) year term 34 

through December 31, 2018, as a mechanism to receive and fund County fire-rescue 35 

services through September 30, 2019; and 36 

 37 

WHEREAS, the County by Ordinance No. 2008-62 amended the boundaries of 38 

the Fire/Rescue MSTU to include the City for the duration of the term identified in City 39 

Ordinance No. 2008-26, as such term may be extended by the City from time to time; and 40 

 41 

 WHEREAS, City Ordinance No. 2011-14 affirmed, continued and extended the 42 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-24 

 

City’s consent and inclusion in the County’s Fire/Rescue MSTU through December 31, 43 

2020, and further provided that said consent and inclusion shall be deemed to continue 44 

through 7:30 a.m. on October 1, 2021, to the extent necessary to enable the County to 45 

provide within the City fire-rescue and related services funded by tax year 2020, including 46 

but not limited to the enforcement of applicable laws and regulations; and  47 

 48 

WHEREAS, City Ordinance No. 2021-17 affirmed, continued and extended the 49 

City’s consent and inclusion in the County’s Fire/Rescue MSTU through December 31, 50 

2022, and further provided that said consent and inclusion shall be deemed to continue 51 

through 7:30 a.m. on October 1, 2023, to the extent necessary to enable the County to 52 

provide within the City fire-rescue and related services funded by tax year 2022, including 53 

but not limited to the enforcement of applicable laws and regulations; and 54 

 55 

WHEREAS, the City Commission hereby desires to extend, through December 31, 56 

2025, its consent to the inclusion of all the territory lying within the municipal boundaries 57 

of the City into the County’s Fire/Rescue MSTU for County fire-rescue and related 58 

services within the City until 7:30 a.m. on October 1, 2026, and believes that such 59 

inclusion is in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City. 60 

 61 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 62 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, THAT: 63 

 64 

 Section 1: Intent, Purpose and Consent:  It is the intent, purpose and effect 65 

of this Ordinance to comply with the provisions of Section 125.01(1)(q), Florida Statutes.  66 

The City Commission hereby affirms, extends and consents to the inclusion of all territory 67 

within the incorporated municipal boundaries of the City, as may be amended from time 68 

to time, within the County’s Fire/Rescue Municipal Service Taxing Unit (the “Fire/Rescue 69 

MSTU”), which was established pursuant to enabling legislation adopted by the Board of 70 

County Commissioners of Palm Beach County.  The purpose of the enactment of this 71 

Ordinance is to extend the City’s consent to be included in the County’s Fire/Rescue 72 

MSTU in order to enable the County to fund and provide fire-rescue and related services 73 

within the territorial limits of the City including, but not limited to, the County’s enforcement 74 

of the Florida Fire Prevention Code and Palm Beach County Local Amendments thereto 75 

(collectively “Fire Code”) and any other laws and regulations applicable within the 76 

Fire/Rescue MSTU. 77 



Pg. 3, Ord. 2022-24 
 

 

 78 

 Section 2: Effectiveness and Duration of Consent:  The City’s consent to be 79 

included in the Fire/Rescue MSTU is hereby extended effective from December 31, 2022, 80 

to be implemented for tax year 2023 in order to fund and provide for County fire-rescue 81 

and related services within the City as of October 1, 2023, and to provide for the City’s 82 

continuing inclusion in the Fire/Rescue MSTU without interruption.  The City’s extended 83 

consent to be included in the County’s Fire/Rescue MSTU shall continue from December 84 

31, 2022 through December 31, 2025; provided, however, that the City’s consent and 85 

inclusion in the County’s Fire/Rescue MSTU shall be deemed to continue through 7:30 86 

a.m. on October 1, 2026, to the extent necessary to enable the County to provide within 87 

the City fire-rescue and related services funded by the final tax year including, but not 88 

limited to, the County’s enforcement of the Fire Code and any other laws and regulations 89 

applicable within the Fire/Rescue MSTU. 90 

 91 

 Section 3: Effectiveness of Repeal:  Except as otherwise set forth herein, 92 

should the City intend to repeal its consent to be included in the Fire/Rescue MSTU prior 93 

to its expiration on  December 31, 2025, the City shall provide written notice to the 94 

County, by March 1st of any given year, of the City’s intent to repeal this Ordinance and 95 

the consent provided herein effective December 31st of the same year.  The City shall 96 

adopt an ordinance to repeal this Ordinance and the consent provided herein, and shall 97 

provide a certified copy of the repealing ordinance to the County and to the Property 98 

Appraiser, by said December 31st.  The City’s inclusion in the County’s Fire/Rescue 99 

MSTU shall terminate on said December 31st; provided, however, that the City’s inclusion 100 

in the County’s Fire/Rescue MSTU shall be deemed to continue through the following 101 

October 1st at 7:30 a.m. to the extent necessary to enable the County to provide within 102 

the City fire-rescue and related services funded by the final tax year, including, but not 103 

limited to, the County’s enforcement of the Fire Code and any other laws and regulations 104 

applicable within the Fire/Rescue MSTU. 105 

 106 

Should the City intend to repeal its consent to be included in the Fire/Rescue MSTU based 107 

upon the County’s assignment or transfer of the Fire/Rescue MSTU, or its duties 108 

thereunder, to any other entity, the City shall provide a minimum of thirty (30) days prior 109 

written notice to the County.  The City shall adopt an ordinance to repeal this Ordinance 110 

and the consent provided herein and shall provide a certified copy of the repealing 111 



Pg. 4, Ord. 2022-24 

 

ordinance to the County and to the Property Appraiser after adoption.  The city’s 112 

inclusion in the County’s Fire/Rescue MSTU shall terminate on the date set forth in the 113 

repealing ordinance which shall coincide with December 31st at the end of a given tax 114 

year; provided, however, that the City’s inclusion in the Fire/Rescue MSTU shall be 115 

deemed to continue through the following October 1st at 7:30 a.m. or the date of the 116 

assignment or transfer of the Fire/Rescue MSTU, whichever occurs sooner, to the extent 117 

necessary to enable the County to provide within the City fire rescue and related services 118 

funded by the final tax year, including but not limited to the County’s enforcement of the 119 

Fire Code and any other laws and regulations applicable within the Fire/Rescue MSTU. 120 

 121 

 Section 4: Ad Valorem Millage Rate Limitation:  The City acknowledges that 122 

by opting into the MSTU, it cannot levy an annual ad valorem millage rate that would 123 

exceed the ten (10) mill cap for municipal purposes when combined with the Fire/Rescue 124 

MSTU’s annual ad valorem millage rate. 125 

 126 

 Section 5: Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances:  All other City ordinances and 127 

parts of ordinances in conflict with any provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed 128 

to the extent of the conflict.  Notwithstanding the above, Ordinance No. 2021-17 shall not 129 

be deemed repealed by this Ordinance and shall expire as provided for therein; provided, 130 

however, that Ordinance No. 2021-17 and the term of consent identified therein shall be 131 

deemed to be extended to the extent necessary to enable the County to provide within 132 

the City fire-rescue and related services funded by the final tax year thereunder. 133 

 134 

 Section 6: Severability:  If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, 135 

or word of this Ordinance is for any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 136 

invalid, unconstitutional, inoperative or void, such holding shall not affect the remainder 137 

of this Ordinance. 138 

 139 

 Section 7: Codification:  The provisions of this Ordinance may become and 140 

be made a part of the code of ordinances of the City.  The sections of this Ordinance 141 

may be renumbered or re-lettered to accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be 142 

changed to “section”, “article”, or other appropriate word.  143 

 144 

 Section 8: Captions:  The captions, section headings, and section 145 

designations used in this Ordinance are intended only for the convenience of users and 146 



Pg. 5, Ord. 2022-24 
 

 

shall have no effect on the interpretation of the provisions of this Ordinance. 147 

 148 

 Section 9: Effective Date:  This Ordinance shall be effective retroactively to 149 

December 31, 2022.  Notwithstanding anything here to the contrary, the City’s continuing 150 

participation in the MSTU is contingent upon the County maintaining an ordinance 151 

including the City within the Fire/Rescue MSTU. 152 

 153 

 The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by 154 

____________________________, seconded by ______________________________, 155 

and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 156 

 157 

Mayor Betty Resch  158 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  159 

Commissioner Sarah Malega  160 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  161 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  162 

 163 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 164 

_______ day of ____________________, 2022. 165 

 166 

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 167 

_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 168 

the vote was as follows: 169 

 170 

Mayor Betty Resch  171 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  172 

Commissioner Sarah Malega  173 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  174 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  175 

 176 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 177 

_____________________, 2023. 178 

 179 

 180 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 181 

 182 

 183 

By: __________________________ 184 

Betty Resch, Mayor 185 

 186 

ATTEST: 187 

 188 

 189 

____________________________ 190 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 191 

 192 



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: December 6, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Ordinance No. 2022-25 – First Reading - Amending Chapter 9 “Buildings and Structural Regulations” of 
the City’s Code of Ordinance to provide for a Required Thirty-Year Recertification for Buildings and Other 
Building Code Issues 

 
SUMMARY: 

Florida Statues now requires that all condominiums and cooperatives that are three (3) stories or more 
have a building recertification every thirty (30) years and then every ten (10) years thereafter.  Ordinance 
incorporates these new requirements in the City’s Code of Ordinances as well as other issues affecting 
the Florida Building Code. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

In response to the City of Surfside building collapse, the Florida Legislature approved changes to Florida 
Statues that require all condominiums and cooperatives with three (3) or more stories to undergo a formal 
“milestone inspection” to assess the structural integrity of the structures as well as other life safety issues.  
A private provider must undertake the inspection with the resulting report provided to both the owners 
and the City for review and filing.  Should the inspection uncover “substantial structural deterioration” or 
other life safety issues, repairs will need to be undertaken within a 365-day timeframe. Should they not 
be addressed, the building may be assessed penalties and fines.  Should severe issues be documented, 
buildings may have to be vacated until further investigation and assessments are undertaken with 
subsequent repairs made prior to the residents being allowed to return. 

Within the City of Lake Worth Beach, there are several dozen buildings that are thirty (30) years of age 
or older, which will require inspections and the provision of a report to the City.  The City will notify all 
properties that must comply and provide for a timeframe under which the report must be completed, 
reviewed and filed.  A fee for this endeavor was adopted as part of the City’s official Schedule of Fees 
and Charges to process the reports.  The minimum fee for filing of the reports is $500. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance No. 2022-25 on first reading and schedule the second reading 
and public hearing for January 3, 2023. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Ordinance 2022-25 
Exhibit A 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income $15,000 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows  
 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact $15,000 0 0 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

New Appropriation Fiscal Impact: 

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department     

Division    

GL Description    

GL Account Number     

Project Number     

Requested Funds     

   

Budget Transfer Impact 

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department      

Division     

GL Description     

GL Account Number     

Project Number     

Requested Funds     

   

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department    

Division   

GL Description   

GL Account Number   

Project Number   

Requested Funds   

 



2022-25 1 
 2 

 3 
ORDINANCE 2022-25 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE 4 
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 9 “BUILDINGS AND 5 
STRUCTURAL REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE I “IN GENERAL,”; 6 
AMENDING SECTION 9-2.1 “CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 7 

ADMINISTRATIVE AMENDMENTS TO THE FLORIDA BUILDING 8 
CODES ADOPTED,” BY ADOPTING BY REFERENCE AMENDMENTS 9 
TO THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH ADMINISTRATIVE 10 
AMENDMENTS TO THE FLORIDA BUILDING CODE 2020 EDITION; 11 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION AND 12 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE 13 

 14 
 15 

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”) is a duly constituted 16 

municipality having such home rule power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida 17 
Constitution and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 18 

 19 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2020-19, the City adopted the 2020 Edition 20 

of the Florida Building Code and its administrative amendments thereto; and 21 

 22 
WHEREAS, the Florida Legislature adopted Senate Bill 4-D (effective date May 23 

26, 2022) which includes mandatory structural inspections for condominium and 24 
cooperative buildings (new Section 553.899, Florida Statutes) and amends Section 25 

553.844, Florida Statutes, regarding windstorm loss mitigation and requirements for roofs 26 
and opening protection; and  27 

 28 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend its administrative amendments to the Florida 29 

Building Code to include these legislative changes as set forth in Exhibit A which is 30 

attached hereto and incorporated herein; and 31 
 32 

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and declares that the adoption of these 33 
legislative changes into the City’s administrative amendments serves the public interest 34 
by strengthening and clarifying the proper administration of the Florida Building Code for 35 
the health, safety and welfare of the City, its residents and visitors. 36 

 37 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 38 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 39 

 40 
Section 1: The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are incorporated into this 41 

Ordinance as true and correct findings of the City Commission.  42 
 43 
Section 2: Chapter 9 “Buildings and Structural Regulations,” Article I “In 44 

General,” Section 9-2.1 “City of Lake Worth administrative amendments to the Florida 45 
Building Codes adopted” is hereby amended to read as follows: 46 
 47 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-25 

 

Sec. 9-2.1. – City of Lake Worth Beach administrative amendments to the Florida 48 
Building Codes adopted. 49 

  The City of Lake Worth Beach hereby adopts the Florida Building Code, 2020 Edition, 50 
with administrative amendments as set forth in Exhibit A of Ordinance 2020-19, as 51 
amended by Exhibit A of Ordinance 2022-25, which shall be in full force and effect as if 52 
fully set out in this section. 53 
 54 

Section 3: Directions to Clerk.  In accordance with Section 553.73(4)(a), Florida 55 
Statutes, if the City Commission adopts this Ordinance, the City Clerk is directed to 56 
transmit a copy of this fully executed Ordinance along with Exhibit A to the Florida 57 
Building Commission within thirty (30) days of adoption by the City Commission. 58 

 59 

Section 4: Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 60 
portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 61 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 62 

independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 63 

portions thereof.  64 
 65 

Section 5:  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 66 
conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 67 

 68 

Section 6: Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of 69 
the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to 70 

accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or 71 

any other appropriate word. 72 

 73 
Section 7: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after 74 

passage. 75 
 76 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by 77 

______________________, seconded by _____________________, and upon being 78 
put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 79 

 80 
Mayor Betty Resch  81 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  82 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  83 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  84 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  85 
 86 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 87 
_______ day of ____________________, 2022. 88 

 89 
 90 

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 91 
_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 92 
the vote was as follows: 93 



Pg.3, Ord. 2022-25 

 94 
Mayor Betty Resch  95 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  96 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  97 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  98 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  99 
 100 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 101 
_____________________, 2023. 102 

 103 
 104 
LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 105 

 106 

 107 
By: __________________________ 108 

Betty Resch, Mayor 109 

 110 
ATTEST: 111 

 112 
 113 
____________________________ 114 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 115 
 116 















STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: December 6, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Ordinance No. 2022-26 - Amending Subsection (g) "Maintenance Requirements" of Section 2-75.11 
"Foreclosed, Vacant and Unimproved Property Registration Program" of Article VII "Abatement of 
Nuisances" of Chapter 2 "Administration" 

 
SUMMARY: 

Ordinance serves as a clean up item to remove the allowance for artificial turf on vacant, unimproved 
lots so that there is consistency with the City's Landscape Regulations of Chapter 23 - Land Development 
Regulations 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

With the City’s adoption of updated Landscape Regulations in August 2013 and additional amendments 
over the past several years, a conflict between these regulations and those governing foreclosed, vacant 
and unimproved properties became apparent.  In Chapter 2 “Administration”, artificial turf is listed as an 
acceptable material for use on vacant lots.  Subsequently, the adoption of the landscape regulations, 
which prohibits the use of artificial turf, resulted in a conflict that is now being corrected.  Since the 
landscape regulations were adopted after the vacant lot maintenance requirements, the prohibition of 
artificial turf takes precedence.  The removal of “artificial turf” will bring consistency and clarity to the 
Code of Ordinances. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance No. 2022-26 on first reading and to schedule the second reading 
and public hearing on January 3, 2023. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Ordinance 2022-26 



2022-26 1 

 2 
ORDINANCE 2022-26 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE 3 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING SUBSECTION (g) 4 
“MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS” OF SECTION 2-75.11 5 
“FORECLOSED, VACANT AND UNIMPROVED PROPERTY 6 
REGISTRATION PROGRAM” OF ARTICLE VII “ABATEMENT OF 7 
NUISANCES” OF CHAPTER 2 “ADMINISTRATION,” PROVIDING FOR 8 

CONSISTENCY OF REGULATIONS REGARDING USE OF ARTIFICIAL 9 
TURF; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 10 
CODIFICATION AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 11 

 12 
WHEREAS, as provided in Section 2(b), Article VIII of the Constitution of the State 13 

of Florida, and Section 166.021(1), Florida Statutes, the City of Lake Worth Beach (the 14 
“City”), enjoys all governmental, corporate, and proprietary powers necessary to conduct 15 

municipal government, perform municipal functions, and render municipal services, and 16 
may exercise any power for municipal purposes, except as expressly prohibited by law; 17 
and  18 

 19 

WHEREAS, as provided in Section 166.021(3), Florida Statutes, the governing 20 
body of each municipality in the state has the power to enact legislation concerning any 21 

subject matter upon which the state legislature may act, except when expressly prohibited 22 
by law; and  23 

 24 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Subsection 2-75.11(g) “Maintenance 25 
Requirements” related to properties that are registered under the City’s foreclosed, vacant 26 

and unimproved property registration program to provide yard maintenance standards 27 

that are consistent with the City’s landscaping requirements in Section 23.6-1(k) 28 

“Landscape design standards”, which does not include the use of artificial turf; and 29 
 30 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”), is a duly constituted 31 

municipality having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution 32 
and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 33 

 34 
WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and declares that the adoption of this 35 

ordinance is appropriate, and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the 36 

City, its residents and visitors. 37 
 38 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 39 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 40 

 41 
Section 1: The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed as 42 

being true and correct and are made a specific part of this ordinance as if set forth herein.  43 
 44 
Section 2: Subsection (g) “Maintenance requirements” of Section 2-75.11 45 

“Foreclosed, vacant and unimproved property registration program” of Article VII 46 
“Abatement of Nuisances” of Chapter 2 “Administration,” is hereby amended to read as 47 
follows: 48 
 49 
 (g) Maintenance requirements. 50 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-26 

 

(1) Properties subject to this section shall be kept free of weeds, overgrown brush, 51 

dead vegetation, trash, junk, debris, building materials, any accumulation of 52 
newspapers, circulars, flyers, notices, except those required by federal, state, or 53 
local law, discarded personal items including, but not limited to, furniture, clothing, 54 
large and small appliances, or any other items that give the appearance that the 55 

property is abandoned or not being properly maintained. Grass over twelve (12) 56 
inches tall is prohibited. 57 

 58 
(2) The property shall be maintained free of graffiti or similar markings by removal or 59 

painting over such graffiti or markings with an exterior grade paint that matches 60 

the color of the exterior structure. 61 
 62 
(3) Yards shall be landscaped and maintained pursuant to the standards set forth in 63 

the ordinances of the city. Landscaping shall include, but shall not be limited to, 64 
grass, ground cover, bushes, shrubs, hedges or similar plantings, decorative rock 65 
or bark, artificial turf or sod designed specifically for residential, commercial or 66 

industrial installation, as applicable. Landscaping shall not include weeds, gravel, 67 
broken concrete, asphalt or similar material. Maintenance shall include, but shall 68 

not be limited to, watering, irrigation, cutting and mowing of required landscape 69 
and removal of all trimmings and weeds. 70 

 71 

(4) Pools and spas shall be kept in a safe and sanitary order so that pool and spa 72 
water remains free and clear of pollutants and debris. Pools and spas shall comply 73 
with the enclosure requirements of the city's ordinances and the Florida Building 74 

Code. 75 

 76 
(5) In the event that the National Weather Service, National Hurricane Center, or other 77 

appropriate weather agency declares a hurricane warning for any portion of the 78 

city, all materials, furnishings, and equipment at the property shall be secured, 79 
stored, or removed so as to not create a safety hazard due to hurricane force 80 

winds. 81 
 82 
(6) Failure of the mortgagee and/or property owner of record to properly maintain the 83 

property is a violation of the Code of Ordinances of the city. Pursuant to a finding 84 

and determination by a special magistrate, the city may take the necessary action 85 
to ensure compliance with its ordinances and place a lien or liens and a special 86 
assessment on the property. 87 

 88 
Section 3: Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 89 

portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 90 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 91 

independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 92 
portions thereof.  93 

 94 
Section 4:  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 95 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 96 
 97 



Pg.3, Ord. 2022-26 
 

Section 5: Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of 98 

the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to 99 
accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or 100 
any other appropriate word. 101 

 102 
Section 6: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after 103 

passage. 104 
 105 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by 106 
______________________, seconded by ________________________, and upon 107 
being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 108 

 109 
Mayor Betty Resch  110 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  111 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  112 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  113 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  114 
 115 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 116 
_______ day of ____________________, 2022. 117 

 118 
 119 

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 120 

_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 121 
the vote was as follows: 122 

 123 
Mayor Betty Resch  124 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  125 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  126 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  127 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  128 
 129 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 130 
_____________________, 2023. 131 

 132 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 133 
 134 
 135 

By: __________________________ 136 
Betty Resch, Mayor 137 

 138 
ATTEST: 139 

 140 
 141 
____________________________ 142 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 143 
 144 



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: December 6, 2022 DEPARTMENT: City Attorney  
 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 88-2022 – Acknowledging City Commission’s Continued Commitment to 
Enforcement of Laws to Protect Public Safety while Respecting First Amendment Rights 

 
SUMMARY: 

A resolution acknowledging the City Commission’s continued commitment to enforce laws to 
protect public safety in light of the repeal of the City’s panhandling and solicitation ordinances 
due to recent Florida caselaw. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The current state of the law in Florida prohibits local governments from prohibiting the exercise 
of First Amendment rights that are associated with panhandling/solicitation; however, the City is 
committed to continuing the enforcement of laws that address threats to public safety.  There 
are several state statutes that protect the safety of residents and visitors including, but not limited 
to, assault, battery, loitering, and impeding traffic.   The City Commission and the Palm Beach 
County Sheriff’s Office remain steadfast in the continued enforcement of these laws and other 
applicable laws to ensure public safety and in their commitment to respect individuals who are 
lawfully exercising their First Amendment rights. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 88-2022 acknowledging the City Commission’s 
Continued Commitment to Enforcement of Laws to Protect Public Safety while Respecting First 
Amendment Rights. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Resolution 88-2022 
 



88-2022 1 

 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 88-2022 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 3 
FLORIDA, ACKNOWLEDGING CITY COMMISSION’S CONTINUED 4 
COMMITMENT TO ENFORCEMENT OF LAWS TO PROTECT PUBLIC 5 
SAFETY WHILE RESPECTING FIRST AMENDMENT RIGHTS; 6 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE 7 

DATE 8 
 9 
 WHEREAS, the City Commission is committed to its responsibility to its residents 10 
and visitors to ensure public safety within the City; and 11 

 12 
 WHEREAS, the City Commission is also committed to upholding its residents and 13 
visitors’ First Amendment rights to free speech and complying with the caselaw governing 14 

these rights; and  15 

 16 
WHEREAS, the current state of the law in Florida prohibits local governments from 17 

prohibiting the exercise of First Amendment rights that are associated with panhandling; 18 

however, law enforcement may continue to enforce laws that address threats to public 19 
safety; and 20 

 21 
 WHEREAS, there are several state statutes that protect residents and visitors and 22 

these statutes have been and will continue to be enforced; and 23 

 24 
 WHEREAS, Section 784.011, Florida Statutes, prohibits the offense of an assault 25 

which is “an intentional, unlawful threat by word or act to do violence to the person of 26 
another, coupled with an apparent ability to do so, and doing some act which creates a 27 
well-founded fear in such other person that such violence is imminent”; and 28 

 29 
 WHEREAS, Section 784.03, Florida Statutes, prohibits the offense of a battery 30 
which “occurs when a person actually and intentionally touches or strikes another person 31 
against the will of the other; or intentionally causes bodily harm to another person”; and 32 

 33 
 WHEREAS, Section 316.2045, Florida Statutes, prohibits a person, in certain 34 

instances, from willfully “obstruct[ing] the free, convenient, and normal use of a public 35 
street, highway, or road…”; and 36 

 37 
 WHEREAS, Section 856.021, Florida Statutes, provides that it is “unlawful for any 38 
person to loiter or prowl in a place, at a time or in a manner not usual for law-abiding 39 
individuals, under circumstances that warrant a justifiable and reasonable alarm or 40 

immediate concern for the safety of person or property in the vicinity”; and  41 

 42 
 WHEREAS, the Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office remains steadfast in its 43 
continued enforcement of the laws highlighted above and other applicable laws to ensure 44 



Pg. 2, Reso. 88-2022 

the safety of residents and visitors of the City and to continue to respect individuals 45 

lawfully exercising their First Amendment rights; and 46 
 47 

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds that this resolution serves a public purpose 48 
and is in the best interests of the City. 49 
 50 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF LAKE 51 
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 52 
 53 
 SECTION 1:   The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Resolution as true 54 

and correct findings of the City. 55 
  56 

SECTION 2: The City Commission and the Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office 57 
remain steadfast in their continued enforcement of the laws highlighted above and other 58 

applicable laws to ensure the safety of residents and visitors of the City while respecting 59 
the lawful exercise of First Amendment rights; and 60 
 61 

 SECTION 3: All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with the provision of 62 

this resolution are hereby repealed. 63 
  64 
 SECTION 4: In the event that any word, phrase, clause, sentence, or paragraph 65 

hereof shall be held invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not 66 
affect any other word, clause, phrase, sentence, or paragraph hereof. 67 

 68 
 SECTION 5: This resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 69 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner ______________, 70 

seconded by Commissioner ______________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote 71 

was as follows: 72 

Mayor Betty Resch  73 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  74 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  75 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 76 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  77 
 78 

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the 79 

_____ day of ____________, 2022.  80 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 81 
 82 
 83 

By: __________________________ 84 
Betty Resch, Mayor 85 

ATTEST: 86 
 87 
______________________________ 88 
Melissa Ann Coyne, CMC, City Clerk 89 



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: December 6, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Ordinance No. 2022-27 – First Reading - Amending Chapter 14 "Business Tax Receipts and Business 
Regulations", Section 14-5 "Application for Local Business Tax Receipt of the City's Code of Ordinances 
to Provide for a Local Contact for All Rental Properties and to Repeal Article III " Adult Moving Picture 
Show or Theater, Indoor or Drive-In" and Repeal Article VI "Vehicles for Hire” 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Ordinance provides for a required local property manager contact for all rental properties within the 
City of Lake Worth Beach and repeals two outdated articles of Chapter 14 that are governed by County 
ordinance and regulations. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Due to numerous tenant inquiries and unresolved code compliance issues at both commercial and 
residential rental properties, the City Commission directed staff to bring forward an amendment to the 
City’s Code of Ordinances to provide for a required local property manager contact at all rental properties.  
The proposed ordinance requires a 24-hour, seven (7) day a week, local contact for these properties.  
The contact information that must be provided is the name of the contact as well as mailing address, 
email address and phone number.  City Staff already has requested this information to be provided on a 
voluntary basis as part of the Fiscal Year 2023 Business License Renewal.  Should the ordinance be 
adopted, City Staff will include the requirement as part of all new business license applications moving 
forward as well as part of the formal Fiscal Year 2024 Business License Renewal. 

In addition, two outdated, antiquated sections of Chapter 14 to repeal regulations governing adult moving 
picture shows or theaters and to repeal regulations governing vehicles for hire.  Both activities are 
governed more stringently under County provisions that cover the City of Lake Worth Beach. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance No. 2022-27 on first reading and schedule the second reading 
and public hearing for January 3, 2023 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Ordinance 2022-27 



2022-27 1 

 2 
ORDINANCE 2022-27 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE 3 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING SECTION 14-5 “APPLICATION 4 
FOR LOCAL BUSINESS TAX RECEIPT” OF ARTICLE I “LOCAL 5 
BUSINESS TAX RECEIPT (BTR)” AND REPEALING ARTICLE III 6 
“ADULT MOVING PICTURE SHOW OR THEATER, INDOOR OR DRIVE-7 
IN” AND ARTICLE VI “VEHICLES FOR HIRE” ALL OF CHAPTER 14 8 

“BUSINESS TAX RECEIPTS AND BUSINESS REGULATIONS,” 9 
PROVIDING FOR DESIGNATION OF A LOCAL PROPERTY MANAGER 10 
ON APPLICATIONS FOR RENTAL OF PROPERTY AND REPEAL OF 11 
REGULATIONS THAT ARE REGULATED BY PALM BEACH COUNTY; 12 
AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION 13 

AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 14 
 15 

WHEREAS, as provided in Section 2(b), Article VIII of the Constitution of the State 16 
of Florida, and Section 166.021(1), Florida Statutes, the City of Lake Worth Beach (the 17 
“City”), enjoys all governmental, corporate, and proprietary powers necessary to conduct 18 
municipal government, perform municipal functions, and render municipal services, and 19 

may exercise any power for municipal purposes, except as expressly prohibited by law; 20 
and  21 

 22 
WHEREAS, as provided in Section 166.021(3), Florida Statutes, the governing 23 

body of each municipality in the state has the power to enact legislation concerning any 24 

subject matter upon which the state legislature may act, except when expressly prohibited 25 
by law; and  26 

 27 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Section 14-5 “Application for Local Business 28 

Tax Receipt” of Article I “Local Business Tax Receipt (BTR)” of Chapter 14 “Business Tax 29 
Receipts and Business Regulations,” to require a property manager who is located in 30 
Palm Beach County to be designated on all applications for a local business tax receipt 31 

for rental of property; and 32 
 33 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to repeal Article III “Adult Moving Picture Show or 34 
Theater, Indoor or Drive-in” of Chapter 14 “Business Tax Receipts and Business 35 
Regulations,” allowing for such businesses to be regulated Palm Beach County’s Adult 36 

Entertainment Code, which was subsequently adopted and is effective in municipalities 37 
within Palm Beach County unless the municipality opts out or is effective to the extent of 38 
conflict with municipal ordinances; and 39 

 40 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to repeal Article VI “Vehicles for Hire” of Chapter 14 41 
“Business Tax Receipts and Business Regulations,” allowing for such businesses to be 42 
regulated by the Palm Beach County Vehicle for Hire Ordinance, which was subsequently 43 
adopted and is effective in the incorporated areas of Palm Beach County unless a 44 
municipal exemption applies; and 45 

 46 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”), is a duly constituted 47 

municipality having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution 48 
and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 49 

 50 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-27 

 

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and declares that the adoption of this 51 

ordinance is appropriate, and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the 52 
City, its residents and visitors. 53 

 54 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 55 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 56 
 57 
Section 1: The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed as 58 

being true and correct and are made a specific part of this ordinance as if set forth herein.  59 
 60 

Section 2: Section 14-5 “Application for Local Business Tax Receipt” of Article 61 
I “Local Business Tax Receipt (BTR)” of Chapter 14 “Business Tax Receipts and 62 
Business Regulations,” is hereby amended to read as follows: 63 

 64 
Sec. 14-5. – Application for local business tax receipt. 65 
 66 

An application for a local business tax receipt shall be filed on a standard application form 67 
supplied by the city and such application shall not be processed until the application form 68 

is completed and the corresponding tax, as set forth herein is paid. All applicants applying 69 
for a local business tax receipt must submit a valid Florida driver’s license, registration or 70 
other valid form of identification at the time of application. Applications for a local business 71 

tax receipt for rental of property shall include the name, address, e-mail address, and 24-72 
hour contact telephone number of a property manager who is located in Palm Beach 73 
County and will be responsible for the management of the property. 74 

 75 

 Section 3: Article III “Adult Moving Picture Show or Theater, Indoor or Drive-in” 76 
of Chapter 14 “Business Tax Receipts and Business Regulations,” is hereby repealed in 77 
its entirety. 78 

 79 
 Section 4: Article VI “Vehicles for Hire” of Chapter 14 “Business Tax Receipts 80 

and Business Regulations,” is hereby repealed in its entirety. 81 
  82 

Section 5: Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 83 
portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 84 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 85 
independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 86 
portions thereof.  87 

 88 
Section 6:  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 89 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 90 
 91 

Section 7: Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of 92 
the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to 93 
accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or 94 
any other appropriate word. 95 

 96 
Section 8: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after 97 

passage. 98 



Pg.3, Ord. 2022-27 
 

 99 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by 100 
______________________, seconded by ________________________, and upon 101 
being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 102 

 103 
Mayor Betty Resch  104 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  105 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  106 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  107 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  108 
 109 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 110 
_______ day of ____________________, 2022. 111 

 112 
 113 

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 114 
_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 115 
the vote was as follows: 116 

 117 
Mayor Betty Resch  118 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  119 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  120 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  121 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  122 
 123 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 124 
_____________________, 2023. 125 

 126 
LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 127 

 128 
 129 
By: __________________________ 130 

Betty Resch, Mayor 131 
 132 
ATTEST: 133 

 134 
 135 
____________________________ 136 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 137 
 138 



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: December 6, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Professional Services Agreement with NexAir LLC 

 
SUMMARY: 

Agreement with NexAir LLC for the purchase of various compressed gasses for the power plant with a 
total cost not to exceed Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) per fiscal year. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Compressed gasses are vital to the operation and maintenance of the power plant.  The power plant 
utilizes several gasses on a daily basis for testing; maintenance repairs as well as calibration and 
verification of air monitoring equipment. The agreement is for one (1) year with four (4) additional one (1) 
year renewal periods with a total cost not to exceed Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) per fiscal 
year. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Professional Services Agreement with NexAir LLC with a total cost not to 
exceed Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) per fiscal year. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Service Agreement  



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 25,000 25,0000 25,0000 25,0000 25,0000 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows  
 Operating  $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

   

   

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department   Electric 

Division Power Plant  

GL Description Operating Supplies / Other  

GL Account Number  401-6031-531.52-90 

Project Number   

Requested Funds  $25,000 

 

































STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: December 6, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Amendment One to the Bohemian Economic Incentive Agreement 

 
SUMMARY: 

The purpose of the amendment to the approved Economic Incentive Agreement for The Bohemian 
Apartment to allow for the incentive payment to be paid after the first three years of active operations. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

In 2020, the City entered into an Economic Development Incentive Agreement with The Bohemian to 
provide financial incentives for The Bohemian’s 200-unit apartment community at 1017 Lake Avenue. 
Under the Agreement, the City agreed to pay $89,066.48 to The Bohemian as an economic incentive 
based on the first three years of new revenue to the electric, water, sewer and stormwater enterprise 
funds generated by the project.  The original agreement stipulated that the incentive would be dispersed 
at the time of a receipt of a final Certificate of Occupancy (CoA) predicated that a performance bond or 
other financial vehicle were posted to ensure that the new utility revenue projections were would be 
achieved.  The developer has requested that the payment be made after the first three years of active 
operation are completed and the new utility revenue streams have been verified.  The amendment to the 
original agreement would allow for this payment at the end of the initial three years of operation. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Amendment One for the Bohemian’s Economic Incentive Agreement and 
to authorize the Mayor to sign the same. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Amendment One 
Original Economic Incentive Agreement 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows  
 Operating  0 0 $89,066.48 0 0 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 $89,066.48 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

New Appropriation Fiscal Impact: 

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department      

Division     

GL Description     

GL Account Number     

Project Number     

Requested Funds     

   

Budget Transfer Impact 

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department      

Division     

GL Description     

GL Account Number     

Project Number     

Requested Funds     

   

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department    

Division   

GL Description   

GL Account Number   

Project Number   

Requested Funds   

 












































































	Top
	A.	1107 WS minutes
	DRAFT 110722 WS minutes

	B.	1115 RM minutes
	DRAFT 111522 RM minutes

	A.	Discussion of proposed Request for Proposal (RFP) regarding the Housing Crisis
	Housing Study Staff Report
	RFP - Housing Study and Rent Control - Draft
	RFP - Housing Emergency Study and Rent Control - Redlined
	City Attorney Letter to Mayor & Commission
	Fifth DCA's Opinion

	A.	CPZ Pool Presentation
	Pool Concepts Staff Report
	Pool concepts with costs
	Opinion of costs

	B.	Ordinance No. 2022-20 – First Reading – LDR Amendment Public Districts
	Public Districts Staff Report
	Ordinance 2022-20
	Ordinance 2022-20 PZHP Staff Report

	C.	Ordinance No. 2022-24 – First Reading – MSTU for Fire Rescue
	MSTU Ordinance Staff Report
	Ordinance No. 2022-24

	D.	Ordinance No. 2022-25 – First Reading – Amending Chapter 9 "Buildings and Structural Regulations" to provide for Building Recertifications
	Building Recertification Staff Report
	Ordinance No. 2022-25
	Exhibit A

	E.	Ordinance No. 2022-26 – First Reading – Amending Subsection (g) "Maintenance Requirements" of Section 2-75.11 "Foreclosed, Vacant and Unimproved Property Registration Program" of Article VII "Abatement of Nuisances" of Chapter 2 "Administration"
	Maintenance Standards Staff Report
	Ordinance 2022-26

	F.	Resolution No. 88-2022 – City Commission’s Continued Commitment to Enforcement of Laws to Protect Public Safety while Respecting First Amendment Rights
	Panhandling Staff Report
	Resolution No. 88-2022

	G.	Ordinance No. 2022-27 – First Reading – Amending Chapter 14 "Business Tax Receipts and Business Regulations"
	Business Regulations Staff Report
	Ordinance 2022-27

	H.	Professional Services Agreement with NexAir LLC
	NexAir Staff Report
	NexAir Agreement

	I.	Amendment One to The Bohemian Economic Incentive Agreement
	Bohemian Staff Report
	Amendment Bohemian Signed
	2020 Economic Incentive Agreement
	2020 Letter of Intent

	Bottom

